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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

Founded by the Swift meat packing interasis the Darling family in 1882, Darling Internata Inc. (“Darling”) was incorporate
in Delaware in 1962 under the name “Darling-Delaav@ompany, Inc.” On December 28, 1993, Darlingngea its name from “Darling-
Delaware Company, Inc.” to “Darling Internationatl” The address of Darling’s principal executoféice is 251 OConnor Ridge Boulevar
Suite 300, Irving, Texas, 75038, and its telephamaber at this address is (972) 717-0300.

Darling is a leading provider of rendering, recggliand recovery solutions to the nat®fdod industry. Darling collects and recy:
animal byproducts and used cooking oil from food servicaldgghments and provides grease trap cleaningcgnto many of the sal
establishments. In fiscal 2006, Darling, througgh wholly-owned subsidiary Darling National LLC, a Delawamifed liability compan
(“Darling National”), completed the acquisition efibstantially all of the assets of National Bgeducts, LLC, an lowa limited liabili
company (“NBP”). Darling and its subsidiaries, limting Darling National, are collectively referréd herein as the “CompanyThe
Company processes raw materials at 45 facilitieatkr throughout the United States into finishemtipcts such as protein (primarily meat
bone meal, “MBM"), tallow (primarily bleachable fey tallow, “BFT"), yellow grease (“YG")and hides. The Company sells these proi
nationally and internationally, primarily to proders of livestock feed, oleo-chemicals, fils, soaps, pet foods and leather goods for €
ingredients in their products or for further prosiag.

Commencing in 1998, as part of an overall stratedyetter commit financial resources, the Compsimgerations were organized i
two segments. These are: 1) Rendering, the cosedss of turning inedible food Ipreducts from meat and poultry processors, bu
shops, grocery stores and food service establistariato high quality feed ingredients and fats @her industrial applications; and
Restaurant Services, a group focused on growingithase collection business and grease collectjaipment sales while expanding the
of services, which includes grease trap servicargl the National Service Center (“NSCbffered to food service establishments and
processors. The NSC schedules services such asddione and used cooking oil collection as welrap cleaning for contracted custon
using the Company’s resources or third party prendd For the financial results of the Companiyusiness segments, see Note 18 of No
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s net external sales from continuingrations by operating segment were as followsh@usands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2009 2008 2007
Continuing operations
Rendering $458,57. $585,10! $464,46! 72.0%
76.7% 72.5%
Restaurant Servict 139,23: 23.3 222,38 27.5 180,84! 28.0
Total $597,80¢ 100.0 $807,49: 100.0 $ 100.0%

% % 645,31«

PROCESSING OPERATIONS

The Company creates finished products primarilyough the drying, grinding, separating and blendofgits various ra\
materials. The process starts with the collectibanimal processing bgroducts (fat, bones, feathers and offal) from npeatessors, groce
stores, butcher shops, meat markets and food seegimblishments, as well as used cooking oil filooad service establishments and gro
stores.

The animal processing hyroducts are ground and heated to extract watesepdrate oils from animal tissue as well as toarthk
material suitable as an ingredient for animal feBdotein is separated from the cooked materiapi@gsing the material, then grinding
sifting it through screens. The separated tallewcéntrifuged and/or refined for purity. The prisndinished products derived from f
processing of animal by-products are tallow andgino Other byproducts include feather meal and blood meal. UWsexking oil from foor
service establishments is processed under a segatedure that involves heat processing andrggttls well as refining, resulting in deri
yellow grease, fee-grade animal fat or oleo-chemical feedstocks.
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PURCHASE AND COLLECTION OF RAW MATERIALS

The Company operates a fleet of approxima@00 trucks and tractdrailers to collect raw materials from approximgt2L0,00t
food service establishments, butcher shops, grostmes and independent meat and poultry proces3tws raw materials collected
manufactured into the finished products sold by @wmmpany. The Company replaces or upgrades itgleefieet as needed to maint
efficient operations.

Rendering materials are collected in one of twomeas. Certain large suppliers, such as large mestessors and poul
processors, are furnished with bulk trailers inahhihe raw material is loaded. The Company trartsgbese trailers directly to a proces:
facility. Certain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependent on ona few suppliers. Should any of these supplifi®os:
alternate methods of disposal, cease their opestisave their operations interrupted by casualtptberwise cease using the Company’
collection services, these operating facilities idobe materially and adversely affected. The Camgpprovides the remaining supplie
primarily grocery stores and butcher shops, withtamers in which to deposit the raw material. Tloatainers are picked up by or emp
into Company trucks on a periodic basis. The tgpé frequency of service is determined by individiupplier requirements, the volume
raw material generated by the supplier, supplieation and weather, among other factors.

Used cooking oil from food service establishmdstplaced in various sizes and types of contaimgrich are supplied by tl
Company. In some instances, these containeroaded directly onto the trucks, while in other amstes the oil is pumped through a vac
hose into the truck. The Company also sells aainet for used cooking oil collection to food sersiestablishments called CleanStawhich
is a proprietary selfontained collection system that is housed eithside or outside the establishment, with the usskiog oil pumpe
directly into collection vehicles via an outsiddwa The frequency of all forms of raw materiallection is determined by the volume of
generated by the food service establishment.

The raw materials collected by the Company aresparted either directly to a processing plantamattransfer station whe
materials from several collection routes are loaited trailers and transported to a processing tpl@ollections of animal processing by-
products generally are made during the day, ancenmaét are delivered to plants for processing witB4 hours of collection to de
spoilage. Collection of used cooking oil can bedmat any time of the day or night, depending grpBer preference; these materials ma
held for longer periods of time before processibgpending on market conditions, the Company eittherges a collection fee to offse
portion of the expense incurred in collecting raatemial or will pay for the raw material.

During the 2009 fiscal year, the Companidrgest single supplier accounted for approxima®®o of the total raw mater
processed by the Company, and the 10 largest rateriala suppliers accounted for approximately 25%he total raw material processed
the Company. For a discussion of the Company’spatition for raw materials, see “Competition.” Maof the Companys suppliers supp
raw material under supplier agreements. WhileGbenpany does not anticipate problems in the avithaler supply of raw material in tt
future, a significant decrease in raw material waducould materially and adversely affect the Comfsabusiness and results of operations.

RAW MATERIALS PRICING

The Company has two primary pricing arrangemeilitis it raw materials suppliers. Approximately 58%the Company's annt
volume of raw materials is acquired on a "formutesis. Under a formula arrangement, the chargeretit for raw materials is tied
published finished product commodity prices afteduakting a fixed processing fee. The Company aeguhe remaining annual volume of
material under "noflermula” arrangements whereby suppliers are eiffaéd a fixed price, are not paid, or are chargecbléection fee
depending on various economic and competitive facto
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The credit received or amount charged for raw nedtender both formula and ndofmula arrangements is based on various fa
including the type of raw materials, the expectatug of the finished product to be produced, thicgated yields, the volume of mate
generated by the supplier and processing and tatasion costs. Competition among processors ¢oype raw materials also affects the .
paid for raw materials. See "Competition."

Formula prices are generally adjusted on a weeklynthly or quarterly basis while ndarmula prices or charges are adjuste
needed to respond to changes in finished prodiczgor related operating costs.

FINISHED PRODUCTS

The finished products that result from prooesf animal byproducts are oils, primarily BFT and YG; MBM, a pem; anc
hides. Oils are used as ingredients in the préolucif pet food, animal feed, soaps and as a dutestior traditional fuels. Oleohemica
producers use these oils as feedstocks to prochexsadty ingredients used in paint, rubber, papencrete, plastics and a variety of o
consumer and industrial products. MBM is used pritm as a high protein additive in pet food andnaad feed. Hides are sold to leat
distributors and manufacturers for the productibleather goods.

Predominantly all of the Company's finished pradwre commodities that compete with other comnesiguch as corn, soybe
oil and soybean meal. While the Company's finishrediucts are generally sold at prices prevailintpe time of sale, the Compasyability tc
deliver large quantities of finished products fronultiple locations and to coordinate sales fromeatil location enables the Compan
occasionally receive a premium over the then-pfiepmarket price.

MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION OF FINISHED PRODU CTS

The Company sells its finished products worldwi@@mmodity sales are primarily managed throughGbenpany's commodi
trading department which is headquartered in Irvibgxas. The Company also maintains a sales dffié@es Moines, lowa for the sale ¢
distribution of selected products. This salesdarcin contact with several hundred customersydaid coordinates the sale and assists i
distribution of most finished products producedts Company's processing plants. The Company iglffnished products internatione
through commodities brokers, Company agents amttilirto customers, in various countries.

The Company has no material foreign operationsegkports a portion of its products to customersanous foreign countries
regions including Asia, the European Union, theifRaRim, North Africa, Mexico and South Americd.otal export sales were $70.8 milli
$132.2 million and $171.6 million for the years eddJanuary 2, 2010, January 3, 2009 and Decembex0R9, respectively. The level
export sales varies from year to year dependintherrelative strength of domestic versus overseakets. The Company obtains payn
protection for most of its foreign sales by requirpayment before shipment or by requiring bartiefstof credit or guarantees of payment 1
U.S. government agencies. The Company ordinasilpdid for its products in U.S. dollars and has exjerienced any material curre
translation losses or any material foreign exchaogetrol difficulties. See Note 18 of Notes to Golidated Financial Statements fc
breakdown of the Company’s sales by domestic arelgn customers.

Following diagnosis of the first U.S. casfebovine spongiform encephalopathy (“BSEH December 23, 2003, many couni
banned imports of U.Sroduced beef and beef products, including MBM anitially BFT, though this initial ban on tallow warelaxed t
permit imports of U.Sproduced tallow with less than 0.15% impuritiess & February 24, 2010, most foreign markets therevelosed to U.
beef following the discovery of the first U.S. cadeBSE had been reopened to U.S beef, althougle smuantries only accept boneless be:
beef from cattle less than 30 months of age. Japamore restrictive and only permits imports oSUbeef from cattle that are age verified t
20 months of age or younger at slaughter. Expamkets for MBM containing beef material producedhe U.S. have remained closed \
the exception of the Indonesia market.
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The Companys management monitors market conditions and pfareits finished products on a daily basis. If ketrconditions ¢
prices were to significantly change, the Companylanagement would evaluate and implement any mesagiuat it may deem necessar
respond to the change in market conditions. Fgelaformulabased pricing suppliers, the indexing of finishedduct price to raw mater
cost effectively fixes the gross margin on finishedduct sales at a stable level, providing sonsgéegtion to the Company from price declines.

Finished products produced by the Company arepsliprimarily FOB plant by truck and rail from t@@mpany's plants shor
following production. While there are some tempgliaventory accumulations at various port locasidor export shipments, inventories ra
exceed three weekgroduction and, therefore, the Company uses limitedking capital to carry inventories and reducessexposure 1
fluctuations in commodity prices. Other factorattinfluence competition, markets and the priced the Company receives for its finisl
products include the quality of the Company's fied products, consumer health consciousness, widdderedit conditions and U
government foreign aid. From time to time, the @amy enters into arrangements with its suppliersaof materials pursuant to which th
suppliers buy back the Company’s finished products.

COMPETITION

Management of the Company believes that the mumsipetitive aspect of the business is the procurémieraw materials rath
than the sale of finished products. During the fes plus years, pronounced consolidation withia theat processing industry has result
bigger and more efficient slaughtering operatighe, majority of which utilize “captiveprocessors (rendering operations integrated wi
meat or poultry packing operation). Simultaneousig number of small meat processors, which hésterically been a dependable sourc
supply for noneaptive processors, has decreased significanttye sTaughter rates in the meat processing indasive declined, and as a re
the availability, quantity and quality of raw matds available to the independent processors frioesd sources have all decreased. 1
factors have been offset, in part, however, bydasing environmental consciousness. The neeadar $ervice establishments to comply
environmental regulations concerning the propepatial of used restaurant cooking oil should comtitauprovide a growth area for this |
material source. The rendering and restauranicgsrvindustries are highly fragmented and very catitipe. The Company competes v
other rendering and restaurant services businessgslternative methods of disposal of animal pssice byproducts and used restaul
cooking oil provided by trash haulers, waste mamagd companies and biiesel companies, as well as the alternative agd
disposal. Major competitors for the collectionrafv material include: Baker Commodities in the Waasd Griffin Industries in Texas and
Southeast. Each of these businesses competesthinti®m Rendering and Restaurant Services segmAntsther major competitor in t
restaurant services business is Restaurant Teaies)dnc.

In marketing its finished products domesticallyd asbroad, the Company faces competition from offrecessors and frc
producers of other suitable commodities. Tallowd greases are, in certain instances, substitotesofybean oil and palm stearine, w
MBM is a substitute for soybean meal. Consequentlg prices of BFT, YG and MBM correlate with thesubstitute commodities. T
markets for finished products are impacted maiglyhe worldwide supply of and demand for fats, ,giloteins and grains.

SEASONALITY

The amount of raw materials made available toGbepany by its suppliers is relatively stable omeekly basis except for thc
weeks which include major holidays, during whick #vailability of raw materials declines becaus¢omaeat and poultry processors are
operating. Weather is also a factor. Extremelymvaveather adversely affects the ability of the @any to make higher quality produ
because the raw material deteriorates more rapiidlyg in cooler weather, while extremely cold weatle certain instances, can hinder
collection of raw materials. Weather can vary #igantly from one year to the next and may impaamparability of operating results of
Company between periods.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Company maintains valuable trademarks, semiagks, copyrights, trade names, trade secretgriptary technologies a
similar intellectual property, and considers itsellectual property to be of material value. Thenfpany has registered or applied
registration of certain of its intellectual properincluding the tricolor triangle used in the Camng’s signage and logos and the na
"Darling,” "Darling Restaurant Services" and "Cl8&r." The Companyg’ policy generally is to pursue intellectual prdpeprotectiol
considered necessary or advisable.

EMPLOYEES AND LABOR RELATIONS

As of January 2, 2010, the Company employgaagimately 1,820 persons fuilme. Approximately 45% of the total numbe
employees are covered by collective bargainingeagents; however, the Company has no national oti-plaht union contracts. Managerm
believes that the Comparsytelations with its employees and their represdmetm are good. There can be no assurance, howiagrnev
agreements will be reached without union actiowitirbe on terms satisfactory to the Company.

REGULATIONS

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatafngarious federal, state and local governmenggnaies. Material rules a
regulations and the applicable agencies include:

« The Food and Drug AdministratiofiFDA”), which regulates food and feed safety. Effectivegédst 1997, the FDA promulgate:
rule prohibiting the use of mammalian proteins,msbme exceptions, in feeds for cattle, sheep #mel ouminant animals (21 Cl
589.2000, referred to herein as the “BSE Feed Ruteprevent further spread of BSE, commonly reférro as “mad cow disease.”
On April 25, 2008, the FDA amended 21 CFR 589.2800 added 21 CFR 589.2001 to prohibit the use rbdicecattle materials in
feed and food for animals. These changes becafeetieé on October 26, 2009. Company managemdigvies the Company is
compliance with the provisions of these ru

See Item 1A “Risk Factors — The Company’s busimeayg be affected by the impact of BSE and other feaféty issues,for more
information regarding certain FDA rules that affded Company’s business, including changes to 8ig Beed Rule.

« The United States Department of Agricultuf@SDA”), which regulates collection and production methddéthin the USDA, twi
agencies exercise direct regulatory oversight @f@bmpan’s activities:

— Animal and Plant Health Inspection Serv{€APHIS") certifies facilities and claims made fexported materials;
establishes and enforces import requirementsyerdnimals and animal products, ¢

— Food Safety Inspection Servi(“FSIS”) regulates sanitation and food safety progre

On December 30, 2003, the Secretary of Agriculaimeounced new beef slaughter/meat processing temddo assure consumers
the safety of the meat supply. These regulationsibit nonambulatory animals from entering the food chaimuie removal ¢
specific risk materials at slaughter and prohibitcasses from cattle tested for BSE from entettiegfdod chain until the animals
shown negative for BSE.

On November 19, 2007, APHIS implemented revisedoimpegulations that allowed Canadian cattle ov®n®nths of age and bc
after March 1, 1999 and bovine products derivechfsuch cattle to be imported into the U.S. for asg. Imports of Canadian ca
younger than 30 months of age have been allowea $itarch 2005. Imports of SRM from Canadian bottleslaughtered in Cana
are not permitted.

« The Environmental Protection Agen((“EPA”), which regulates air and water discharge requirespest well as local and st
agencies governing air and water discha
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« State Departments of Agricultu, which regulate animal l-product collection and transportation proceduresamimal feed quality

« The United States Department of TransportatidSDOT”"), as well as local and state agencies, which regtitateperation of tt
Compan’s commercial vehicle:

» The Securities and Exchange CommissftiEC”), which regulates securities and information requirednnual and quarterly repc
filed by publicly traded companie

These material rules and regulations and othes larhel regulations promulgated by other agenciesinfilagnce the Company’s
operating results at one or more facilities.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the @y is required to file annual, quarterly and sdeeports, proxy statemei
and other information with the SEC, which can badrand/or copies made at the SE®@ublic Reference Room at 100 F Street N.E., F
1580, Washington D.C. 20549. Please call the SEG&D0-SECO330 for further information about the Public Refete Room. The SE
maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gbat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and other information regarding issuers
file electronically with the SEC. The Company dilelectronically with the SEC.

The Company makes available, free of chatgeugh its investor relations web site, its mpon Forms 10-K, 10-Q andi8-anc
amendments to those reports, as soon as reas@rabticable after they are filed with, or furnishtedthe SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 1&
(d) of the Exchange Act.

The Company’s website is http://www.darlirmpm and the address for the Companyihvestor relations web site
http://www.darlingii.com/investors.aspx

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Company will be suliecisks inherent to the Compasybusiness. Before making an investment decia
the Company, you should carefully consider thesridé&scribed below together with all of the othdoimation included in or incorporated
reference into this report. If any of the evenésdatibed in the following risk factors actually ocs, the Companyg’ business, financi
condition, prospects or results of operations cdaoddmaterially and adversely affected. If anyhafse events occurs, the trading price o
Company'’s securities could decline and you may #liser part of your investment.

The Company’s results of operations and cash flow ay be reduced by decreases in the market price dfiproducts.
The Company finished products are commodities, the pricestdth are quoted on established commodity markatsordingly
the Companys results of operations will be affected by fluttoms in the prevailing market prices of thesedivdd products. A significe

decrease in the market price of the Company’s prsdwould have a material adverse effect on the gamyis results of operations and ¢
flow. In addition, the Company'’s principal prodsiére not future exchange trading commodities.
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The most competitive aspect of the Company’s busieeg is the procurement of raw materials.

The Company’s management believes that thet omupetitive aspect of the Compasybusiness is the procurement of
materials rather than the sale of finished produPt®nounced consolidation within the meat packimtystry has resulted in bigger and n
efficient slaughtering operations, the majority valfiich utilize “captive” processors. Simultaneously, the number of smaltrpeocessor
which have historically been a dependable sourcaipply for noneaptive processors, such as the Company, has dedrsgnificantly. TF
slaughter rates in the meat processing industrg l@elined, and as a result the availability, gityaind quality of raw materials available
the independent processors from these sourcesafladecreased. In addition, the Company has seéncaease in the use of restaurant gr
in the production of bialiesel. Furthermore, the general performance ef WhS. economy, declining U.S. consumer confidesoeé th
inability of consumers and companies to obtain itréwke to the current lack of liquidity in the fingial markets, could have a negative im
on the Company raw material volume, such as through the fordeduce of raw material suppliers. A significantcrease in available re
materials or a closure of a raw material supplienld materially and adversely affect the Companpusiness and results of operat
including the carrying value of the Company’s asset

The rendering and restaurant services industilyighly fragmented and very competitive. The Conypaompetes with oth
rendering and restaurant services businesses sardatlve methods of disposal of animal processipgroducts and used restaurant coo
oil provided by trash haulers, waste managemenpenies and bialiesel companies, as well as the alternative e§dl disposal. In additic
restaurants experience theft of used cooking @dpending on market conditions, the Company eitiherges a collection fee to offse
portion of the cost incurred in collecting raw m&kor will pay for the raw material. To the ertesuppliers of raw materials look to alterr
methods of disposal, whether as a result of the g@@my's collection fees being deemed too expensiwherwise, the Comparg/raw materi:
supply will decrease and the Company’s collectiea fevenues will decrease, which could materiatlg adversely affect the Company’
business and results of operations.

The Company is highly dependent on natural gas andiesel fuel.

The Companyg operations are highly dependent on the use afralagas and diesel fuel. The Company consumesfisint
volumes of natural gas to operate boilers in itsfd to generate steam to heat raw material. Blagas prices represent a significant co
factory operation included in cost of sales. ThmmPany also consumes significant volumes of dias#lto operate its fleet of tractors «
trucks used to collect raw material. Diesel fudgtes represent a significant component of costalfection expenses included in cos
sales. The Company continually manages these. cAtitsough prices for natural gas and diesel feehained relatively low during fiscal 2C
as compared to recent history, these prices carolaile and there can be no assurance that thésespwill not increase in the near futt
thereby representing an ongoing challenge to thapgamy’s operating results for future periods. A matdriatease in energy prices for nat
gas and diesel fuel over a sustained period of timdd materially adversely affect the Companiusiness, financial condition and result
operations. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussish/malysis,” for a recent history of natural gagipg.

Certain of the Company’s 45 operating facilities ae highly dependent upon a few suppliers.

Certain of the Comparg/rendering facilities are highly dependent on ona few suppliers. Should any of these suppbéos:
alternate methods of disposal, cease their opestioave their operations interrupted by casualtptberwise cease using the Company’
collection services, these operating facilities nisy materially and adversely affected, which comidterially and adversely affect
Company’s business, earnings, balance sheet aralbrflows.

The Company’s business may be affected by worldwidgovernment energy policies.

Pursuant to the requirements established by thergynindependence and Security Act of 2007 on Fahrd, 2010 the EF
finalized regulations for the National RenewablelFetandard Program (RFS2). The regulation masdate domestic use of biomasase!
diesel (biodiesel or renewable diesel) of 1.15dpillgallons in 2010, 0.8 billion gallons in 2011dah.0 billion gallons in 2012. Beyond 2(
the regulation requires a minimum of 1.0 billiorligas of biomasdased diesel for each year thru 2022, which amiswsubject to increase
the EPA Secretary. Biomass-based diesel alsofigsato fulfill the nonspecified portion of the advanced biofuel requiretén order t
qualify as a “renewable fuelach type of fuel from each type of feedstock puned to lower greenhouse gas emissions (GHGelwgls
specified in the regulation. The EPA has deternhitteat biofuels (either biodiesel or renewable eieproduced from waste oils, fats
greases result in an 86% reduction in GHG emisséxegeding the 50% requirement established byebelation. Prices for the Company’
finished products may be impacted by worldwide gomeent policies relating to renewable fuels andegh®use gas emissions. Programs
RFS2 and tax credits for biofuels both in the Ua&hd abroad may positively impact the demand for @mmpanys finishec
products. Accordingly, changes to or discontinuifighese programs could have a negative impatcherCompanys business and results
operations.

Page 1(




The Company may incur material costs and liabilities in complying with government regulations.

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatafngarious federal, state and local governmenganaies. Material rules a
regulations and the applicable agencies include:

« The FDA, which regulates food and feed safety;
« The USDA, including its agencies APHIS and FSISiclitegulates collection and production methc

« The EPA, which regulates air and water dischargpirements, as well as local and state agenciesrgmg air and wat
discharge

» State Departments of Agriculture, which regulatémeh byproduct collection and transportation procedured animal fee
quality;

- The USDOT, as well as local and state transportatigencies, which regulate the operation of the amws commercit
vehicles; ant

« The SEC, which regulates securities and informatémuired in annual and quarterly reports filedpoplicly traded companies.

The applicable rules and regulations prajatdd by these agencies may influence the Compampgrating results at one or i
facilities. Furthermore, the loss of or failurediotain necessary federal, state or local permitisragistrations at one or more of the Company’
facilities could halt or curtail operations at ingped facilities, which could adversely affect thengpany’s operating results. The Company’
failure to comply with applicable rules and regidas could subject it to: 1) administrative peredtiand injunctive relief; 2) civil remedi
including fines, injunctions and product recallega3) adverse publicity. There can be no asserémat the Company will not incur mate
costs and liabilities in connection with these suad regulations.

The Company is and may continue to be adversely &fted by the ongoing world financial crisis.

The continuing turmoil existing in world financiaredit, commodities and stock markets may havigrafieant negative effect on t
Company’s business. The Companforward view into the possible effects of thistoil is limited. Among other things, the Compamgy
be adversely impacted because its domestic anchatienal customers and suppliers may not be abéetess sufficient capital to continu
operate their businesses, or to operate themat lpsiels. A decline in consumer confidence or girag patterns in the availability and ust
disposable income by consumers can negativelytdffgtt the Compang’ suppliers and customers. Declining discretiomarnsumer spendil
or the loss or impairment of a meaningful numbethaf Companys suppliers or customers could lead to a dislonatioeither raw materi
availability or customer demand. Tightened credipply could negatively affect the Company’s custshability to pay for the Comparg/’
products on a timely basis or at all, and couldilten a requirement for additional bad debt ressrvAlthough many of the Compasy’
customer contracts are formula-based, continuedtilit in the commodities markets could negativétypact the Companyg’ revenues al
overall profits. Counter party risk on finishedguct sales can also impact revenue and operatafigspiwhen customers either are unabl
obtain credit or refuse to take delivery of finidhgroduct due to market price declines. If theséxg financial and credit crisis negativ
impacts a lender in the Compasycredit facility, the ability of that lender torfd its portion of the commitment could be impairddhe
inability of a lender to fund its committed portiohthe facility does not excuse other lenders ffamding their portions of the commitment.
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Multi-employer defined benefit pension plans to wiih the Company contributes may be under-funded.

The Company contributes to several meltiployer defined benefit pension plans based oigatins arising under collecti
bargaining agreements covering union-representqulogiees. The Company does not manage these emftioyer plans. Based upon
most currently available information from plan adistrators, some of which information is more tlzagear old, the Company believes
some of these multi-employer plans are urfdeded due partially to a decline in the valuetaf tissets supporting these plans, a reduct
the number of actively participating members forowhemployer contributions are required and thellef/®enefits provided by the plans.
addition, the Pension Protection Act, enacted igusi 2006, went into effect in January 2008 andiireg undefunded pension plans
improve their funding ratios within prescribed irtals based on the level of their under-funding @ result, the Compars/require:
contributions to these plans may increase in therdu Furthermore, under current law regardindtimamployer defined benefit plans, any
plan’s termination, the Company’s voluntary withated from any undefunded plan, or the mass withdrawal of all conttilbg employers frot
any under-funded multi-employer defined benefitnplavould require the Company to make payments o plan for the Company’
proportionate share of the multi-employer plan’sumded vested liabilities. Moreover, if a muitinployer defined benefit plan fails to sat
certain minimum funding requirements, the InterRalvenue Service may impose a nondeductible exaiseft 5% on the amount of t
accumulated funding deficiency for those employenstributing to the fund. Requirements to pay éased contributions, withdrawal liabil
and excise taxes could negatively impact the Coryipdiguidity and results of operations.

The Company’s business may be affected by the impaaf BSE and other food safety issues.

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the BRfed Rule in an effort to prevent the spread of H3#ection of the first case
BSE in the U.S. in December 2003 resulted in aolditi U.S. government regulations, finished prodexport restrictions by forei
governments, market price fluctuations for the Canys finished products and reduced demand for beef la@ef products
consumers. Even though the export markets for be8f have been significantly opened, most of these markets remain closed to
derived from U.S. beef. Continued concern about BSthe U.S. may result in additional regulatondanarket related challenges that |
affect the Company’s operations or increase the fizmy's operating costs.

The following are recent developments and recenilatory history with respect to BSE in the U.S.:

« Enforcement of the rule Substances Prohibited From Use in Animal Food aed®g(the “Final BSE Rule”)which FDA published ¢
April 25, 2008, began on October 26, 2009. TheaFBSE Rule amended 21 CFR 589.2000 and added ®158B.2001 to prohik
the use of certain cattle materials in all feed &at for animals. Such prohibited cattle materiaiclude: (1) the entire carcas:
cattle positive for BSE; (2) brain and spinal cénaim cattle aged 30 months and older; (3) the ertéircass of cattle aged 30 mo
and older that were not inspected and passed foahiwconsumption and from which the brain and spinall were not or cannot
“effectively” removed; and (4) tallow derived from the listedhpbited cattle materials unless such tallow corgtaia more than 0.1
insoluble impurities. The Final BSE Rule also pbitsi the use of tallow derived from any cattle miaie in feed for cattle and ott
ruminant animals, if such tallow contains more tBalb% insoluble impurities. Except for these mewstrictions on tallow, materi
derived from cattle younger than 30 months of age ot positive for BSE are not affected by theaFBBSE Rule and may still
used in feed and food for animals pursuant to 2R 689.2000. The insoluble impurity restrictions fallow, however, do not affe
its use in feed for poultry, pigs and other maminant animals, unless such tallow was derivethfthe cattle materials prohibited
the Final BSE Rule. After completing previouslybpished drafts, the FDA finalized its Guidance fladustry on compliance with t
Final BSE Rule on May 6, 2009. The Company hasearagpital expenditures and implemented new prosemseé procedures to
compliant with the Final BSE Rule at all of its ogons. Based on the foregoing, while the Compacknowledges th
unanticipated issues may arise as the FDA implesrthiet Final BSE Rule and conducts compliance ingpes; the Company does
currently anticipate that the Final BSE Rule wiivie a significant impact on its operations or fitiahperformance. Notwithstandi
the foregoing, the Company can provide no assurtirateunanticipated costs and/or reductions in maaterial volumes related to 1
Company’s implementation of and compliance with Hieal BSE Rule will not negatively impact the Caang’s operations at
financial performance
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The occurrence of BSE in the U.S. may result initaaidhl finished product export restrictions by éayn governments, market pr

fluctuations for the Company’finished products and/or reduced demand for Bedfbeef products by consumers. Legislative agdlagon
efforts to address BSE concerns and preempt adtitins of feed ingredients, may result in additlodeS. government regulations anc

increase the Company’s operating costs.

The following are recent developments with respe¢tuman food, pet food and animal feed safety:

« The Food and Drug Administration Amendments Ac007 (“the Act”)was signed into law on September 27, 2007 as dt ref

Congressional concern for pet and livestock fodetgafollowing the discovery of adulterated impetpet and livestock food
March 2007. The Act directs the Secretary of Healbhd Human Services (“HHS'§nd the FDA to promulgate significant r
requirements for the pet food and animal feed itrtkss As a prerequisite to new requirements sgetiby the Act, the FDA wi
directed to establish a Reportable Food Regisivliich was implemented on September 8, 2009. Oe 1dn 2009, the FDA issu
“Guidance for Industry: Questions and Answers Reiggrdhe Reportable Food Registry as Establishedthgy Food and Dru
Administration Amendments Act of 2007: Draft Guick” . Stakeholder comments and questions about the Rdgp@Eood Regist
that were submitted to the docket or during pubiigetings were incorporated into a second draftajdd, which was published
September 8, 2009. In this most recent draft quidathe FDA defined a reportable food, which trenafacturer or distributor wot
be required to report in the Reportable Food Regist include materials used as ingredients imahifeeds and pet foods, if ther
reasonable probability that the use of such mdsendl cause serious adverse health consequenadsath to humans or animals. -
impact of the Act and implementation of the Repalga=ood Registry on the Company, if any, will betclear until the FDA finaliz
its guidance and clarifies certain interpretive anforcement issues pertaining to the treatmeminghal feed and pet food under
Act. As of February 24, 2010, the FDAguidance for compliance to the Reportable FoodidRy had not been finalized. T
Company believes that it has adequate procedungade to assure that its finished products are &afise in animal feed and pet f
and does not currently anticipate that the Act héll’e a significant impact on its operations oafficial performance

On November 7, 2007, the FDA released its Foodeletimn Plan (th¢2007 Pla”), which describes strategies the FDA propos
use for improving food and animal feed safety dmal ddditional resources and authorities that, mRBDA’s opinion, are needed
implement the 2007 Plan for imported and domedyiqgabduced ingredients and products. Legislatidihbe necessary for the FL
to obtain these additional authorities. While faowl feed safety issues continue to be debatedobgréss, it has not granted s
new authorities to the FDA as of February 24, 2(

Restrictions imposed by the Companyg credit agreement and future debt agreements mayntit its ability to finance future operations
or capital needs or engage in other business acties that may be in the Company’s interest.

The Company’s credit agreement currently, and &utlebt agreements may, restrict its ability to:

incur additional indebtednes

pay dividends and make other distributions;

make restricted paymen

create liens;

merge, consolidate or acquire other busine:

sell or otherwise dispose of assets;

make investments, loans and advan

guarantee indebtedness or other obligati

enter into operating leases or sale-leasebackhstjoieases, or similar transactions;
make changes to its capital structure;

engage in new lines of business unrelated to threg@ay’s current businesses.
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These terms may negatively impact the Cawgaability to finance future operations, implemetst business strategy, fund
capital needs or engage in other business actiitiat may be in its interest. In addition, ther@any’s credit agreement requires, and fu
indebtedness may require, the Company to maintamptiance with specified financial ratios. Althdughe Company is currently
compliance with the financial ratios and does Hahmn engaging in transactions that may caus€dmpany not to be in compliance with
ratios, its ability to comply with these ratios mlag affected by events beyond its control, inclgdime risks described in the other risk fac
and elsewhere in this report.

A breach of any restrictive covenant or @@mpanys inability to comply with any required financiaitio could result in a defa
under the credit agreement. In the event of aulliefender the credit agreement, the lenders urttectedit agreement may elect to declar
borrowings outstanding, together with accrued amuhid interest and other fees, to be immediate¢yahd payable.

The lenders will also have the right in these winstances to terminate any commitments they haygaeide further financin
including under the revolving credit facility.

If the Company is unable to repay these borrowirgen due, whether as a result of acceleratiorhefdebt or otherwise, t
lenders under the credit agreement will have thghtrio proceed against the collateral, which cassi$ substantially all of the Company’
assets, including real property and cash. If tdelbtedness under the credit agreement were amisgletthe Compang’ assets may
insufficient to repay this indebtedness in full endhose circumstances. Any future credit agreg¢snen other agreement relating to
Companys indebtedness to which the Company may becometyampay include the covenants described above #mef cestrictive covenant

The Company’s business may be negatively impacted he occurrence of any disease correctly or incoectly linked to animals.

The emergence of 2009 H1N1 flu (initially know &wine Flu”)in North America during the spring of 2009 wasiaily linked tc
hogs even though hogs have not been determineel tioebsource of the outbreak in humans. The 2Q091HIu has since spread to affect
human populations in countries throughout the waalthough as of the date of this report its seyesi similar to seasonal flu and it has
little impact on hog production. Management does lrelieve that the 2009 H1N1 flu will have a mateimpact on the operations of -
Company; however, an increase in the severity @009 H1N1 flu or the occurrence of any otheralisethat is correctly or incorrectly link
to animals and which has a negative impact on reasumption or animal production could have a riegdmpact on the volume of r:
materials available to the Company or the demamdife Companys finished products. Another such animal diseasavian influenz
(“H5N1"), or Bird Flu, which is a highly contagious diseastecting chickens and other poultry species thraughAsia and Europe. T
H5N1 strain is highly pathogenic, which has causedcern that a pandemic could occur if the diseaiggates from birds to humans. T
highly pathogenic strain has not been detecteddrtiNor South America as of February 24, 2010, bwt pathogenic strains that are nt
threat to human health have occurred in the U.8.@anada in recent years. The U.S. Departmentgoic@ture (“USDA”) has develope
safeguards to protect the U.S. poultry industrymfrbl5N1. These safeguards are based on import atistis, disease surveillance an
response plan for isolating and depopulating iefédlocks if the disease is detected. Notwithstagdhese safeguards, any significant outk
of Bird Flu in the U.S. could have a negative impatthe Company’s business by reducing demantiiivi.

The Company'’s success is dependent on the Companisy personnel.

The Companyg success depends to a significant extent upon nabew of key employees, including members of st
management. The loss of the services of one oe mbthese key employees could have a materialraeh\affect on the Comparsytesults ¢
operations and prospects. The Company believéstshfuture success will depend in part on itdigbto attract, motivate and retain skil
technical, managerial, marketing and sales persor@@mpetition for these types of skilled persdriéntense and there can be no assul
that the Company will be successful in attractimgtivating and retaining key personnel. The fa&lto hire and retain these personnel ¢
materially adversely affect the Company’s busires$ results of operations.
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In certain markets the Company is highly dependentipon the continued and uninterrupted operation of asingle operating facility.

Darling’s facilities are subject to various federal, statd local environmental and other permitting regmients, depending on tt
locations. Periodically, these permits may beeweid and subject to amendment or withdrawal. A&gfitbns for an extension or renewa
various permits may be subject to challenge by canity and environmental activists and others. Ha ¢vent of a casualty, condemnal
work stoppage, permitting withdrawal or delay dnestunscheduled shutdown involving one of the Comisafacilities, in a majority of tt
Companys markets the Company would utilize a nearby opegdacility to continue to serve its customerdhie affected market. In cert
markets, however, the Company does not have ateeapeerating facilities. In the event of a cagyadbndemnation, work stoppage, permit
withdrawal or delay or other unscheduled shutdowthese markets, the Company may experience amupt®n in its ability to service i
customers and to procure raw materials. This materially and adversely affect the Companjpusiness and results of operations in 1
markets. In addition, after an operating facitiffected by a casualty, condemnation, work stopppgemitting withdrawal or delay or ott
unscheduled shutdown is restored, there could bassarance that customers who in the interim chtmsese alternative disposal serv
would return to use the Company’s services.

The market price of the Company’s common stock codlbe volatile.

The market price of the Compasytommon stock has been subject to volatility andthe future, the market price of
Company’s common stock could fluctuate widely isp@nse to numerous factors, many of which are lbyiom Company control. Thes
factors include, among other things, fluctuationscommaodities prices, actual or anticipated vasiatiin the Companyg’ operating result
earnings releases by the Company, changes in fadaegtimates by securities analysts, sales oftanbal amounts of the Compasycommo
stock, performance of joint venture investmentstkatconditions in the industry and the generatestd the securities markets, governme
legislation or regulation, currency and exchange flactuations, as well as general economic andketaonditions, such as recessions.

The Company'’s ability to pay any dividends on its emmon stock may be limited.

The Company has not paid any dividends oncitsimon stock since January 3, 1989. The Companuirent financin
arrangements permit the Company to pay cash didilem its common stock within limitations definediis credit agreement. Any futt
determination to pay cash dividends on the Comgaagimmon stock will be at the discretion of the @amy’s board of directors and will
based upon the Compasyfinancial condition, operating results, capitafjuirements, plans for expansion, restrictions igeploby an
financing arrangements, and any other factorsttigaboard of directors determines are relevantthEumore, the Compang/ability to pay an
cash or non-cash dividends on its common stociligest to applicable provisions of state law antheterms of its credit agreement.

The Company may issue additional common stock or pferred stock, which could dilute shareholder inteests.
The Company’s certificate of incorporation aamsended, does not limit the issuance of additionaimon stock or the issuance of

preferred stock. As of February 24, 2010, the Camyphas available for issuance 17,370,030 authbbzé unissued shares of common stock
and 1,000,000 authorized but unissued shares fdrped stock that may be issued in series.
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The Company could incur a material weakness in itternal control over financial reporting that requires remediation.

The Companys disclosure controls and procedures were deeméeé &ffective in fiscal 2009. However, any futdadures by th
Company to maintain the effectiveness of its disate controls and procedures, including its intecoatrol over financial reporting, cot
subject the Company to a loss of public confideinciés internal control over financial reportingdaim the integrity of the Compars/public
filings and financial statements and could harm @wempanys operating results or cause the Company to faiintely meet its regulato
reporting obligations. Consequences of a materégdkness such as those listed in the foregoingseatcould have a negative effect or
trading price of the Company’s stock.

Terrorist attacks or acts of war may cause damageradisruption to the Company and its employees, fatities, information systems
security systems, suppliers and customers, which @d significantly impact the Company’s net sales, costs and expenses and finan
condition.

Terrorist attacks, such as those that occurreS8eptember 11, 2001, have contributed to econorstaliility in the U.S., and furth
acts of terrorism, bioterrorism, violence or waulkbaffect the markets in which the Company operatee Compang’ business operations,
Company’s expectations and other forwérdking statements contained or incorporated is taport. The threat of terrorist attacks in th8
since September 11, 2001 continues to create mzomnyoeic and political uncertainties. The potenfitalfuture terrorist attacks, the U.S. i
international responses to terrorist attacks ahdraicts of war or hostility, including the ongoingr in Irag, may cause greater uncertainty
cause the Comparg/business to suffer in ways that cannot currebélypredicted. Events such as those referred toeabould cause
contribute to a general decline in investment viadna, which in turn could reduce the market vatfieshareholder investments. In addit
terrorist attacks, particularly acts of bioterraristhat directly impact the Company’s facilitiestbose of the Company’suppliers or custome
could have an impact on the Company’s sales, sugipdyn, production capability and costs and the gamy’s ability to deliver its finishe
products.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s corporate headquarters is ldcat@51 O’Connor Ridge Boulevard, Suite 300, Ilgvifiexas, in an office facility
where the Company leases approximately 27,000 sdaat.

As of January 2, 2010, the Compan¥5 operating facilities consisted of 25 full sSeevrendering plants, eight yellow grease)
plants, four blending plants, three trap plants edible meat plant, one technical tallow plant dide plant, one pet food plant and
specialty rendering plant. All of these facilitiae owned except for six leased facilities, ongbich was under lease when acquired, bu
subsequently been purchased prior to the filinthisf report on Form 18- In addition, the Company owns or leases 36sfiemstations in tt
U.S., some of which also process yellow greaseteaml These transfer stations serve as colleqimints for routing raw material to t
processing plants set forth below. Some locatsamgice a single business segment while othersceelpoth business segments. The folloy
is a listing of the Company’s operating faciliti®g business segment:
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LOCATION

DESCRIPTION

Combined Rendering and Restaurant Services BusineSgegments

Bellevue, NE
Berlin, WI

Blue Earth, MN
Boise, ID
Clinton, IA
Coldwater, Ml
Collinsville, OK
Dallas, TX
Denver, CC
Des Moines, |A
Detroit, Ml

E. St. Louis, IL
Fresno, CA
Houston, TX
Kansas City, K¢
Los Angeles, C#
Mason City, IL
Newark, NJ
San Francisco, CA
Sioux City, 1A
Tacoma, WA *
Turlock, CA
Wahoo, NE
Wichita, KS

Rendering Business Segment
Denver, CC
Fairfax, MO

Grand Island, NE -
Kansas City, K¢
Kansas City, MC
Kendallville, IN
Lynn Center, IL
Omaha, NE
Omaha, NE
Omaha, NE

Restaurant Services Business Segment

Alma, GA
Calhoun, GA
Chicago, IL
Cleveland, OH **
Ft. Lauderdale, Fl
Indianapolis, IN
No. Las Vegas, N\
San Diego, CA”’
Santa Ana, CA
Smyrna, GA
Tampa, FL

Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:

Edible Meat and Tallov
Protein Blending

Pet Fooc

Protein Blending

Hides

Specialty Renderin
Protein Blending
Renderinc

Protein Blending
Technical Tallown

Yellow Grease/Tra,
Yellow Grease/Tra,
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra,
Yellow Grease/Tra,
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Trap

Trap

Trap

Yellow Grease/Tra

* Property is leased. Rent expense for these depisperties was $1.0 million in the aggregatesod] 2009
** Property was under lease when acquired on Deeer@b, 2009, but has subsequently been purch

Substantially all assets of the Company, includiagl property, are either pledged or mortgaged ddiateral for borrowings under t
Company’s credit agreement.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, claamgd loss contingencies arising in the ordinaryrsewof its business, includi
assertions by certain regulatory and governmergeheies related to permitting requirements andveastewater and storm water discha
from the Company'’s processing facilities.

The Company’s workers compensation, autd general liability policies contain significant diestibles or selinsurec
retentions. The Company estimates and accruesxjiscted ultimate claim costs related to accideotaurring during each fiscal year
carries this accrual as a reserve until these slaira paid by the Company.

As a result of the matters discussed above, thepaay has established loss reserves for insuramsgronmental and litigatic
matters. At January 2, 2010 and January 3, 20@eserves for insurance, environmental and tiigacontingencies reflected on the bale
sheet in accrued expenses and other awrent liabilities for which there are no potehtiasurance recoveries were approximately $
million and $17.3 million, respectively. Managemaftthe Company believes these reserves for coeticigs are reasonable and suffic
based upon present governmental regulations andhiation currently available to management; howetlmre can be no assurance that
costs related to these matters will not exceedeatiestimates. The Company believes that thelietl is remote that any additional liabi
from these lawsuits and claims that may not be /by insurance would have a material effect enfithencial statements.

Lower Passaic River AreaThe Company has been named as a third partydizfé in a lawsuit pending in the Superior Cou
New Jersey, Essex County, stylNew Jersey Department of Environmental Protectidmee Commissioner of the New Jersey Departme
Environmental Protection Agency and the Administraif the New Jersey Spill Compensation Fund, asnBifs, vs. Occidental Chemic
Corporation, Tierra Solutions, Inc., Maxus Energgr@oration, Repsol YPF, S.A., YPF, S.A., YPF Hagfglinnc., and CLH Holdings,
Defendanty(Docket No. L-009868-05) (the “Tierra/Maxus Litigat”). In the Tierra/Maxus Litigation, which was filed @ecember 13, 200
the plaintiffs seek to recover from the defendguatst and future cleanup and removal costs, asasalhspecified economic damages, pur
damages, penalties and a variety of other form®ldf, purportedly arising from the alleged disades into the Passaic River of a partic
type of dioxin and other unspecified hazardous tsuttes. The damages being sought by the plairfftdfa the defendants are likely to
substantial. On February 4, 2009, two of the d#deits, Tierra Solutions, Inc. (“Tierra”) and Maxideergy Corporation (“Maxus”Yiled &
third party complaint against over 300 entitiegluiding the Company, seeking to recover all or @pprtionate share of cleanup and rem
costs, damages or other loss or harm, if any, fuiclvTierra or Maxus may be held liable in the Taévaxus Litigation. Tierra and Max
allege that Standard Tallow Company, an entity thatCompany acquired in 1996, contributed to tiseldrge of the hazardous substa
that are the subject of this case while operatinigrener plant site located in Newark, New Jers&jie Company is investigating thi
allegations, has entered into a joint defense ageeé with many of the other thighrty defendants and intends to defend |
vigorously. Additionally, in December 2009, the rQmany, along with numerous other entities, receimetice from the United Stal
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) that the Camp(as successor-interest to Standard Tallow Company) is considergubtentiall’
responsible party with respect to alleged contatitinain the lower Passaic River area which is pdrthe Diamond Alkali Superfund S
located in Newark, New Jersey. In the letter, ERduested that the Company join a group of otheigzain funding a remedial investigat
and feasibility study at the site. As of the daft¢his report, the Company has not agreed to gpatie in the funding group. The Company’
ultimate liability for investigatory costs, remel@sts and/or natural resource damages in corumewfith the lower Passaic River area ca
be determined at this time; however, as of the dhtbis report, there is nothing that leads thenPany to believe that these matters will ha
material effect on the Company'’s financial posit@iresults of operation.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of segdiders during the quarter ended January 2, 2010.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is traded on thes Nerk Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “BA The following
table sets forth, for the quarters indicated, tigg land low closing sales prices per share forGbenpanys common stock as reported on
NYSE.

Market Price

Fiscal Quarte High Low
20009:
First Quarte $ 6.39 $ 294
Second Quarte $ 8.24 $ 4.14
Third Quarte $ 8.13 $ 6.33
Fourth Quarte $ 8.39 $ 6.80
2008:
First Quarte $14.29 $10.16
Second Quarte $17.29 $12.33
Third Quarte $17.15 $10.79
Fourth Quarte $11.11 $ 3.53

On February 24, 2010, the closing salesepof the Company’s common stock on the NYSE wa31$8The Company has been
notified by its stock transfer agent that as ofriaby 24, 2010, there were 120 holders of recorth@fcommon stock.

The Company has not paid any dividends on its comatock since January 3, 1989 and does not expgety cash dividends
2010. The Company’ current financing arrangements permit the Compangay cash dividends on its common stock withnithtions
defined in its credit agreement. Any future deteation to pay cash dividends on the Compargdmmon stock will be at the discretion of
Company’s board of directors and will be based uffen Companys financial condition, operating results, capitagjuirements, plans 1
expansion, restrictions imposed by any financingregements, and any other factors that the boaddettors determines are relevant.

Set forth below is a line graph comparihg thange in the cumulative total stockholder retum the Compang’ common stoc
with the cumulative total return of the Russell @dfidex, the Dow Jones US Waste and Disposal Seiaidex, and the CSFBgribusines
Index for the period from January 1, 2005 to Japar2010, assuming the investment of $100 on JanLia2005 and the reinvestmen
dividends.

The stock price performance shown on thievdng graph only reflects the change in the Compa stock price relative to t
noted indices and is not necessarily indicativutfre price performance.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
The following table sets forth certain infation as of January 2, 2010 with respect to thm@anys equity compensation ple
(including individual compensation arrangementgjermvhich the Compang’equity securities are authorized for issuancgreagted by i) &
compensation plans previously approved by the Coyipasecurity holders, and ii) all compensation plaos previously approved by t
Company’s security holders. The table includes:
« the number of securities to be issued upon theceseeof outstanding options;

« the weighted-average exercise price of the outstgraptions; and

« the number of securities that remain availablditure issuance under the pla
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(©)

(@) Number of securities
Number of securities (b) remaining available
to be issued upon  Weighted-average for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, warrants options, warrants  (excluding securities
Plan Categor and rights and rights reflected in column (&
Equity compensation plans approved 810,205 (1 $3.75 2,906,738
security holder:
Equity compensation plans najpprovec - - -
by security holder
Tota 810,20t $3.7¢ 2,906,73¢

(1) Includes shares underlying options that have bemred pursuant to the Comp’s 2004 Omnibus Incentive Plan (
“2004 Plan”) as approved by the Compangtockholders. See Note 12 of Notes to Conseliikinancial Statemel
for information regarding the material featureshe 2004 Plar
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table presents selected consolidaéstorical financial data for the periods indicatéthe selected historic
consolidated financial data set forth below shdwgdread in conjunction with “ManagemenDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operationgihd the Consolidated Financial Statements of thepg@my for the three years ended January 2, 20h0iada 3
2009, and December 29, 2007, and the related tutesto.

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005

Fifty-two Fifty-three Fifty-two Fifty-two Fifty-two
Weeks Ended Weeks Endec Weeks Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ende
January 2, January 3, December 29, December 30, December 31
2010 (i) 2009 (h) 2007 2006 (g) 2005

(dollars in themsls, exce
per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:

Net sales $ 59780t $ 807,490 $ 64531 $ 406,99 $ 308,86
Cost of sales and operating exper 440,11 614,70¢ 483,45! 321,41¢ 241,70°
Selling, general and administrative expense: 61,53( 59,76 57,99¢ 45,64¢ 35,24(
Depreciation and amortizatic 25,22¢ 24,43: 23,21 20,68¢ 15,78’
Goodwill impairment(b’ - 15,91« - - -
Operating incomi 70,93¢ 92,67¢ 80,64 19,23¢ 16,13:
Interest expens 3,10¢ 3,01¢ 5,04¢ 7,18¢ 6,157
Other (income)/expense, net (c) 95k (25¢) 57C 4,68 (903)
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes 66,87¢ 89,91¢ 75,03: 7,37 10,87¢
Income tax expens 25,08¢ 35,35¢ 29,49¢ 2,26¢ 3,18¢
Income from continuing operatiol 41,79( 54,56: 45,53 5,107 7,69%
Income/(loss) from discontinued operatio
net of tax - - - - 4€
Net Income $__4179C $ 5456 $ 4553 $ 5100 $ 7,74
Basic earnings per common share $ 051 % 067 $ 05¢ $ 007 $ 0.12
Diluted earnings per common share $ 051 $ 066 $ 05¢ $ 007 $ 0.12
Weighted average shares outstanding 82,14 81,68¢ 81,09: 74,31( 63,92¢
Diluted weighted average shares outstandiny 82,47" 82,24¢ 81,91¢ 75,25¢ 64,52¢
Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA (e $ 96,16 $ 133,020 $ 103,86 $ 39,928 % 31,92
Depreciatior 21,39¢ 19,26¢ 18,33: 16,13« 11,90:
Amortization 3,82¢ 5,167 4,88 4,55 3,88¢
Capital expenditures ( 23,63¢ 31,00¢ 15,55 11,80( 21,40¢
Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $ 75,10 $ 67,44¢ $ 34,388 % 17,86¢ $ 40,40°
Total asset 426,17 394,37! 351,33 320,80t 190,77.
Current portion of lon-term debt 5,00¢ 5,00 6,25( 5,00¢ 5,02¢
Total lon¢-term debt less current portit 27,53¢ 32,50( 37,50( 78,00( 44.,50:
Stockholder’ equity 284,87 236,57¢ 200,98: 151,32! 73,68(

(&) Included in selling, general and administrativeenges is a loss on a legal settlement of approzlyn&®.2 million offset by a gain or
separate legal settlement of approximately $1.0aniin fiscal 2007

(b) Includes a goodwill impairment charge of $15.9 iwoillin the fourth quarter of fiscal 20C

(c) Included in other (income)/expense in fiscal 2086 iwrite-off of deferred loan costs of approximately $2.6lion and early retireme
fees of approximately $1.9 million for the earltirement of senior subordinated notes and ternonatif the previous senior cre
agreement

(d) The Company has prepared the current period earnpey share computations and retrospectively oeljsed the Company’
comparative prior period computations for fiscaD2@nd 2007 to include in basic and diluted easpey share nomested and restrict
share awards considered participating securities r@sult of the Company’January 4, 2009 adoption of the provisions ofRimancia
Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) AccountingaBdards Codification™ (ASC) Topic 26&arnings Per Shargertaining t



whether instruments granted in shhssed payment transactions are participating dexuprior to vesting and therefore, need t
included in the earnings allocation in computingh@&s per share under the two class met
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(e) Adjusted EBITDA is presented here not as an alter@do net income, but rather as a measure ofCibrapanys operating performan
and is not intended to be a presentation in acooelavith generally accepted accounting princip@&AP). Since EBITDA is nc
calculated identically by all companies, the présgon in this report may not be comparable to ¢hdisclosed by other compani

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated below and represefits, any relevant period, net income/(loss) pluprdeiation and amortizatic
goodwill and longlived asset impairment, interest expense, (incdoss)/from discontinued operations, net of tax, imeaax provisio
and other income/(expense). The Company beliedgst@d EBITDA is a useful measure for investorsamse it is frequently used
securities analysts, investors and other intergstéeties in the evaluation of companies in our stdu In addition, management belie
that adjusted EBITDA is useful in evaluating oulengiing performance compared to that of other camegain our industry because
calculation of adjusted EBITDA generally eliminateg effects of financing, income taxes and centeincash and other items that n
vary for different companies for reasons unrelatedverall operating performance. As a result,Goepanys management uses adju:
EBITDA as a measure to evaluate performance andttoer discretionary purposes. However, adjustBTBA is not a recognize
measurement under U.S. GAAP, should not be coreidas an alternative to net income as a measwperéting results or to cash fl
as a measure of liquidity, and is not intendede@Ipresentation in accordance with GAAP. Alsagessiadjusted EBITDA is not calcula
identically by all companies, the presentatiorhiis teport may not be comparable to those disclogeather companie:

In addition to the foregoing, management also wsesill use adjusted EBITDA to measure compliandéhweertain financial covenar
under the Compang’credit agreement. The amounts shown below fiustetl EBITDA differ from the amounts calculatedden similarly
titled definitions in the Compar’'s credit agreement, as those definitions permih&sradjustment to reflect certain other -cash charge:

Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted EBITDA

Decembe Decembe Decembel

January 2 January 3 29, 30, 31,
(dollars in thousand: 2010 2009 2007 2006 2005
Net income $41,79C $5456: $4553: $ 5107 $ 7,741
Depreciation and amortizatic 25,22¢ 24,43: 23,21« 20,68¢ 15,78"
Goodwill impairment - 15,91« - - -
Interest expens 3,10¢ 3,01¢ 5,04t 7,18¢ 6,15
(Income)/loss from discontinue operations
net of tax - - - - (46)
Income tax expens 25,08¢ 35,35¢ 29,49¢ 2,26¢ 3,18¢
Other (income)/expen: 95k (25¢) 57C 4,682 (903)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 96,16F  $133,020  $103,86. $ 39,92F $ 31,92

( Excludes the capital assets acquired as part efideg substantially all of the assets of NBP opagximately $51.9 million in fiscal 20t
and API Recycling used cooking oil collection business of $3.4imillin fiscal 2008. Also excludes the capital é&ssequired in fisc

2009 from Boca Industries, Inc. and Sanimax USA, &f approximately $8.0 millior
(g) Fiscal 2006 includes 33 weeks of contribution fribra acquired NBP asse

(h) Fiscal 2008 includes 19 weeks of contribution fritlva API Recycling used cooking oil collection biesia.

(i) Fiscal 2009 includes 45 weeks of contribution fritv@ acquired assets of Boca Industries, Inc. ared dot include any contribution fr
assets acquired from Sanimax USA, Inc. as the aitigui occurred on December 31, 20
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ITEM MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
7.

The following Management'’s Discussion amblysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofieres contains forwaréboking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiese Tompany’s actual results could differ materiditym those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of certain facioduding those set forth in Item 1A of this reporider the heading “Risk Factors.”

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctwith the historical consolidated financial staents and notes ther
included in Item 8 of this report. The Companyiganized along two operating business segmentgjdRimg and Restaurant Services.
Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesy

Overview

The Company is a leading provider of remdgrrecycling and recovery solutions to the ndsofood industry. The Compa
collects and recycles animal Ipyeducts and used cooking oil from food servical@&hments and provides grease trap cleaningcsenti
many of the same establishments. The Company sgesgaw materials at 45 facilities located throughhe U.S. into finished products s
as protein (primarily meat and bone meal, “MBM3gllow (primarily bleachable fancy tallow, “BFT")elflow grease (“YG")and hides. Tt
Company sells these products nationally and intemally, primarily to producers of livestock feealeo-chemicals, biduels, soaps, pet foo
and leather goods for use as ingredients in thenlycts or for further processing. All of the Caanp’s finished products are commodities
are priced relative to competing commodities, prilpaorn, soybean oil and soybean meal. Finispietiuct prices will track as to nutritiol
and industry value to the ultimate customer’s usi® product. For additional information on then@pany’s business, see Item 1, “Business,’
and for additional information on the Company’sreegts, see Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated FiahStatements.

In fiscal 2009, the Company endured many chghs. Earnings stabilized after a volatile fougttarter of fiscal 2008 resulting
the third best year in the Compagy27 year history. Driving this performance wienproved and historically high finished productwed fo
MBM. Raw material tonnage declined significantlgay over year driven by lower cattle, hog and pgufiaughters. Restaurant gre
volumes declined as well driven by continued ecoicochallenges in the U.S. The continued weak @& world economy and result
decline in consumer confidence has reduced meaucoption, leading the Company's suppliers to dustaughters. On a positive note,
Company saw a significant reduction in its enenggut costs for both natural gas and diesel. Adiily, the Company was able to t
effective cost cutting measures to offset the lora@r material tonnage.

Operating income decreased by $21.8 milliorfisnal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008. The contiguchallenges faced by !

Company indicate there can be no assurance thaatoperesults achieved by the Company in fiscdd®@re indicative of future operat
performance of the Company.

Summary of Critical Issues Faced by the Company diing Fiscal 2009

« Lower raw material volumes were collected from digsp during fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 200&nagement believes -
decline in the general performance of the U.S. eognand weaker year over year slaughter ratesémthat processing indus
contributed to a decline in raw material volumefiembed by the Company during the year. The Comijmadecline in raw mater
volume was impacted by the closure of smaller npeatessor operations and the reduced overrun voamdeproduction cutbac
from larger integrated processors, which has oeduas a result of the current challenging econcenidironment. The financi
impact of lower raw material volumes is summaribetbw in Results of Operatior

« Energy prices for natural gas and diesel fuel dediduring fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2@&8pverall lower energy co

continued to decline in response to a decline ingléneral performance of the U.S. and global ecgndrower energy prices we
favorable to the Compa’s cost of sales. The financial impact of lowerrggeosts is summarized below in Results of Openat
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Lower finished product prices for BFT and YG as pamed to fiscal 2008 are a result of the declinkath corn and soybean oil pri
over the same period, as well as continuing inktalim the U.S. economy and world economy. Fiedhproduct prices for MBM al
soybean meal, its principal competing commoditydpiat, were comparable to the prior period due todgexport demand f
proteins. The decline in overall finished prodpdtes was unfavorable to the Compangales revenue, but this unfavorable r
was patrtially offset by the positive impact on renaterial cost, due to the Compasiyjormula pricing arrangements with raw matt
suppliers, which index raw material cost to thecgsi of finished product derived from the raw maleriThe financial impact

finished goods prices on sales revenue and rawrialatest is summarized below in Results of Operati Comparative sales pi
information for BFT, YG and MBM, the Company's pripal products, as derived from the Jacobsen indaxestablished tradi
exchange publisher used by management, is listedvbe Summary of Key Indicator:

Summary of Critical Issues and Known Trends Faced pthe Company in Fiscal 2009 and Thereafter

Critical Issues and Challenges

The decline of the general performance of the ©cenomy has forced the Compasiyaw material suppliers to reduce their volu
during fiscal 2009. If this volume reduction contes or accelerates, there could be a negativecingrathe Companyg’ ability tc
obtain raw materials for the Comp¢ s operations

The Company consumes significant volumes of natgesd to operate boilers in its plants, which geeesteam to heat r:
material. Natural gas prices represent a sigmficast of factory operation included in cost ofesa The Company also consul
significant volumes of diesel fuel to operate leef of tractors and trucks used to collect rawemak Diesel fuel prices represel
significant component of cost of collection expenseluded in cost of sales. Although prices fatunal gas and diesel fuel remai
relatively low during fiscal 2009 as compared toer history, these prices can be volatile andetlvan be no assurance that tl
prices will not increase in the near future, thgredpresenting an ongoing challenge to the Compaaperating results for futt
periods. A material increase in energy pricesnitural gas and diesel fuel over a sustained pefidisne could materially adverse
affect the Compar’'s business, financial condition and results of apens.

Finished product prices for BFT and YG commoditiesreased during fiscal 2009 as compared to fid@@8. No assurance can
given that this decrease in commaodity prices fof Bfad YG will not continue in the future. Finishptbduct prices for MBM ar
other competing proteins during fiscal 2009 welatieely flat as compared to fiscal 2008; howevaw, assurance can be given
protein prices will continue at the same levelltufe periods. A future decrease in commoditygsjcoupled with a further decl
of the general performance of the U.S. economy thedinability of some consumers and companies taiokcredit due to tt
continuing lack of liquidity in the financial martge could have a significant impact on the Compamgrnings for fiscal 2010 and i
future periods

Worldwide Government Energy Policies

As previously noted, prices for the Comp’s finished products may be impacted by worldwideegpment policies relating
renewable fuels and greenhouse gas emissions,ragthms such as RFS2 and tax credits for biofuetls im the U.S. and abroad n
positively impact the demand for the Company’sdfired products. See the risk factor entitled “Tlenlanys business may
affected by worldwide government energy policiesti’ page 10, for more information regarding RFS2 had changes to the
worldwide government policies could have a negaitiweact on the Compa’s business and results of operatic

Other Food Safety and Regulatory Issues

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the BSted Rule prohibiting the use of mammalian proteirihh some exceptions,
feeds for cattle, sheep and other ruminant anirfi&s.intent of this rule is to prevent the spreBB®E, commonly referred to agnac
cow disease.”As previously noted, the FDA has amended the BS&dHeule, which the FDA began enforcing on Octob&
2009. Management has followéhis proposed amendment throughout its historyralento assess and minimize the impact ¢
implementation on the Company. See the risk faetditled “The Compang’ business may be affected by the impact of BSE
other food safety issuesheginning on page 12, for more information abouEB#®cluding the Final BSE Rule, and other foodety
issues and their potential effects on the Compitjyding the effects of potential additional gawerent regulations, finished prod
export restrictions by foreign governments, magkéte fluctuations for finished goods, reduced dedhor beef and beef products
consumers and increases in operating costs rggfiiim BSE-related concern:
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Even though the export markets for U.S. beef haantsignificantly re@pened, most of these markets remain closed to MBM ec
from U.S. beef. Continued concern about BSE inUb®. may result in additional regulatory and maretated challenges that n
affect the Company’s operations and/or increas€tirapany’s operating costs.

These challenges indicate there can be no assutzatciéscal 2009 operating results are indicatifféuture operating performance of
the Company.

Results of Operations

Fifty-two Week Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010F&cal 2009") Compared to Fiftythree Week Fiscal Year Ended January 3, 2!
(“Fiscal 2008")

Fiscal 2008 includes an additional week of operatiarhich occurs every five to six years. In Fis2@08 the additional week increased |
net sales and costs by approximately $10 milliothah immaterial effect on operating income andimatme.

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2009 ResLst

Principal factors that contributed to a $21.8 millidecrease in operating income, which are disdussgreater detail in the followil
section, were:

. Lower raw material volumes, ai
. Lower finished product price

These decreases to operating income were partiiigt by:

. Lower raw material cost
. Lower energy costs, primarily related to naturad gad diesel fuel, ar
. Prior year goodwill impairment.

Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2009 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtansiand compares to previous periods as an iraicdiproblems or improvemel
in operating results include:

. Finished product commodity price

. Raw material volume,

. Production volume and related yield of finishedduret,

. Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYMBdex and diesel fuel,
. Collection fees and collection operating expensd, a

. Factory operating expenses.

These indicators and their importance are disculssxv in greater detail.
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Finished Product Commodity PricesPrices for finished product commodities that thenpany produces are reported each bus
day on the Jacobsen index, an established tradiogaage price publisher. The Jacobsen index repodustry sales from the prior day’
activity by product. The Jacobsen index includgsorted prices for MBM and BFT (which are end pratduwf the Compang’ Renderin
Segment) and YG (which is an end product of the famy’s Restaurant Services Segment). The Company régnianitors Jacobsen ind
reports on MBM, BFT and YG because they provide adlydindication of the Compang’ revenue performance against business
benchmarks. Although the Jacobsen index providesuseful metric of performance, the Comparfinished products are commodities
compete with other commodities such as corn, saybéand soybean meal on nutritional and functimadues and therefore actual pricing
the Companys finished products, as well as competing prodwets,be quite volatile. In addition, the Jacohiselex does not provide forwe
or future period pricing. The Jacobsen prices egidtelow are for delivery of the finished produttaaspecified location. Although 1t
Company'’s prices generally move in concert withorégd Jacobsen prices, the Comparsttual sales prices for its finished products reay
significantly from the Jacobsen index because dively timing differences and because the Compardiished products are deliverec
multiple locations in different geographic regiomsich utilize different price indexes. Average dlasen prices (at the specified delivery pc
for Fiscal 2009, compared to average Jacobsenspiacd-iscal 2008 follow:

%

Avg. Price Avg. Price Increase/ Increase/
Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200¢ (Decrease (Decrease
Rendering Segmer
MBM (lllinois) $338.09/tor $333.17 /tor $4.92/ton 1.5%
BFT (Chicago; $ 25.21/cwi $ 34.21 /cw $ (9.00)/cwi (26.3)%
Restaurant Services Segme
YG (lllinois) $ 20.73/cwi $ 27.75 [cw $ (7.02)/cwt (25.3)%

The overall decrease in average prices for BFT &dof the finished products the Company sells haduafavorable impact «
revenue that was partially offset by a positive &tipto the Compang’raw material cost resulting from formula priciagangements, whi
compute raw material cost based upon the pricanishfed product.

Raw Material Volume. Raw material volume represents the quantity (poudsaw material collected from Rendering Segr
suppliers, such as butcher shops, grocery storésraiependent beef, pork and poultry processord, femm Restaurant Services Segn
suppliers, such as food service establishmentsv mRaterial volumes from the ComparyRendering Segment suppliers provide an indic
of the future production of MBM and BFT finishedopiucts, and raw material volumes from the Compaméstaurant Services Segn
suppliers provide an indication of the future pratitan of YG finished products.

Production Volume and Related Yield of $fieid Product. Finished product production volumes are the endltred the
Companys production processes, and directly impact goeddable for sale, and thus become an importantpmrent of sales revenue.
addition, physical inventory turn-over is impactey both the availability of credit to the Compasycustomers and suppliers and red
market demand which can lower finished product megy values. Yield on production is a ratio obguction volume (pounds), divided
raw material volume (pounds) and provides an irtdhoaof effectiveness of the Compasyproduction process. Factors impacting yiel
production include quality of raw material and waneather during summer months, which rapidly degsadw material. The quantities
finished products produced varies depending onrtitxeof raw materials used in production. For exempaw material from cattle yields mi
fat and protein than raw material from pork or pul Accordingly, the mix of finished products piced by the Company can vary fi
quarter to quarter depending on the type of rawentbeing received by the Company. The Compaamnot increase the productior
protein or fat based on demand since the typevofmaterial will dictate the yield of each finishprbduct.

Energy Prices for Natural Gas quoted on M¢MEX Index and Diesel FuelNatural gas and heating oil commodity prices
guoted each day on the NYMEX exchange for futuretim® of delivery of natural gas and diesel fuehe Prices are important to the Comp
because natural gas and diesel fuel are major coemp® of factory operating and collection costs aatiiral gas and diesel fuel prices ar
indicator of achievement of the Company’s businsas.
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Collection Fees and Collection OperatingpErse. The Company charges collection fees which are deduin net sales. Ee
month the Company monitors both the collection ¢barged to suppliers, which is included in net sadnd collection expense, whict
included in cost of sales. The importance of nwing collection fees and collection expense is thay provide an indication of achievenr
of the Companys business plan. Furthermore, management moritdlection fees and collection expense so thatGbmpany can consic
implementing measures to mitigate against unforegezeases in these expenses.

Factory Operating ExpensesThe Company incurs factory operating expenses waiehincluded in cost of sales. Each montt
Company monitors factory operating expense. Theoitance of monitoring factory operating expensehat it provides an indication
achievement of the Compamybusiness plan. Furthermore, when unforeseemsgpacreases occur, the Company can consider rimepin
measures to mitigate such increases.

Net Sales.The Company collects and processes animgbrbgucts (fat, bones and offal), including hidesd aised restaure
cooking oil to principally produce finished prodsiaif MBM, BFT, YG and hides. Sales are signifitamtffected by finished goods pric
quality and mix of raw material, and volume of ravaterial. Net sales include the sales of prodditéshed goods, collection fees, fees
grease trap services, and finished goods purctfasegsale.

During Fiscal 2009, net sales were $597.8 millisncampared to $807.5 million during Fiscal 200&ie Tdecrease in Render
Segment sales of $126.5 million and the decreadReistaurant Services Segment sales of $83.2 midlzmounted for the $209.7 milli
decrease in sales. The decrease in net salesriwasily due to the following (in millions of dolts):

Restaurar

Renderinc Service Corporat Total

Decrease in finished product pric $ (59.0 $ (405 $ = $ (99.9

Decrease in raw material volur (64.9) (9.9 - (74.7)

Other sales (decreases)/incree (24.¢€) 4.7 - (29.9
Purchases of finished product"

resale (8.7 (2.7 - (10.§)

Decrease in yiel (4.5) (0.9 - (5.4

Product transfer 34.€ (34.6) — -

$ (126.5 $ 832 $ = $ (209.7)

Further detail regarding the $126.5 million dececmssales in the Rendering Segment and the $8Biamtdecrease in sales in the Restat
Services Segment is as follows:

Rendering

Finished Product Prices Lower prices in the overall commodity market fmrn and soybean oil, which are competing fat8kT,
negatively impacted the Company'’s finished proguates. $59.0 million of the decrease in RendeBegment sales is due to a market-
wide decrease in BFT prices (fat) offset slightly & marketwide increase in MBM prices (protein). The marlletlines were due
changes in supply/demand in both the domestic apdremarkets for commodity fats, including BFT.

Raw Material Volume: Production cutbacks from integrated processoid @osures of midized processor operations as a rest
difficult economic conditions for consumers genlgradnd in the food service industry resulted in éswaw material available
process. The lower raw material from Renderingn8ag suppliers, which is processed into MBM and BiRished products, decrea:
sales by $64.3 million. As noted elsewhere, MBM & T are derived principally from bones, fat arffAlorom the Rendering Segmesat’
suppliers. The proportions of bones, fat and ddfa relatively stable, but will vary from produarti run to production run based on
source and whether the material is principally bpefk or poultry material. The Company has nditghtio alter the proportion of bont
fat and offal offered to the Company by the Comparsuppliers and therefore we cannot meaningfutisr dhe mix of MBM and BF
resulting from the Company’s rendering processriiguFiscal 2009, the Comparsysuppliers in the Rendering Segment were negg
impacted by the continued weak economy and dedfineonsumer confidence, resulting in a reductionmeat consumption anc
corresponding reduction in the supply of raw matsravailable to the Company.
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Other Sales The $24.6 million decrease in other Renderingn$ent sales was primarily due to lower prices aoldmes on hides. Hi
volumes were down due to lower dead stock voluntelawer slaughter rates at beef processors, asasg¢thie Compang’decision not
skin as many hides since the cost to process tleshiias more than the value of the finished prodBdces were impacted by diffic
economic conditions and decreased demand for legiteds. The lower dead stock volume was due pilynt unseasonably go
weather in Fiscal 2009.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resalthe Company purchased less finished productdsale from third party suppliers in Fis
2009 compared to the same period in Fiscal 20088y million. Lower domestic and export demand ffoished products reduced
need to source third party product.

Yield : The raw material processed in Fiscal 2009 cospan the same period of Fiscal 2008 yielded lgdshied product for sale a
reduced sales by $4.5 million. The reduction itileills by the packing industry during the yempacted yields since cattle offal i
higher yielding material than pork and poultry dffa

Product Transfers Depending on the Company’s customdisished product quality specifications and the lgyaf raw material th
Company receives from meat processors and othercemufrom time to time BFT material must be dovengd and sold
YG. Generally, product transfers occur when BETowngraded and the product is reclassified as Witich is a Restaurant Servi
Segment product. Product transfers from the Rémgi&egment to the Restaurant Services Segmentlessén Fiscal 2009 comparec
the same period in Fiscal 2008. When less progutansferred from the Rendering Segment to thetdReant Services Segment, n
BFT is available for sale by the Rendering Segnsemnt YG sales will decrease correspondingly. Theeimsed BFT available in Fis
2009 compared to Fiscal 2008 resulted in an inereaRendering Segment sales of $34.6 million.

Restaurant Services

Finished Product Prices Lower prices in the commodity markets for conmgtfats and corn negatively impacted the CompargG
finished product prices. The $40.5 million decreimsRestaurant Services Segment sales was dusigmificant decrease in prices for
and competing commodity products. The market deslivere due to weaker demand in both the domeastiexport markets for YG.

Raw Material Volume: Difficult economic conditions in the food sergidndustry impacted the volume of raw material kdée fol
collection. Lower raw material volume from usedking oil suppliers decreased YG sales by $9.8ionill As noted elsewhere, YG
produced by the Company’s Restaurant Services Segme result of refining used cooking oil coléetfrom the Compang’food servic
establishment suppliers. During Fiscal 2009, then@anys suppliers in the Restaurant Services Segment megyatively impacted by t
continued weak economy and decline in consumeridende, resulting in reduced patronage of restasiréonger usage by restaurant
cooking oil and a corresponding reduction in thepdy of used cooking oil available to the Company.

Other Sales The $4.7 million increase in other sales wamprily from the current year acquisitions in thesR@rant Services Segment.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resalthe $2.1 million decrease in sales resulted ftbenCompany purchasing less finished prc
for resale from third party suppliers in Fiscal 2G8s compared to the same period in Fiscal 2008h Mss demand for finished produ
the Company’s need to source additional third pproduct for sales decreased.

Yield : The Company believes that YG yields have dedlibecause of the current economic environmenténU!s. that has caused
food service industry to use their current oil lengvhich decreases the volumes and quality of iogoil picked up from suppliers. TI
lowers yields and lowers the amount of finisheddpiei available for sale resulting in reduced safe®0.9 million.

Product Transfers Product transfers from the Rendering Segmetitddrestaurant Services Segment were less in 2668l as compar
to the same period in Fiscal 2008. The reductiomprioduct transfers was a result of less BFT (adeéeng Segment product) be
downgraded and transferred to the Restaurant Ssn8egment to be sold as YG in Fiscal 2009 comparddscal 2008. As a resl
Restaurant Services Segment sales were reducesiby fillion in Fiscal 2009.
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Cost of Sales and Operating Expense€ost of sales and operating expenses includedheof raw material, the cost of proc
purchased for resale and the cost to collect ratemad which includes diesel fuel and processiogts including natural gas. The Comp
utilizes both fixed and formula pricing methods the purchase of raw materials. Fixed prices ajastetl where possible for change
competition. Significant changes in finished goausrket conditions impact finished product inveptealues, while raw materials purcha
under formula prices are correlated with speciiicshed goods prices. Energy costs, particulardsel fuel and natural gas, are signific
components of the Compaisycost structure. The Company has the abilityutm lalternative fuels at a majority of its plartshelp manage tl
Company'’s price exposure to volatile energy markets

During Fiscal 2009, cost of sales and operatingeesps were $440.1 million as compared to $614.Tiomilduring Fisce
2008. Decreases in Rendering Segment cost of aatesperating expenses of $108.5 million and gerehse in Restaurant Services Seg
cost of sales and operating expenses of $67.0omilliccounted for a majority of the $174.6 millioectkase in cost of sales and oper:
expenses. The decrease in cost of sales and iogegapenses was primarily due to the followingrtilions of dollars):

Restaurar

Renderin Service Corporat Total
Decrease in raw material co: $ (56.9 $ (25.6 $ = $ (82.0
Decreases in energy costs, prima
natural ga< and diesel fue (24.9) (3.2 (0.3 (27.9)
Other expense (decreases)/increi (28.€) 0.9 1.2 (26.7)
Decrease in raw material volur (19.9) (2.9) - (22.5)
Purchases of finished product for
resale (10.€) (1.8 - (12.9
Multi-employer pension plans me
withdrawal termination (3.2 - - (3.2
Product transfer 34.€ (34.€) —

$ (108.5 $ (67.0 $ 08 $(174.6

Further detail regarding the $108.5 million deceefrs cost of sales and operating expenses in tmeld®img Segment and the $67.0 mil
decrease in the Restaurant Services Segmenti@asd:

Rendering

Raw Material Costs In Fiscal 2009 approximately 53% of the Comparnghnual volume of raw material was acquired ofioanfula
basis. Under a formula arrangement, the cost wfmaterial is tied to the finished product market MBM and BFT. Since finishe
product prices were lower in Fiscal 2009 as congpée-iscal 2008, the raw material costs decrebgeb6.4 million.

Energy Costs: Both natural gas and diesel fuel are major campts of collection and factory operating coststite Renderin
Segment. The lower energy costs of $24.4 millieifect the lower cost of natural gas and diesel dueing Fiscal 2009 as comparec
Fiscal 2008.

Other Expense Other expense decreased $28.8 million in costatés and operating expenses principally duewerdiide prices ar
volumes. Hide volumes were down due to lower d#adk volumes and lower slaughter rates at beefgzsors, as well as the Company’
decision not to skin as many hides since the ooptdcess the hides was more than the value dirtisbed product. Prices were impac
by difficult economic conditions and decreased daurfar leather goods. The lower dead stock volwae due primarily to unseasone
good weather in Fiscal 2009.

Raw Material Volume Production cutbacks from integrated processats dosures of migized processor operations resulted in I
raw material available to be processed. The loaswrmaterial reduced the cost of sales by $19.liamil
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Purchases of Finished Product for Resalthe Company purchased less finished productdsale from third party suppliers in Fis
2009 compared to the same period in Fiscal 200810y6 million.

Product Transfers In Fiscal 2009, less BFT failed to meet custorfieished product quality specifications than irsdédl 2008, ar
therefore less BFT was downgraded to YG value samsferred from the Rendering Segment to the Resta$ervices Segment. Si
the Rendering Segment had relatively more BFT alskel for sale in Fiscal 2009, cost of sales relégoroduct transfers increased $:
million.

Restaurant Services

Raw Material Costs YG finished product prices were lower in thedais2009 as compared to Fiscal 2008, which causedaw materi
costs to decrease by $25.6 million.

Raw Material Volume: Difficult economic conditions in the food sergiéndustry impacted the volume of raw material ke tc
collect. Lower raw material volume from used caowkoil suppliers decreased cost of sales by $2l®&mi

Energy Costs Diesel fuel and natural gas are major componef¢sllection and operating costs to the Restausanvices Segment. T
lower energy costs of $3.1 million reflect the laoveest of diesel fuel and natural gas during Fig€l9 as compared to the same peri
Fiscal 2008.

Other Expense The $0.9 million increase in other expense wamarily due to current year acquisitions in thesRerant Servic
Segment that more than offset efforts by the oeratgroups to reduce collection expense.

Purchases of Finished Product for ResalEhe $1.8 million decrease in cost of sales @nfrpurchasing less finished product for re
from third party suppliers.

Product Transfers Because less BFT was downgraded for failure @etraustomer specifications and subsequently sottido Restaura
Services Segment as YG in Fiscal 2009 compareist@l2008, the cost of sales was reduced by $8#4lién year over year.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenses wéteSmillion during Fiscal 200
a $1.7 million increase (2.8%) from $59.8 millionrohg Fiscal 2008. The increase in selling, gelnena administrative expenses is prime
due to the following (in millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderini Service: Corporati Total
Other expense (decreases)/increi  $ (0.2 $ (0.2 $ 2C $ 16
Consulting fee: - - 0.7 0.7
Payroll and related benefits expel 0.8 0.8 (1.2 0.5
Bad debt expense (decreas:
increases (0.9 (0.5) 0.2 (1.)

$ (0.2 $ 0.1 $ 18 $ 17

Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increasefl ollion (3.3%) to $25.2 million durir
Fiscal 2009 as compared to $24.4 million duringc&i2008. The increase in depreciation and anairda is primarily due to an over
increase in depreciable capital assets on the talstmeet.

Interest Expense.Interest expense was $3.1 million during Fig209 compared to $3.0 million during Fiscal 2008jrecrease (
$0.1 million, primarily due to an increase in fdesm the amended credit agreement that was partidfset by a decrease in outstant
balance related to the Company’s debt.

Other Income/ExpenseOther expense was $1.0 million in Fiscal 20081 million increase from other income of $0.3lion
in Fiscal 2008. The increase in other expenseimsgily due to a decrease in interest income @nQGbmpanys interest bearing accounts
to lower rates and increases in other pperating expenses, which includes approximatel$ #tillion of costs associated with the expe
renewable diesel joint venture project.
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Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $28libn for Fiscal 2009, compared to income tax expe of $35.
million recorded in Fiscal 2008, a decrease of $Hfillion, primarily due to a decrease in fiee- earnings of the Company in Fiscal 2009.
effective tax rate for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 26987.5 % and 39.3%, respectively. The differefioen the federal statutory rate of 35%
Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 is primarily due tdestaxes.

Results of Operations

Fifty-three Week Fiscal Year Ended January 3, 20Q0%iscal 2008”) Compared to Fiftypwo Week Fiscal Year Ended December 29, Z
(“Fiscal 2007")

Fiscal 2008 includes an additional week of operativhich occurs every five to six years. In Fis2@08 the additional week increased |
net sales and costs by approximately $10 milliothah immaterial effect on operating income andimatme.

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2008 Restst

Principal factors that contributed to a $12.1 roillincrease in operating income, which are disaugsgreater detail in the followil
section, were:

. Higher finished product prices.
These increases to operating income were parbéfitet by:

. Higher raw material cost

. Goodwill impairment,

. Higher energy costs, primarily related to natuis gnd diesel fuel, and
. Higher payroll and incentive-related benefits.

Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2008 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtasiand compares to previous periods as an irdicfproblems or improvemel
in operating results include:

. Finished product commodity prices,

. Raw material volume,

. Production volume and related yield of finishedduret,

. Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYMEd&ex and diesel fuel,
. Collection fees and collection operating expened, a

. Factory operating expenst

These indicators and their importance are discusskxv in greater detail.

Finished Product Commodity PricesPrices for finished product commodities that thempeany produces are reported each bus
day on the Jacobsen index, an established tradicigaage price publisher. The Jacobsen index repodustry sales from the prior day’
activity by product. The Jacobsen index includgsorted prices for MBM and BFT (which are end pratduwf the Compang’ Renderin
Segment) and YG (which is an end product of the @amg’'s Restaurant Services Segment). The Company rggmanitors Jacobsen ind
reports on MBM, BFT and YG because they provideadlydindication of the Compang’ revenue performance against business
benchmarks. Although the Jacobsen index provigesuseful metric of performance, the Companfinished products are commodities
compete with other commodities such as corn, saybéand soybean meal on nutritional and functiamadues and therefore actual pricing
the Companys finished products, as well as competing prodwets,be quite volatile. In addition, the Jacohiselex does not provide forwe
or future period pricing. The Jacobsen prices egidielow are for delivery of the finished produttaaspecified location. Although 1t
Company'’s prices generally move in concert withorégd Jacobsen prices, the Compargctual sales prices for its finished products reay
significantly from the Jacobsen index because dively timing differences and because the Compadiished products are deliverec
multiple locations in different geographic regiomisich utilize different price indexes. Average diasen prices (at the specified delivery pc
for Fiscal 2008, compared to average Jacobsensgiacd-iscal 2007 follow:
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Avg. Price Avg. Price %

Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 2007 Increase Increase
Rendering Segmer
MBM (lllinois) $333.17/tor $233.51 /tor $99.66/tor 42.7%
BFT (Chicago! $ 34.21/cwi $ 27.89 /cw $ 6.32/cwi 22.7%
Restaurant Services Segme
YG (lllinois) $ 27.75/cwi $ 21.62 /cw $ 6.13/cwi 28.4%

The increase in average prices of the finighediucts the Company sells had a favorable impacewvenue that was partially off
by a negative impact to the Companyaw material cost resulting from formula pricimgangements, which compute raw material cost |
upon the price of finished product.

The global economic environment in the fbuguarter caused the Compasfinished product commodity prices to dec
significantly subsequent to the third quarter ofcal 2008 as commodity prices remained volatilee Tollowing table shows the averi
Jacobsen index for the fourth quarter of Fiscal@f@® MBM, BFT and YG as compared to Fiscal 2007.

Avg. Price Avg. Price
4th Quarter 4th Quarter %
2008 2007 Decreast Decreast
Rendering Segmer
MBM (lllinois) $261.56/tor $270.77 [tor $ (9.21/ton (3.4%)
BFT (Chicago; $ 17.59/cwi $ 30.68 /cw $(13.09/cwt) (42.7%)
Restaurant Services Segme
YG (lllinois) $ 14.76/cw $ 23.45 /cw $ (8.69/cwt) (37.1%)

Raw Material Volume. Raw material volume represents the quantity (pouofigaw material collected from Rendering Segr
suppliers, such as butcher shops, grocery storésralependent beef, pork and poultry processord, feom Restaurant Services Segn
suppliers, such as food service establishmentsv Raterial volumes from the CompasyRendering Segment suppliers provide an indic
of the future production of MBM and BFT finishedopucts, and raw material volumes from the Compamestaurant Services Segn
suppliers provide an indication of the future pretitan of YG finished products.

Production Volume and Related Yield of $tieid Product. Finished product production volumes are the endltresf the
Companys production processes, and directly impact goeddable for sale, and thus become an importantpmorant of sales revenue.
addition, physical inventory turn-over is impactey both the availability of credit to the Compasiycustomers and suppliers and red
market demand which can lower finished product imegy values. Yield on production is a ratio obguction volume (pounds), divided
raw material volume (pounds) and provides an irtdhoaof effectiveness of the Compasyproduction process. Factors impacting yiel
production include quality of raw material and wanmather during summer months, which rapidly degsaciw material. The quantities
finished products produced varies depending onrtixeof raw materials used in production. For exénpaw material from cattle yields m
fat and protein than raw material from pork or pul Accordingly, the mix of finished products piced by the Company can vary fi
quarter to quarter depending on the type of rawenwtbeing received by the Company. The Compamnot increase the productior
protein or fat based on demand since the typevoimaterial will dictate the yield of each finishprbduct.

Energy Prices for Natural Gas quoted on MeMEX Index and Diesel FuelNatural gas and heating oil commaodity prices
qguoted each day on the NYMEX exchange for futuratin® of delivery of natural gas and diesel fuehe Prices are important to the Comp
because natural gas and diesel fuel are major coemp® of factory operating and collection costs aatiral gas and diesel fuel prices ar
indicator of achievement of the Company’s businzas.
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Collection Fees and Collection Operating Expendene Company charges collection fees which are deun net sales. Each mao
the Company monitors both the collection fee chatgesuppliers, which is included in net sales, aolfection expense, which is includec
cost of sales. The importance of monitoring caitet fees and collection expense is that they gl®an indication of achievement of
Companys business plan. Furthermore, management mondtltection fees and collection expense so that Gloenpany can consic
implementing measures to mitigate against unforegezeases in these expenses.

Factory Operating ExpensesThe Company incurs factory operating expenses waiehincluded in cost of sales. Each montt
Company monitors factory operating expense. Thgoitance of monitoring factory operating expensehit it provides an indication
achievement of the Compamsybusiness plan. Furthermore, when unforeseemsggacreases occur, the Company can consider rimepieéng
measures to mitigate such increases.

Net Sales.The Company collects and processes animgbrogucts (fat, bones and offal), including hidesg aised restaure
cooking oil to principally produce finished prodsiaif MBM, BFT, YG and hides. Sales are signifitamtffected by finished goods pric
quality and mix of raw material, and volume of ravaterial. Net sales include the sales of proddteshed goods, collection fees, fees
grease trap services, and finished goods purcHasegsale.

During Fiscal 2008, net sales were $807.5 milliencampared to $645.3 million during Fiscal 200heTincreases in Render
Segment sales of $120.7 million and the increasRentaurant Services Segment sales of $41.5 midlmounted for the $162.2 milli
increase in sales. The increase in net sales sraandy due to the following (in millions of dolia):

Restaurar

Renderinc Service Corporat Total

Higher finished product price $ 148. $ 39.7 $ = $ 188.1
Purchases of finished product-

resale (10.9) 1.C - (9.4)

Decrease in yiel (5.0 (2.7 - (7.7)

Decrease in other sal (3.5 (2.7 - (5.6)

Decrease in raw material volur (0.2) (3.2 - (3.2

Product transfers (8.7) 8.7 - -

$ 120.5 $ 41t $ = $ 162.c

Further detail regarding the $120.7 million incee@s sales in the Rendering Segment and the $4illibmincrease in sales in the Restau
Services Segment is as follows:

Rendering

Finished Product PricesHigher prices for Fiscal 2008 in the overall coodity market for corn, soybean oil and soybeanlnvezich are
competing proteins and fats to MBM and BFT, posifvimpacted the Compars/finished product prices. $148.4 million of tinereas
in Rendering sales is due to a markéde increase in MBM prices (protein) and in BFicps (fat). The market increases were dt
changes in supply/demand as a result of new derfmngio-fuels and growing consumption for commodity proseand fats, includir
MBM and BFT.

Raw Material Volume: The lower raw material from Rendering Segmergp$iars, which is processed into MBM and BFT firgs
products decreased sales by $0.1 million.

Other Sales The $3.5 million decrease in other Renderingsalas primarily due to lower prices and volumesies. Hide volume
were down due to lower dead stock volume and losl@ughter rates at beef processors. Prices wepacied by difficult econom
conditions and decreased demand for leather goods.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resalthe Company purchased less finished productdsale from third party suppliers in Fis
2008 compared to the same period in Fiscal 200814 million. Lower domestic and export demandfiieished products reduced
need to source third party product.
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Yield : The raw material processed in Fiscal 2008 corppan the same period of Fiscal 2009 yielded lgdshied product for sale a
reduced sales by $5.0 million. The reduction itile&ills by the meat processing industry durihg year impacted yields since cattle ¢
is a higher yielding material than pork and poudffal.

Product Transfers Depending on the Company’s customdisished product quality specifications and the lgyaf raw material th
Company receives from meat processors and otheremufrom time to time BFT material must be dovaugd and sold

YG. Generally, product transfers occur when BFHasvngraded and the product is reclassified as Wlich is a Restaurant Servii
Segment product. Product transfers from the Rémgl&egment to the Restaurant Services Segmentmanein Fiscal 2008 comparec
the same period in Fiscal 2007. When more proguttansferred from the Rendering Segment to th&tdReant Services Segment,
BFT is available for sale by the Rendering Segnaant YG sales will increase correspondingly. Therelzsed BFT available in Fis
2008 compared to Fiscal 2007 resulted in a deciieaRendering Segment sales of $8.7 million.

Restaurant Services

Finished Product Prices Higher prices in the commodity markets for cotmge fats and corn positively impacted the CompanyG
finished product prices. The $39.7 million incredseRestaurant Services sales was due to a signffiticrease in prices for YG ¢
competing commodity products. The market increasa® due to stronger demand for bio-fuels and grgwonsumption for YG.

Raw Material Volume: Difficult economic conditions in the food sergidndustry impacted the volume of raw material kdée fol
collection. Lower raw material volume from usedking oil suppliers decreased YG sales by $3.lionill

Other Sales The $2.1 million decrease in other sales wanarily from a decrease in collection fees as alte$uihe higher market pris
for YG.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resaléhe $1.0 million increase in sales resulted fitben Company purchasing more finished pro
for resale from third party suppliers in Fiscal 808 compared to the same period in Fiscal 200ith Wore demand for YG finish
products, the Company’s need to source additidmia party product for sales increased in ordeneet the Company’s customers’ needs.

Yield : The Company believes that YG yields have dedlibecause of the current economic environmenténU!s. that has caused
food service industry to use their current oil lengvhich decreases the volumes and quality of iogodil picked up from suppliers. TI
lowers yields and lowers the amount of finisheddpiei available for sale resulting in reduced safeb2.7 million.

Product Transfers Product transfers from the Rendering Segmerthéo Restaurant Services Segment were more in FEG@8 a
compared to the same period in Fiscal 2007. Thee@se in product transfers was a result of moré @FRendering Segment prodt
being downgraded and transferred to the Resta@mnvices Segment to be sold as YG in Fiscal 206@aoed to Fiscal 2007. As a res
Restaurant Services Segment sales were increaskl bynillion in Fiscal 2008.

Cost of Sales and Operating ExpenseSost of sales and operating expenses includedsieof raw material, the cost of proc
purchased for resale and the cost to collect ratemad which includes diesel fuel and processiogts including natural gas. The Comp
utilizes both fixed and formula pricing methods tbe purchase of raw materials. Fixed prices ajaséetl where possible for change
competition. Significant changes in finished goausrket conditions impact finished product inveptealues, while raw materials purcha
under formula prices are correlated with speciiigshed goods prices. Energy costs, particulardsel fuel and natural gas, are signific
components of the Compasycost structure. The Company has the abilityutm lalternative fuels at a majority of its plartdshelp manage tl
Company'’s price exposure to volatile energy markets
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During Fiscal 2008, cost of sales and operatingeagps were $614.7 million as compared to $483.komitluring Fiscal 2007. TI
increases in Rendering Segment cost of sales agdtapy expenses of $89.2 million and the incréasRestaurant Services Segment co
sales and operating expenses of $42.2 million atedufor a majority of the $131.2 million increase cost of sales and operat
expenses. The increase in cost of sales and oppeatpenses was primarily due to the followingriitlions of dollars):

Restaurar

Renderini Service: Corporat Total
Higher raw material cos $ 81: $ 251 $ = $ 106.c
Higher energy costs, primari
natural gas an diesel fue 13.€ 3.0 - 16.€
Payroll and related benefi 6.C 2.2 - 8.2
Increase/(decrease) in other exper 3.€ 2.1 (0.2 5.5
Multi-employer pension plans mas
withdrawal termination 2.4 - - 24
Sale of judgmen 1.2 - - 1.2
Purchases of finished product for
resale (20.7) 1.1 - (9.0
Product transfer (8.7 8.7 — —

$ 89: $ 42z $ (0.2 $ 131

Further detail regarding the $89.2 million increasecost of sales and operating expenses in thel&®emg Segment and the $42.2 mill
increase in the Restaurant Services Segment @law$:

Rendering

Raw Material Costs In Fiscal 2008 approximately 58% of the Comparghnual volume of raw material was acquired offoariula”
basis. Under a formula arrangement, the cost wfmeaterial is tied to the finished product market MBM and BFT. Since finishe
product prices were higher in the Fiscal 2008 aspared to Fiscal 2007, the raw material costs asad by $81.2 million.

Energy Costs: Both natural gas and diesel fuel are major campts of collection and factory operating coststite Renderin
Segment. The higher energy costs of $13.6 milleflect higher cost of natural gas and diesel éosks during Fiscal 2008 as compare
Fiscal 2007.

Other Expense: Other expense including payroll and related EHenencreased $9.6 million in cost of sales anderaping
expenses. Increases in overall payroll wages amdoyee benefits, including increased medical cisstascal 2008 as compared to Fi
2007 were the primary causes of the increase ier @kpense.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resalthe Company purchased less finished productdsale from third party suppliers in Fis
2008 compared to the same period in Fiscal 200510yl million.

Product Transfers In Fiscal 2008, more BFT failed to meet custorfieished product quality specifications than irsddl 2007, ar
therefore more BFT was downgraded to YG value saksferred from the Rendering Segment to the Resta$ervices Segment. Si
the Rendering Segment had relatively less BFT abkilfor sale in Fiscal 2008, cost of sales relébedroduct transfers decreased !
million.

Restaurant Services

Raw Material Costs YG finished product prices were significanthgher in the Fiscal 2008 as compared to Fiscal 28@ith caused tt
raw material costs to increase by $25.1 million.

Energy Costs Diesel fuel and natural gas are major componeintsllection and operating costs to the Restausanvices Segmenihe
higher energy costs of $3.0 million reflect thettggcost of diesel fuel and natural gas during@i2008 as compared to the same peri
Fiscal 2007.
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Other Expense Other expense including payroll and related Benecreased $4.3 million in cost of sales anéraging expenses. T
primary cause of the increase in other expenseesta increases in overall payroll wages and enga@dyenefits, including medical cc
and current year acquisitions in the Restauranti@eSegment.

Purchases of Finished Product for Resalehe $1.1 million increase in cost of sales @anfrpurchasing more finished product from t
party suppliers for resale in order to meet custotieenand.

Product Transfers Because more BFT was downgraded for failure éetncustomer specifications and subsequently sotdéRestaura
Services Segment as YG in Fiscal 2008 compareist@mlF2007, the cost of sales was increased byr8lion year over year.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenses wB8e8bmillion during Fiscal 2008,
$1.8 million increase (3.1%) from $58.0 million éhg Fiscal 2007. The Company increased its prowisor bad debt based on general ¢
conditions and delinquent accounts receivable. ifitieease in selling, general and administrativyeeeses is primarily due to the following
millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderini Service Corporat Total
Increase in other expens $ 0.1 $ 0.6 $ 12 $ 2C
Payroll and related benefits expel 0.€ 0.5 0.t 1.€
Increase in bad debt exper 0.€ 0.6 (0.2 1.1
Decrease in legal expen - - 2.7 2.7
Decrease in legal settlements - — (1.2 (1.2)

$ 12 2 $ 17 $ (L2 T

Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increase#l fillion (5.2%) to $24.4 million durir
Fiscal 2008 as compared to $23.2 million duringc&i2007. The increase in depreciation and anaditia is primarily due to an over
increase in capital expenditures.

Goodwill Impairment. The Company recorded a goodwill impairment chaf§$15.9 million in the fourth quarter of Fis@40¢
as a result of its annual impairment test. Thipdirment charge relates to the loss of certairelaagv material suppliers in the fourth quarte
Fiscal 2008.

Interest Expense.Interest expense was $3.0 million during Fi&#8 compared to $5.0 million during Fiscal 200dgarease of
$2.0 million (40.0%), primarily due to a decreas®utstanding balance related to the Company’s. debt

Other Income/ExpenseOther income was $0.3 million in Fiscal 200809 million increase from other expense of $0.68ioni
in Fiscal 2007. The increase in other income imarily due to more cash included in interest bggamccounts and decreases in other non
operating expenses.

Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $88lién for Fiscal 2008, compared to income tax enge of $29.
million recorded in Fiscal 2007, an increase of$&illion, primarily due to increased ptax earnings of the Company in Fiscal 2008.
effective tax rate for Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 28039.3%. The difference from the federal statate of 35% in Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2
is primarily due to state taxes.

FINANCING, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company has a $175 million credit agreemest ‘@redit Agreement”) that became effective ApriD06. The principal
components of the Credit Agreement consist of thiewing:

- The Credit Agreement provides for a total of $17&ilion in financing facilities, consisting of &$.0 million term loan facilit
and a $125.0 million revolving credit facility, wdhi includes a $35.0 million letter of credit -facility.
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« The $125.0 million revolving credit facility hagerm that matures on April 7, 2013.

« As of January 2, 2010, the Company has borrowe8=0l0 million under the term loan facility, whighmovides for scheduls
guarterly amortization payments of $1.25 millioreowa sixyear term ending with a balloon payment of $22.8ioni on April 7,
2012. The Company has reduced the term loan tiadili quarterly payments totaling $17.5 milliony fan aggregate of $3:
million principal outstanding under the term loagifity at January 2, 201!

« Alternative base rate loans under the Credit Agezgrbear interest at a rate per annum equal tgrdegtest of (a) the prime r.
(b) the federal funds effective rate (as definethi Credit Agreement) plus % of 1% and (c) theistgid LIBOR for a one mor
interest period plus 1%, plus in each case, a matgtermined by reference to a pricing grid undher €Credit Agreement a
adjusted according to the Company’s adjusted Igeeratio. Eurodollar loans bear interest at a pateannum based on the then-
applicable LIBOR multiplied by the statutory resemate plus a margin determined by reference tacang grid and adjuste
according to the Compa’s adjusted leverage rat

« On October 8, 2008, the Company entered into anndment (the “2008 Amendmentiyith its lenders under its Cre
Agreement. The 2008 Amendment increases the Coyhpéexibility to make investments in third partieBursuant to the 20
Amendment, the Company can make investments id garties provided that (i) no default under thedrAgreement exists
would result at the time such investment is coneditb be made, (ii) certain specified defaults dbaxist or would result at t
time such investment is actually made, and (iii¢afiving pro forma effect to such investment, lnerage ratio (as determir
in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreetnisnless than 2.00 to 1.00 for the most receut fiscal quarter period th
ended. In addition, the 2008 Amendment increalsesatmount of intercompany investments permittedragtbe Company al
any of its subsidiaries that are not parties toGhedit Agreement from $2.0 million to $10.0 mitic

« On September 30, 2009, the Company, entered intangndment (th2009 Amendmer’) with its lenders under the Cre
Agreement. The 2009 Amendment (i) extends the ritgtdate of the revolving facility from April 7,@.1 to April 7, 2013, (i
revises the pricing schedule with respect to letfecredit fees and interest rates payable by tbm@any and amends cert
definitions in connection therewith, (iii) permithe issuance of new unsecured indebtedness anddansem adds cert:
definitions in connection therewith, and (iv) ameragrtain provisions with respect to the defaulferyder concept in the Cre
Agreement. Pursuant to the 2009 Amendment, thep@asncan issue new unsecured indebtedness prothdedi) no defau
under the Credit Agreement exists or would resolinfthe incurrence of such new unsecured indebssgiié) the amount of su
new unsecured indebtedness does not exceed $1k@hmail any time outstanding, and (iii) after gigipro forma effect to su
incurrence of new unsecured indebtedness, the Qoyrigain compliance with the fixed charge coverago and the levera
ratio (as determined in accordance with the terhtkeoCredit Agreement

- The Credit Agreement contains restrictive covenahtst are customary for similar credit arrangemesutsl requires tt
maintenance of certain minimum financial ratioheTCredit Agreement also requires the Company tkentartain mandato
prepayments of outstanding indebtedness using éheash proceeds received from certain dispositadrioperty, casualty
condemnation, any sale or issuance of equity istergn a public offering or in a private placemempermitted addition
indebtedness incurred by the Company and excebdloasunder certain circumstanct

The Company’s Credit Agreement consists of thiofdhg elements at January 2, 2010 (in thousands):

Credit Agreement

Term Loan $ 32,50
Revolving Credit Facility
Maximum availability $ 125,00(
Borrowings outstandin -
Letters of credit issued 15,852
Availability $ 109,14¢
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The obligations under the Credit Agreement are ajuaed by Darling National LLC, a Delaware limitégbility company that is
wholly-owned subsidiary of Darling (“Darling Natiali), and are secured by substantially all of the prgpeftthe Company, including
pledge of all equity interests in Darling Nationd@s of January 2, 2010, the Company was in compéawith all of the financial covenants i
believes it was in compliance with all of the otkerenants contained in the Credit Agreement.

The classification of long-term debt in the Compganjanuary 2, 2010 consolidated balance sheetésl lmasthe contractual repaym
terms of the debt issued under the Credit Agreement

On January 2, 2010, the Company had working capitél5.1 million and its working capital ratio wa€95 to 1 compared to worki
capital of $67.4 million and a working capital mtf 1.95 to 1 on January 3, 2009. The increasedrking capital is primarily due to t
increase in cash and cash equivalents. At Jarja2910, the Company had unrestricted cash of $8@lbn and funds available under -
revolving credit facility of $109.1 million, comped to unrestricted cash of $50.8 million and fuadailable under the revolving credit faci
of $108.6 million at January 3, 2009. The Compaiwersifies its cash investments by limiting thecamts located at any one finan
institution and invests primarily in government-kad securities.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $T8illon and $92.0 million for the fiscal years esttlJanuary 2, 2010 and Janual
2009, respectively, a decrease of $12.8 million tdue decrease in net income of approximately $&liBon. Cash used by investing activil
was $55.7 million during Fiscal 2009, compared 52.8 million in Fiscal 2008, an increase of $3.3lion, primarily due to an increase
acquisition activity of approximately $18.1 milliowhich was offset by a decrease in capital expgarel of approximately $7.4 million an
decrease in route and other intangible activitpmbroximately $6.6 million. Net cash used by ficiag activities was $6.1 million in the y«
ended January 2, 2010 an increase of cash used®ndllion as compared to $5.1 million at JanudyR009, principally due to less excess
benefits from stock-based compensation in 2009¢hkvhvias partially offset by lower term debt repayisén 2009.

Capital expenditures of $23.6 million were madeiyiFiscal 2009 as compared to $31.0 million inckis2008, a decrease of §
million (23.9%). The decrease is due primarilateeduction in spending on a major modernizatiajgot started in Fiscal 2008 and compli
in Fiscal 2009 at the Turlock California plant thweds identified over normal maintenance and compbacapital expenditures and an ow
decrease in capital expenditures in Fiscal 200&agpared to Fiscal 2008. Additionally, the Compapgnt approximately $1.5 million rela
to the Final BSE Rule in Fiscal 2009. Capital exgitures related to compliance with environmenégulations were $1.6 million in Fisi
2009, $1.1 million in Fiscal 2008 and $1.8 millionFiscal 2007.

Based upon the underlying terms of the Credit Agreat, approximately $5.0 million in current debtieh is included in curre
liabilities on the Companyg’ balance sheet at January 2, 2010, will be dumgitine next twelve months, which includes schediujearterl
installment payments of $1.25 million.

Based upon the annual actuarial estimate, cureamtials, and claims paid during Fiscal 2009, then@any has accrued approxima
$4.5 million it expects will become due during thext twelve months in order to meet obligationsited to the Company’self insuranc
reserves and accrued insurance obligations, whiehingluded in current accrued expenses at Jarja2910. The self insurance reserv
composed of estimated liability for claims arisifay workers’ compensation and for auto liability and generabilisy claims. The se
insurance reserve liability is determined annudibsed upon a third party actuarial estimate. adtearial estimate may vary from yeartoy
due to changes in costs of health care, the permdingper of claims and other factors beyond therobof management of the Company.
assurance can be given that the Company’s funditigations under its self insurance reserve willinorease in the future.

Based upon current actuarial estimates, the Compapgcts to make payments of approximately $1.0iamilin order to met
minimum pension funding requirements during fis2@10. The minimum pension funding requirementsdatermined annually, based upc
third party actuarial estimate. The actuarialreate may vary from year to year, due to fluctuagigmreturn on investments or other fac
beyond the control of management of the Companperdministrator of the Compasypension funds. No assurance can be given tg
minimum pension funding requirements will not irese in the future. Additionally, the Company haadm required and tax deducti
discretionary contributions to its pension plan§iscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 of approximately $Millon and $6.5 million, respectively.
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The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“PPAUas signed into law in August 2006 and went infectfin January 2008. The stated ¢
of the PPA is to improve the funding of pensionnglaPlans in an undéunded status will be required to increase emplaetributions t
improve the funding level within PPA timelines. ef'impact of recent declines in the world equity atider financial markets have had
could continue to have a material negative impacipension plan assets and the status of requimedinfg under the PPA. The Comp.
participates in several mukimployer pension plans that provide defined benéditcertain employees covered by labor contratkese plar
are not administered by the Company and contribatiare determined in accordance with provisionaeagfotiated labor contracts. Cun
information with respect to the Company’s proparéte share of the over- and undiended status of all actuarially computed valueedte:
benefits over these pension plame&t assets is not available as the Company relieshiod parties outside its control to provide <
information. The Company knows that three of thesdti-employer plans were und&rnded as of the latest available information, saf
which is over a year old. The Company has no tghi compel the plan trustees to provide more entrinformation. In June 2009,
Company received a notice of a mass withdrawal iteation and a notice of initial withdrawal liabilitfrom one of these underfunc
plans. The Company had anticipated this eventasna result had accrued approximately $3.2 millisrof January 3, 2009 based on the
recent information that is probable and estimabietliis plan. The plan has given a notice of redeination liability in December 2009 anc
a result the Company’s accrued liability at Januar010 has not increased from the original amasnthis remains the Compasybes
estimate of the liability based on the most redefdrmation that is probable and estimable for fiten. Another of the underfunded multi-
employer plans in which the Company participatesdiaen notification of “Critical Statusinder the PPA; however, as of January 2, 201!
Company has not received any further informatiararding this Critical Status plan. While the Comp&as no ability to calculate a poss
current liability for under-funded mulémployer plans that could terminate or could rem@idditional funding under the PPA, the amac
could be material.

The Company has the ability to burn alternativdsuiecluding its fats and greases, at a majorititsoplants as a way to help man
the Companys exposure to high natural gas prices. Beginniotplaer 1, 2006, the federal government effectedogrpm which provide
federal tax credits under certain circumstancesctonmercial use of alternative fuels in lieu ofdibbased fuels. Beginning in the fol
guarter of 2006, the Company filed documentatiotiwhe IRS to recover these Alternative Fuel Migt@redits as a result of its use of fats
greases to fuel boilers at its plants. The Comphaay received approval from the IRS to apply fagsth credits. However, the fed:
regulations relating to the Alternative Fuel Mix¢uCredits are complex and further clarificatioméeded by the Company prior to recogni
of certain tax credits received. As of Januarg@0, the Company has $0.7 million of received itseidcluded in current liabilities on t
balance sheet as deferred income while the Compargues further clarification. As of January 21@0this alternative federal tax cre
program has expired and has not been extendednstiteted as of February 24, 2010. Even thouglattisan support for such an exten:
has been expressed in the U.S. Senate, the Coropangt guarantee that the Alternative Fuel MixtQredits will be included in any tax cre
extender package that may be passed by the U.$yr€&m The Company will, therefore continue tdusata the option of burning alternat
fuels at its plants in future periods dependinghanprice relationship between alternative fueld aatural gas.

In September 2009, the Company announced thas ifoieed with a subsidiary of Valero Energy Corpiara (“Valero”) to take initia
steps towards the formation of a joint ventureuddoa facility capable of producing over 10,0001kes per day or 135 million gallons pery
of renewable diesel on a site adjacent to ValeBb'<Charles refinery near Norco, Louisiana (theérftigenture Project”).The proposed facili
is expected to convert grease, primarily anima &td used cooking oil supplied by the Company,mrentially other feedstocks that bect
economically and commercially viable into renewabiesel. The Company and Valero have applied fud are jointly seeking a lo
guarantee for the proposed Joint Venture Projemhfthe U.S. Department of Energy (the “DORif)der the Energy Policy Act of 20
(together with the regulations promulgated thereunthe “Energy Act”)which makes $8.5 billion of debt financing guarastavailable fc
projects that employ innovative energy efficien@newable energy and advanced transmission anibdiin technologies (theDOE Loar
Program”). On November 3, 2009, the DOE notified the Compamy ¥alero that it had completed its review of thiial application for th
Joint Venture Project and approved the projectféother evaluation under the DOE Loan Program.adidition, the DOE informed t
Company that the Joint Venture Project may constiéi‘1705 Eligible Project’as defined in the Energy Act), which designatiorulslaentitle
the joint venture entity to have certain of itsdazosts paid for under the DOE loan program. Adiemyly, the Company and Valero submi
to the DOE the more detailed Part Il submissioruiregl to continue in the application process falusion of the Joint Venture Project in
DOE Loan Program. The Company and Valero aretisgjithe costs and expenses related to the Jointuvie Project and the preparation
filing of the application under the DOE Loan Pragravhich as of the date of this Report have nontsgnificant in amount. The Comps
and Valero have not yet entered into a joint vemtoperating agreement with respect to the JointtiwenProject; however, once the j
venture operating agreement has been enteredcettiain of the costs and expenses associated atfidint Venture Project could be incui
in the form of capital contributions to the joinenture entity. The ultimate cost of the Joint \WeatProject to the Company cannol
determined until, among other things, further dethiengineering reports and studies have been etegphnd the amount of funding, if &
approved under the DOE Loan Program is knowns ¢uirrently contemplated that the Company and daleyuld move forward with the mc
detailed engineering reports and studies for tlt 3enture Project only if the DOE notifies thenllbwing its review of the Part Il submiss
that the Joint Venture Project has been approvethénext phase of the loan approval process,iwtteld occur as early as the first quart:
fiscal 2010. Completion of the Joint Venture Pcojis contingent, among other things, on (i) theE>®approval of the loan application
inclusion in the DOE Loan Program at a sufficiamding level for the parties to agree to proceeith Wie Joint Venture Project, (i) the tc
cost estimate for the Joint Venture Project anil tfiie final approval of the ComparsyBoard of Directors. Furthermore, even if thent
Venture Project is accepted in the DOE Loan Progrd@re is no assurance that the parties will He &b negotiate a loan agreemen
acceptable terms. Accordingly, the Company carnigeono assurance that the Joint Venture Projdtbeicompleted.
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The Companys management believes that cash flows from operatativities consistent with the level generated-iscal 200¢
unrestricted cash and funds available under thediCisgreement will be sufficient to meet the Companworking capital needs a
maintenance and complianoglated capital expenditures, scheduled debt atedleist payments, income tax obligations, continweding o
the Joint Venture Project and other contemplatesdis¢hrough the next twelve months. Numerous faatould have adverse consequenc
the Company that cannot be estimated at this tsmeh as: reductions in raw material volumes akibiléo the Company due to weak mar
in the meat production industry as a result of aigfeed costs or other factors, reduced volume ffood service establishments, redt
demand for animal feed, or otherwise; a furtheluotion in finished product prices; changes toldwide government policies relating
renewable fuels and greenhouse gas emissions divatsely effect programs like RFS2 and tax creftitsbiofuels both in the U.S. a
abroad; possible product recall resulting from elepments relating to the discovery of unauthoriaeliterations to food additives;
occurrence of Bird Flu in the U.S.; any additionaturrence of BSE in the U.S. or elsewhere; ucipated costs and/or reductions in
material volumes related to the Companymplementation of and compliance with the Fin&BBRule, including capital expenditures
comply with the Final BSE Rule; unforeseen new WiSoreign regulations affecting the renderingustty (including new or modified anin
feed, 2009 H1N1 flu, Bird Flu or BSE regulations)creased contributions to the Company’s multi-lExper and employesponsored define
benefit pension plans as required by the PPA; tetut drriteoffs; loss of or failure to obtain necessary pesndhd registrations; and
unfavorable export markets. These factors, cougididvolatile prices for natural gas and diesd@lfigeneral performance of the U.S. econ
and declining consumer confidence including théilitg of consumers and companies to obtain crddé to the current lack of liquidity in t
financial markets, among others, could negativetpact the Compang’results of operations in fiscal 2010 and theeeaffhe Compar
cannot provide assurance that the cash flows frperating activities generated in Fiscal 2009 aricitive of the future cash flows frc
operating activities that will be generated by fBempanys operations. The Company reviews the appropuates of unrestricted cs
periodically. Except for the potential contributeto the Joint Venture Project, no decision haanlbmade as to noordinary course ca
usages at this time, potential usages could inclugortunistic capital expenditures and/or adtjaiss; investments relating to 1
Companys developing a comprehensive renewable energyegiraincluding, without limitation, potential inwasents in additional renewal
diesel and/or biodiesel projects; investmenteBponse to governmental regulations relating to BS&her regulations; unexpected func
required by the PPA requirements; and paying divldeor repurchasing stock, subject to limitationglar the Credit Agreement, as wel
suitable cash conservation to withstand adversercality cycles.

The current economic environment in the Companyarkets has the potential to adversely impadiqgtsdity in a variety of way:

including through reduced raw materials availapilreduced finished product prices, reduced salential inventory buildup, increased
debt reserves and/or higher operating costs.
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The principal products that the Company sells ararnodities, the prices of which are based on dstedsl commodity markets &
are subject to volatile changes. Any decline isthprices has the potential to adversely impacCibimpanys liquidity. Any of a continue
decline in raw material availability, a further dae in commodities prices, increases in energggwiand the impact of the PPA has
potential to adversely impact the Companliguidity. A decline in commodities prices, &&iin energy prices, a slowdown in the U.S
international economy, or other factors, could eahe Company to fail to meet management’s exgeatabr could cause liquidity concerns.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMIT  MENTS

The following table summarizes the Company’s exgechaterial contractual payment obligations, intlgcdboth on- and ofBalanc
sheet arrangements at January 2, 2010 (in thousands

Less tha 1-3 3-5 More thal
Total 1 Yea Year: Year: 5 Year:
Contractual obligatior
(a):
Long-term debf $ 32,501 $ 5,00( $27,50( $ - $ =
obligations (b}
Operating lease 43,56 10,52( 15,32: 6,73: 10,987
obligations (c
Estimated interest 3,19 1,30¢ 1,77¢ 11t -
payable (d
Purchase commitmen 6,88¢ 6,88¢ - - -
(e)
Derivative obligations (1 2,47¢ 1,487 98¢ - -
Pension funding 1,02¢ 1,02¢ - - -
obligation (g)
Other obligation: 4¢ ¢ 1¢ 2( —
Total $ 89,697 $26,23¢ $45,60¢ $ 6,86 $10,98"

(a) The above table does not reflect uncertain taxtiposi of approximately $0.1 million because theitignof the cash settleme
cannot be reasonably estimat

(b) See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statem

(c) See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statem

(d) Interest payable was calculated using the curagnatfor term debt and current rates on other lidsl

(e) Purchase commitments were determined based orfisgemintracts for natural gas, diesel fuel angfiproduct purchase

(H Represents liabilities for interest rate swap @ty and inventory swap contracts that were vatteldnuary 2, 2010. The ultim
settlement amounts of these swap contracts areowrkbecause they are subject to continuing markktuntil the derivatives a
settled.

(g) Pension funding requirements are determined annballed upon a third party actuarial estimate. Chmpany expects to me
approximately $1.0 million in required contribut®to its pension plan in fiscal 2010. The Compinyot able to estimate pens
funding requirements beyond the next twelve monih& accrued pension benefit liability was appraatiety $19.1 million at tt
end of Fiscal 2009. The Company knows that orteefultiemployer pension plans that has not terminatecdhichwit contribute
and which is not administered by the Company watetfunded as of the latest available information, amde the Company h
no ability to calculate a possible current lialilfor the under-funded mulgmployer plan to which the Company contributes
amounts could be materi

The Company’s offialance sheet contractual obligations and commesoimmitments as of January 2, 2010 relate to djpey
lease obligations, letters of credit, forward pash agreements, and employment agreements. ThpaDgrhas excluded these items frorr
balance sheet in accordance with accounting pliesigenerally accepted in the U.S.

The following table summarizes the Compargther commercial commitments, including both @md off-balance sheet
arrangements at January 2, 2010 (in thousands):

Other commercial commitment
Standby letters of credit $ 15,852

Total other commercial commitments: $ 15,852
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OFF BALANCE SHEET OBLIGATIONS

Based upon the underlying purchase agreementCdhgpany has commitments to purchase $6.9 millioeashmodity product
consisting of approximately $1.8 million of finishg@roducts and approximately $5.1 million of natugas and diesel fuel, during the r
twelve months, which are not included in liabilitien the Compang’balance sheet at January 2, 2010. These purabesements are ente
into in the normal course of the Companyusiness and are not subject to derivative adic@uriThe commitments will be recorded on
balance sheet of the Company when delivery of thmsamodities occurs and ownership passes to thep@aoynduring fiscal 2010,
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the U.S.

Based upon underlying lease agreements, the Compegmacts to pay approximately $10.5 million in ayigrg lease obligatiol
during fiscal 2010 which are not included in lidiéls on the Compang’balance sheet at January 2, 2010. These lelgatmns are include
in cost of sales or selling, general and admirtiseaexpense on the CompasyStatement of Operations as the underlying leaigatior
comes due, in accordance with accounting princigéeerally accepted in the U.S.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company follows certain significant accanmtpolicies when preparing its consolidated finahstatements. A comple
summary of these policies is included in Note thesConsolidated Financial Statements.

Certain of the policies require management akersignificant and subjective estimates or assiompthat may deviate from act
results. In particular, management makes estimagasrding valuation of inventories, estimates &éful life of longlived assets related
depreciation and amortization expense, estimatgardeng fair value of the Comparsyreporting units and future cash flows with respe
assessing potential impairment of both long-livedesas and goodwill, seifisurance, environmental and litigation reservesispn liability
estimates of income tax expense, and estimategpehse related to stock options granted. Eachesfet estimates is discussed in greater
in the following discussion.

Inventories

The Companyg’ inventories are valued at the lower of cost orketa Finished product manufacturing cost is dal@d using th
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, based upon then@panys raw material costs, collection and factory prdiduncoperating expenses,
depreciation expense on collection and factorytasddarket values of inventory are estimated ahgaant location, based upon either: 1)
backlog of unfilled sales orders at the balancetstiate; or 2) unsold inventory, calculated usegmjonal finished product prices quoted in
Jacobsen index at the balance sheet date. Estimfatearket value, based upon the backlog of wdfilales orders or upon the Jacobsen i
assume that the inventory held by the Company etbtilance sheet date will be sold at the estimatadket finished product sales pr
subsequent to the balance sheet date. Actual pates received on future sales of inventory taglthe end of a period may vary from ei
the backlog unfilled sales order price or the Jaeahindex quotation at the balance sheet dateseT¥eriances could cause actual sales |
realized on future sales of inventory to be différthan the estimate of market value of inventdryha end of the period. Inventories w
approximately $19.1 million and $22.2 million ahdary 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets, Depreciation and AmortizatiorpErse and Valuation

The Company’ property, plant and equipment are recorded dtvelosn acquired. Depreciation expense is compaotedroperty
plant and equipment based upon a straight line adetiver the estimated useful life of the assetschvis based upon a standard classifici
of the asset group. Buildings and improvementsdageciated over a useful life of 15 to 30 yearachinery and equipment are depreci
over a useful life of 3 to 10 years and vehiclesdepreciated over a life of 2 to 6 years. Thesfull life estimates have been developed
upon the Compang’ historical experience of asset life utility, anbether the asset is new or used when placed ¥iceerThe actual life ar
utility of the asset may vary from this estimatidd.| Useful lives of the assets may be modifiemhfrtime to time when the future utility or |
of the asset is deemed to change from that origiestimated when the asset was placed in senbapareciation expense was approxime
$21.4 million, $19.3 million and $18.3 million imstal years ending January 2, 2010, January 3, 8868December 29, 2007, respectively.
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The Company’s intangible assets, including permmitgites, norcompete agreements and royalty and consulting agmets ar
recorded at fair value when acquired. Amortizagpense is computed on these intangible assetsl hgon a straight line method over
estimated useful life of the assets, which is bagsh a standard classification of the asset gr@afiection routes are amortized over a us
life of 8 to 20 years; nonempete agreements are amortized over a usefuwflifleto 7 years; royalty and consulting agreememntsamortize
over the term of the agreement; and permits arertiwad over a useful life of 20 years. The ace@nomic life and utility of the asset n
vary from this estimated life. Useful lives of thesets may be modified from time to time whenftitere utility or life of the asset is deen
to change from that originally estimated when thsed was placed in service. Intangible asset d&atidn expense was approximately ¢
million, $5.2 million and $4.9 million in fiscal y&s ending January 2, 2010, January 3, 2009 andrilegr 29, 2007, respectively.

The Company reviews the carrying valueoofgHived assets for impairment when events or chamgesrcumstances indice
that the carrying amount of an asset, or relategetagroup, may not be recoverable from estimatetirdu undiscounted ca
flows. Recoverability of assets to be held anddisaneasured by a comparison of the carrying amoluan asset or asset group to estirr
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be gée@rby the asset or asset group. If the carrgingunt of the asset exceeds its estin
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recagphizy the amount by which the carrying amount ef dsset exceeds the fair value of
asset. During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008 do lower commodity markets and the loss of aertarge raw material suppliers,
Company performed testing of all its lofiged assets for impairment based on future undister cash flows and has determined during
testing process that no impairment exists for arsglived assets. In Fiscal 2009, no triggering evecturred requiring that the Compi
perform testing of all of its long-lived assets fimpairment.

The net book value of property, plant and eongpt was approximately $152.0 million and $143.8iom at January 2, 2010 a
January 3, 2009, respectively. The net book vafustangible assets was approximately $40.3 nmlbémd $36.0 million at January 2, 2010
January 3, 2009, respectively.

Goodwill Valuation

The Company reviews the carrying value of gatidm a regular basis, including at the end oftefiscal year, for indications
impairment at each reporting unit that has recogtetiwill as an asset. Impairment is indicated vever the carrying value of a reporting
exceeds the estimated fair value of a reporting Ufdr purposes of evaluating impairment of godiditie Company estimates fair value «
reporting unit, based upon future discounted nehdws. In calculating these estimates, actistblical operating results and anticipe
future economic factors, such as future businetsnve, future finished product prices, and futureraping costs and expenses are evall
and estimated as a component of the calculatidatofe discounted cash flows for each reportind with recorded goodwill. The estimate:
fair value of these reporting units and of futurecdunted net cash flows from operation of thepenténg units could change if actual volun
prices, costs or expenses vary from these estimates

Based on the Comparyannual impairment testing at the end of the fograrter of Fiscal 2008, it was determined thatdywill
was impaired due to lower commodity markets andlass of certain large raw material suppliers ia fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008, wh
resulted in the Company recording an impairmentgdaf approximately $15.9 million based on futdigcounted net cash flows. In additi
a future reduction of earnings in the reportingamiith recorded goodwill could result in futuregairment charges because the estimate ¢
value would be negatively impacted by a reductibearnings at those reporting units. Based onCtbmpanys annual impairment testing
the end of the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2009, thie ¥alues of the Comparg/reporting units containing goodwill exceeded ridated carryin
value. Goodwill was approximately $79.1 millionde®61.1 million at January 2, 2010 and January892respectively.
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Self Insurance, Environmental and Legal Reserves

The Companyg workers compensation, auto and general lialjidlicies contain significant deductibles or sefuned retention
The Company estimates and accrues for its expedtiedate claim costs related to accidents occurdngng each fiscal year and carries
accrual as a reserve until these claims are paitidompany. In developing estimates for selflieddosses, the Company utilizes its ste
third party actuary and outside counsel as sowt&sormation and judgment as to the expected scalinted future costs of the claims.
Company accrues reserves related to environmenthliggation matters based on estimated undisexlfiiture costs. With respect to
Companys self insurance, environmental and litigation resg, estimates of reserve liability could charfgiiture events are different tt
those included in the estimates of the actuarysalbants and management of the Company. The refemgelf insurance, environmental :
litigation contingencies included in accrued exmanand other noodrrent liabilities for which there are no potehtigsurance recoveries w
approximately $15.6 million and $17.3 million ahdary 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009, respectively.

Pension Liability

The Company provides retirement benefiterployees under separate fipaly noncontributory pension plans for salaried
hourly employees (excluding those employees covbyea unionsponsored plan), who meet service and age requitsm8enefits are bas
principally on length of service and earnings patteduring the five years preceding retirementsiRn expense and pension liability recol
by the Company is based upon an annual actuatiaiage provided by a third party administrator.cteas included in estimates of current \
pension expense and pension liability at the balasieet date include estimated future service gparicemployees, estimated future pa
employees, estimated future retirement ages of @ympbk, and the projected time period of pensiorefitepayments. Two of the me
significant assumptions used to calculate futunesm obligations are the discount rate appliegidnsion liability and the expected rate
return on pension plan assets. These assumptimhsstimates are subject to the risk of change &wer, and each factor has inhe
uncertainties which neither the actuary nor the gamy is able to control or to predict with certginSee Note 13 of Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements for summaries of pension plans

The discount rate applied to the Compsarpension liability is the interest rate used tlcuate the present value of the pen
benefit obligation. The weighted average discaate was 5.90% and 6.10% at January 2, 2010 andadaB, 2009, respectively. The
periodic benefit cost for fiscal 2010 would increasy approximately $0.8 million if the discounteawas 0.5% lower at 5.40%. The
periodic benefit cost for fiscal 2010 would deceshyg approximately $0.7 million if the discounteatas 0.5% higher at 6.40%.

The expected rate of return on the Compapghsion plan assets is the interest rate usegdolate future returns on investmer
the plan assets. The expected return on plansaiset longierm assumption whose accuracy can only be assesszda long period
time. The weighted average expected return onigernsdan assets was 8.10% for Fiscal 2009 and F@@8, respectively. During Fisi
2009, the Companyg’actual return on pension plan assets was a §&h208 million or approximately 21% of pension mplassets as compa
to Fiscal 2008 where the Compasydctual return on pension plan assets was a fo$2209 million or approximately 28% of pension
assets.

The Company has recorded a pension liabilitpgroximately $19.1 million and $36.3 million a@ndiary 2, 2010 and Januan
2009, respectively. The Compasyiet pension cost was approximately $6.3 milligh4 million and $3.0 million for the fiscal yeagading
January 2, 2010, January 3, 2009 and December029, 2espectively. The projected net periodic mensxpense for fiscal 2010 is expe«
to decrease by approximately $2.4 million as cormgao Fiscal 2009.
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Income Taxes

In calculating net income, the Company includesmegtes in the calculation of income tax expense,résulting tax liability and
future realization of deferred tax assets thateafiem temporary differences between financialestegnt presentation and tax recognitio
revenue and expense. The Company’s deferred &otsasiclude a net operating loss cdogward which is limited to approximately $!
million per year in future utilization due to théange in control resulting from the May 2002 retazation of the Company. Valuati
allowances for deferred tax assets are recordedhithe more likely than not that deferred tax asseill not be realized. Based upon
Company’s evaluation of these matters, a portiorthef Company’s net operating loss caioywards will expire unused. The valuat
allowance established to provide a reserve ag#iese deferred tax assets was approximately $0l@mat January 2, 2010 and Januar
2009, respectively.

Stock Option Expense

The calculation of expense of stock options isautéizes the BlackScholes mathematical model which estimates thevédire of th
option award to the holder and the compensatioemsg to the Company, based upon estimates oflitg|aisk-free rates of return at the d
of issue and projected vesting of the option grafitse Company recorded compensation expense delatgtock options expense for the \
ended January 2, 2010, January 3, 2009 and Dec&28p2007 of approximately $0.1 million, $0.2 nati and $0.4 million, respectively.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2007, the FASB issued revised guidammer ASC Topic 805Business Combination6ASC 805”) . The nev
provisions of ASC 805 apply to all transactions atiger events in which one entity obtains contrroone or more other businesses. .
805 requires an acquirer, upon initially obtainoantrol of another entity, to recognize the asd&bilities and any nomontrolling interest i
the acquiree at fair value as of the acquisitiole d&ontingent consideration is required to begeized and measured at fair value on the
of acquisition rather than at a later date whenatim@unt of that consideration may be determinabiebd a reasonable doubt. This fair v
approach replaces the cost-allocation processnegfjunder the preedification SFAS 141 whereby the cost of an adtjaiswas allocated
the individual assets acquired and liabilities assd based on their estimated fair value. ASC &Rftiires acquirers to expense acquis
related costs as incurred rather than allocatiegehcosts to assets acquired and liabilities astuasewas done under the meadificatior
SFAS 141. The new provisions of ASC 805 were aslbgly the Company on January 4, 2009. The effédhis standard depends
acquisition activity and its relative size to ther@pany. During fiscal 2009 the Company did havguésstion activity as discussed in Not
Acquisitions and Dispositions. The adoption of A8@5 did not have a material impact on the deteation or reporting of the Comparsy’
financial results for the period ended January04a,02

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance und€& A&pic 810,Consolidation(*ASC 810"). These new provisions of ASC ¢
establishes new standards that will govern the watgng for and reporting of (1) noncontrolling ingsts in partially owned consolida
subsidiaries and (2) the loss of control of sulasids. ASC 810 was adopted by the Company on 3adu2009 on a prospective basis.
adoption of these new provisions of ASC 810 didhente an impact to the consolidated financial states of the Company.

In March 2008, the FASB issued guidance under A®@icl 815,Derivatives and Hedging'ASC 815"). These new provisions
ASC 815 are intended to improve transparency iarféial reporting by requiring enhanced discloswifesn entitys derivative instruments a
hedging activities and their effects on the emngitffhancial position, financial performance, angdrcflows. These new provisions apply tc
derivative instruments within the scope of ASC &E5well as related hedged items, bifurcated déviesit and nonderivative instruments
are designated and qualify as hedging instruméerte. fair value of derivative instruments and thggins and losses will need to be prese
in tabular format in order to present a more comepfcture of the effects of using derivative instients. The Company adopted these
provisions of ASC 815 effective January 4, 200%e Rdoption of this new guidance did not have aerateffect to the consolidated finan
statements of the Company.
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In April 2008, the FASB issued guidance under ASIpIT 350,Intangibles-Goodwill and OthgfASC 350”). The new provisions
ASC 350 amend the factors that should be considierelveloping renewal or extension assumptionsl isedetermine the useful life o
recognized intangible asset. ASC 350 was adoptedamuary 4, 2009. The adoption of ASC 350 did lmnte a material effect to 1
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance undeé® A8pic 715,Compensation — Retirement BenefitASC 715”)to provide
guidance on an employerdisclosures about plan assets of a defined lgerision or other postretirement plan on investnpeticies an
strategies, major categories of plan assets, inpots valuation techniques used to measure thevédire of plan assets and signific
concentrations of risk within plan assets. The Idmares about plan assets required by ASC 715 féeetige for fiscal years ending af
December 15, 2009, with earlier application pemuitt Upon initial application, the provisions of 815 are not required for earlier peri
that are presented for comparative purposes. d@bpt@n of these new provisions of ASC 715 did im@te a material effect to the consolidi
financial statement of the Company.

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance under ASEpit 805,Business Combinations This new guidance amends and clar
ASC 805 to address application on initial recogmtand measurement, subsequent measurement anchéiegaand disclosure of assets
liabilities arising from contingencies in a busise®mbination. The Comparsyadoption of this new guidance did not have a rizdteEnpac
on the determination or reporting of the Compaffiyiancial results for the period ended January02,02

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance under ASEpi¢ 825,Financial Instrumentg“ASC 825"). ASC 825 requires disclosul
about fair value of financial instruments for iriterreporting periods as well as in annual finanstatements. ASC 825 is effective for inte
reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. Chmpanys adoption of ASC 825 did not have a material inhpacthe consolidated financ
statements of the Company.

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 8Sabsequent Even(sASC 855”) effective for interim or annual periods ending E
June 15, 2009. The objective of ASC 855 is toldista general standards of accounting for and dssoles of events that occur after
balance sheet date but before financial staten@ptissued or are available to be issued. ASCaB&brequires entities to disclose the
through which subsequent events were evaluatecclhssgvthe rationale for why that date was selecidte adoption of ASC 855 did not hi
a material effect to the consolidated financialesteents of the Company.

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, Topk, G&nerally Accepted Accounting PolicigdSC 105"). ASC 105 establisht
the ASC as the source of authoritative U.S. geheaglcepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAREcognized by the FASB to be appliec
nongovernmental entities in the preparation ofrfgial statements in conformity of U.S. GAAP. ASG@ed not change current U.S. GAAP,
is intended to simplify user access to all autltivie U.S. GAAP by providing all the authoritatilfeerature related to a particular topic in
place. ASC is effective for interim and annualipgs ending after September 15, 2009. The adopifoASC 105 has changed how
Company references various elements of U.S GAAPhwreparing the Comparg/financial statement disclosures, but did not hevémpac
on the consolidated financial statements of the (@aony.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17 whatdifies SFAS No. 167Amendments to FASB Interpretation 46igued il
June 2009. ASU 20097 changes how a company determines when an #mitys insufficiently capitalized or is not conteal through votin
(or similar rights) should be consolidated. ASW24.7 requires additional disclosures about a caoyigainvolvement with variable inter
entities and any significant changes in risk expesiue to that involvement. The Company is regutceadopt ASU 20097 on January
2010 and is currently evaluating the impact of dihgpthis new standard.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includesrifiard-looking” statements that involve risks amgertainties. The words “believe,”

“anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” andmsilar expressions identify forwardoking statements. All statements other tharestant
of historical facts included in the Annual Report Borm 10K, including, without limitation, the statementsdam the sections entitl
“Business,” “Management’s Discussion and Analydis-imancial Condition and Results of Operationsti &hegal Proceedingsand locate
elsewhere herein regarding industry prospects laadCbmpany’s financial position are forwdabking statements. Actual results could d
materially from those discussed in the forwérdking statements as a result of certain facioduding many that are beyond the control o
Company. Although the Company believes that theeetations reflected in these forwdomking statements are reasonable, it can gi\
assurance that these expectations will prove twobect.
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In addition to those factors discussed under tlaeling “Risk Factorsth Item 1A of this report and elsewhere in thisaepand in th
Company’s other public filings with the SEC, immort factors that could cause actual results tcediffiaterially from the Compary’
expectations include: the Compasyontinued ability to obtain sources of supplyifsrrendering operations; general economic coordtir
the American, European and Asian markets; a dedtirconsumer confidence; prices in the compeatomgmodity markets which are vola
and are beyond the Compasycontrol; energy prices; changes to worldwideegoment policies relating to renewable fuels arekeghous
gas emissions; the implementation of the Final B8Ed Rule; BSE and its impact on finished proquictes, export markets, energy pr
and government regulations, which are still evavand are beyond the Compasgontrol; the occurrence of Bird Flu in the U.passibli
product recall resulting from developments relatinghe discovery of unauthorized adulterationsifsas melamine) to food additives;
increased contributions to the Company’s meittiployer defined benefit pension plans as requiedhe PPA. Among other things, fut
profitability may be affected by the Compaswbility to grow its business, which faces contpmtifrom companies that may have substani
greater resources than the Company. The Compauipia readers that all forwatdeking statements speak only as of the date maauth
Company undertakes no obligation to update any daiMooking statements, whether as a result of chaimgegcumstances, new events
otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risks affecting the Company are exposureshanges in prices of the finished products the gamy sells, interest rates
debt, availability of raw material supply and thé&p of natural gas and diesel fuel used in the @amy’s plants. Raw materials available to
Company are impacted by seasonal factors, includatiglays, when raw material volume declines; waveather, which can adversely afi
the quality of raw material processed and finish@dducts produced; and cold weather, which canashphe collection of ra
material. Predominantly all of the Company’s fired products are commodities that are generalty atoprices prevailing at the time of sale.

The Company makes limited use of derivative insgota to manage cash flow risks related to inteegpense, natural gas us
diesel fuel usage and inventory. Interest ratepsware entered into with the intent of managingralVéorrowing costs by reducing
potential impact of increases in interest ratedlasting-rate longterm debt. Natural gas swaps and collars are eshieto with the intent
managing the overall cost of natural gas usageelduaing the potential impact of seasonal weathematkels on natural gas that incre:
natural gas prices. Heating oil swaps are entietedwith the intent of managing the overall cost@sel fuel usage by reducing the pote
impact of seasonal weather demands on diesellatlricreases diesel fuel prices. Inventory sveapsntered into with the intent of manay
seasonally high concentrations of protein, BFT &l inventories by reducing the potential impactdefcreasing prices. The interest
swaps and the natural gas swaps are subject teqh@ements of ASC 815. Some of the Compamgtural gas and diesel fuel instrument:
not subject to the requirements of ASC 815, becausge of the natural gas and diesel fuel instrusnguoélify as normal purchases as def
in the ASC 815. The Company does not use derigatistruments for trading purposes.

On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @gerate swap agreements that are consideredloashddges according to A
815. Under the terms of these swap agreementsrbeg June 30, 2006, the cash flows from the Camijsa$50.0 million floatingrate tern
loan facility under the Credit Agreement have beenhanged for fixed rate contracts that bear isteqgayable quarterly. The first sv
agreement for $25.0 million matures April 7, 2011 dears interest at 5.42%, which does not incth@eborrowing spread per the Cr
Agreement, with amortizing payments that mirror teiam loan facility. The second swap agreement$2s.0 million matures April 7, 20.
and bears interest at 5.415%, which does not irctbd borrowing spread per the Credit Agreemerth) ainortizing payments that mirror
term loan facility. The Company’s receive rateeamth swap agreement is based on threeth LIBOR. At January 2, 2010, the fair valu
these interest swap agreements was $2.5 millionigidcluded in norcurrent liabilities on the balance sheet, with dfsed recorded f
accumulated other comprehensive income for the&@ffportion and other expense for the ineffectieetion of the interest rate swap .
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On November 13, 2009, the Company entered intoralafias swap contracts that are considered cashhmiges according to Af
815. Under the terms of the natural gas swap aotstrthe Company fixed the expected purchase ¢o48@000 mmbtis of natural ge
representing a portion of its plants expected usagthe months of January 2010 through March 2at18 fixed rate of $4.84 per mmbtu.
January 2, 2010, the fair value of these naturalsyeap contracts was $0.2 million and is includedther current assets on the balance ¢
with an offset recorded to accumulated other colmgmeive income for the effective portion and otvgsense for the ineffective portion.

Additionally, the Company had heating oil swaps anentory swaps that are marked to market bectingsedid not qualify for hedq
accounting at January 2, 2010. The heating oilbswead a fair value of approximately $0.1 milliamdaare included in other current asse
January 2, 2010. The inventory swaps did not lzaveterial effect on the Company’s consolidatedrfaial statements at January 2, 2010.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had forwardhmase agreements in place for purchases of approedyrb.1 million of natur:
gas and diesel fuel in fiscal 2010. As of Janu2ry2010, the Company had forward purchase agreamanplace for purchases

approximately $1.8 million of finished product isdal 2010.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company’s obligations subject to fixed or vialdainterest rates include (in thousands, excdptést rates):

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt:
Fixed rate $ 4€ $ g $ 1¢ $ 2C $ -
Average intere 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% -
rate
Variable rat 32,500 5,000 27,500 - -
Average intere 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% 2.81% -
rate
Total $32,548 $ 5,009 $27,519 $ 20 $ -

The Company has $32.5 million in variable rate dalitich is made up of the Compasyterm debt whose interest risk is hedge
interest rate swaps discussed above and reprettentsalance outstanding at January 2, 2010 undeCtiedit Agreement. The Compi
estimates that if the debt was not hedged undeintieeest rate swap a 1% increase in interest natedd increase the Compasyinteres

expense by approximately $0.3 million in fiscal 200
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnefhDarling International Inc. and subsidiarieslisted in the accompanying index

connection with our audits of the consolidated fiicial statements, we also have audited the finrsteement schedule as listed in

accompanying index. These consolidated financiatestents and financial statement schedule are @bponsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsfimathcial statement schedule base:

our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managementethas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of Darl
International Inc. and subsidiaries as of Janua020 and January 3, 2009, and the results aof tipairations and their cash flows for eac
the years in the thregear period ended January 2, 2010, in conformity Wi.S. generally accepted accounting principldsoAn our opinior
the related financial statement schedule, whenidered in relation to the basic consolidated finahstatements taken as a whole, pre:
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BodUnited States), Darlir
International Inc.’s internal control over finaniciaporting as of January 2, 2010, based on caitestablished ilnternal Control —Integratec
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatathe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated March 3, 20:
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrad the Company'’s internal control over financégorting.

(signed) KPMG LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2010
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited Darling International Irscinternal control over financial reporting as ahdary 2, 2010, based on criteria establish
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafitke Treadway Commission (COSO). Dar
International Inc$ management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fts assessment of i
effectiveness of internal control over financigboging, included in the accompanyiManagemens Annual Report on Internal Control o
Financial Reportinc. Our responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany’s internal control over financial repogtbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightf8g&nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtabsonable assurance about whether effectiven@iteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal contka@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aalli@ing the design and operating effectivenedatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestare believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @pess designed to provide reasonable assurancaeliregthe reliability of financit
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeadcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdgnose policies and procedures that (1) pertathg¢anaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assut
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoazations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanasisurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @tteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Darling International Inc. maintedy in all material respects, effective internattcol over financial reporting as of Januar
2010, based on criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewotksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmfnthe
Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
financial statements of Darling International land subsidiaries as listed in the accompanyingxindad our report dated March 3, 2
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congelitiinancial statements.

(signed) KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2010
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

January 2, January 3,
ASSETS 2010 2009
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale 68,18: $ 50,81«
Restricted cas 397 44¢
Accounts receivable, less allowance for theldts of
$2,148
at January 2, 2010 and $2,313 at Jsr8)&200¢ 45,57: 40,42+
Inventories 19,05: 22,18:
Income taxes refundal 60t 11,24¢
Other current asse 5,34¢ 6,69¢
Deferred income taxes 7,21¢€ 6,65¢€
Total current ass 146,37 138,46¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 151,98: 143,29:
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of
$51,109
at January 2, 2010 and $47,281 at Janyé29(® 40,29¢ 35,98:
Goodwill 79,08t 61,13:
Other asset 8,42¢ 6,62:
Deferred income taxe - 8,871
426,17: $ 394,37!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lor-term debt 5,00¢ $ 5,00(
Accounts payable, principally tra 18,74¢ 16,24:
Accrued expensi 47,52 49,78(
Total current liabiliti¢ 71,271 71,02:
Long-term debt, net of current portic 27,53¢ 32,50(
Other noncurrent liabilitie 36,14 54,27«
Deferred income taxe 6,33¢ —
Total liabilitie 141,29: 157,79
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,0@0es
authorized
82,629,970 and 82,169,076 shares is¢
at January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2|
respectively 82¢ 822
Additional pai-in capital 157,341 156,89
Treasury stock, at cost; 403,280 and 401,094 sl
at
January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009,
respectively (3,859 (3,84
Accumulated other comprehensive | (23,78) (29,850
Accumulated earning 154,34! 112,55!
Total stockholders’ equity 284,87 236,57¢
426,17: $ 394,37!

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthes
consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Three years ended January 2, 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Costs and expense
Cost of sales and operating expe!
Selling, general and administrative expet
Depreciation and amortizati
Goodwill impairment
Total costs and expenses

Operating incom:

Other income/(expense
Interest expens
Other, ne

Total other income/(expense)

Income from operations before
income taxe
Income taxes

Net income

Net income per shar
Basic

Diluted

January 2 January 3 December 2¢
2010 2009 2007

$ 597,80¢ $ 807,49: $ 645,31
440,11: 614,70¢ 483,45:

61,53( 59,76! 57,99¢

25,22¢ 24,43 23,21«

— 15,91« —

526,86° 714,81¢ 564,66¢

70,93¢ 92,67¢ 80,647
(3,10 (3,019 (5,045
(959 25¢€ (570)
(4,060 (2,760 (5,615

66,87¢ 89,91¢ 75,03:

25,08¢ 35,35¢ 29,49¢

$ 41,79( $ 54,56 $ 45,53¢
$ 0.51 $ 0.67 $ 0.5¢
$ 0.51 $ 0.6¢€ $ 0.5¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.

Page 54




DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity an€omprehensive Income(Loss)

Three years ended January 2, 2010
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stocl

Accumulatec

Number of Additional Other Total
Outstanding $.01 par Paid-In Treasury Compre- Retained Stockholders
Shares Value Capital Stock hensive Los: Earnings Equity

Balances at December 30, 2C __ 80,854,45 $ 80¢ $150,04! $ (172 $(11,73) $ 12,37¢ $ 151,32
Net income - - - - - 45,53 45,53
Unrecognized net actuarial

loss of defined benefit plar

Pension liability
adjustments, net of ti - - - - 3,87( - 3,87(

Interest rate swap derivative

adjustment, net of tax - - - - (73%) - (739)
Total comprehensive incon - - - - - - 48,66¢
Adjustment for uncertain te

position adoptiol - - - - - 141 141
Stoclk-based compensatic - - 36& - - - 36E
Tax benefits associated with

stocl-based compensatic - - 1,22: - - - 1,22z
Treasury stocl (161,36¢) - - (1,375 - - (1,379
Issuance of common stock 669,01 6 631 — — - 637
Balances at December 29, 2( 81,362,110 $ 81t $152,26: $(1,547) $ (8,59¢ $ 58,05( $ 200,98
Net income - - - - - 54,56 54,56
Unrecognized net actuarial

loss of defined benefit plar

Pension liability
adjustments, net of ti - - - - (20,38¢) - (20,38¢)

Interest rate swap derivati

adjustment, net of tax - - - - (937) - (937
Total comprehensive incon - - - - - - 33,23¢
Adjustment effect of actuariall

determined pension liabilitie

measurement adoption,

net of tax - - - - 71 (57 14
Issuance of nc-vested stocl 50,55¢ 1 70z - - - 702
Stoclk-based compensatic - - (227 - - - (127
Tax benefits associated with

stocl-based compensatic - - 2,30¢ - - - 2,30¢
Treasury stocl (218,729 - - (2,300 - - (2,30))
Issuance of common stock 574,05 6 1,752 — — - 1,75¢
Balances at January 3, 2009 81,76798 $ 82z $156,89¢ $(3,84¢  $(29,85()  $112,55! $ 236,57¢
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity an€€omprehensive Income(Loss) (Continued)

Three years ended January 2, 2010
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stocl

Accumulatec

Number of Additional Other Total
Outstanding $.01 par Paid-In Treasury Compre- Retained Stockholdel
Shares Value Capital Stock hensive Los: Earnings Equity
Net income - - - - - 41,79( 41,79(
Unrecognized net actuari
loss of defined benefit
plans:
Pension liability
adjustments, net of ti - - - - 5,22¢ - 5,22¢
Interest rate sway
derivative
adjustmentnet of tax - - - - 702 - 702
Natural gas swap derivati
adjustment, net of tax - - - - 137 - 137
Total comprehensiv
income - - - - - - 47,85¢
Issuance of nc-vested stoc 307,55¢ 3 901 - - - 904
Stock-based compensatic - - (720) - - - (720
Tax benefits associated w
stocl-based compensatic - - (39 - - - (39)
Treasury stocl (2,186 - - @) - - @)
Issuance of common stocl 153,33t 1 30z - — — 303
Balances at January 2, 20 82,226,69 $ 82¢ $157,34: $ (3,855  $(23,78)  $154,34! $ 284,87

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Three years ended January 2, 2010
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to nehga®vided by

operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizat
Deferred income tax
Gain on sale of ass
Increase/(decrease) in l-term pension liability
Stoc-based compensation expel
Goodwill impairmer
Changes in operating assets anditiab, net
of effects from acquisitior
Restricted ce
Accounts receiva
Income taxes refundab
Inventories and prepaigense:
Accounts payable and aedrexpense
Other

Net cash provided by operating aiitis

Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure
Acquisitions

Gross proceeds from sale of property, pladtegquipmen

and other ass¢
Payments related to routes and other intaagibl

Net cash used in investing actigitie

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from lo-term debt
Payments on lo-term debi
Contract paymen
Deferred loan cos
Issuance of common sto
Minimum withholding taxes paid on stock awa
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic

Net cash used in financing actig

Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fi
Interes

Income taxes, net of refunds

The accompanying notes are an integral part

January 2, January 3, December 2¢
2010 2009 2007

$ 41,79( $ 54,56: $ 45,53¢

25,22¢ 24,43 23,21«

14,65: (12,429 5,61¢

(299 (147 (5

(11,979 6,784 (5,669

76¢ 80C 1,23t

- 15,91« -

52 (16) 47

(5,14% 18,971 (17,02()

10,64 (11,249 -

4,28¢ (399 (7,729

(369 (6,889 18,91¢

(44¢€) 1,59¢ 1,56:

79,18¢ 91,95( 65,70

(23,63¢) (131,00¢) (15,55)

(33,98) (115,87¢) -

1,91 1,101 217

- (6,609 (262)

(55,717 (52,390 (15,597

48 - 42,50(

(5,000 (6,250 (81,759

(72 (17¢) (167)

(194¢) (67) -

11 302 517

(10¢) (1,199 (1,379

(39 2,30¢ 1,22:

(6,106 (5,08)) (.39,05¢)

17,36¢ 34,47¢ 11,05«

50,81« 16,33t 5,281

$ 68,18 $ 50,81« $ 16,33¢

$ 2,681 $ 3,01¢ $ 5,151

$ 2,244 $ 44,24¢ $ 26,30

of these consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE GENERAL
1.

(&) NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Darling International Inc., a Delaware corporatitine “Company”), is a recycler of food and animgtdgroducts and provides gre
trap services to food service establishments. iladollects and recycles animal pyeducts and used cooking oil from food ser
establishments. Darling processes raw materiakSatacilities located throughout the United Staitet® finished products such
protein (primarily meat and bone meal, “MBM"), @l (primarily bleachable fancy tallow, “BFT"), yellv grease (“YG")anc
hides. The Company sells these products natioraally internationally, primarily to producers of @lehemicals, soaps, pet foa
leather goods, livestock feed and bio-fuels for asengredients in their products or for furtheoqassing. The Comparsybperatior
are currently organized into two segments: Rendesimd Restaurant Services. For additional infoionadn the Companyg’ segment
see Note 1€

(b) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardar8¢“FASB”) issued a standard that establishes#h8B Accounting Standarsl’
Codification ™ (“ASC") and amended the hierarchygeherally accepted accounting principles (“GAABUch that the ASC beca
the single source of authoritative nongovernmehtéd. GAAP. All accounting standard references t8A® included within th
consolidated financial statements are in accordaritethe FASB standards codification as adoptéelctifze October 3, 200!

(1) Basis of Presentatic

The consolidated financial statements include the actoaf the Company and its subsidiaries. All digant intercompar
balances and transactions have been eliminateshsotidation

(2) Fiscal Yeal
The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year endingherSaturday nearest December 31. Fiscal yearthéoconsolidate
financial statements included herein are for theve2ks ended January 2, 2010, the 53 weeks endedrya3, 2009, and t
52 weeks ended December 29, 2(

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalel

The Company considers all shéetm highly liquid instruments, with an original tugty of three months or less, to be ¢
equivalents

(4) Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Agots
The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®ior estimated losses resulting from customeos-payment of trac
accounts receivable owed to the Company. Thede treceivables arise in the ordinary course offmss from sales of r:
material, finished product or services to the Conyfsm customers. The estimate of allowance for doulifaounts is bas
upon the Companyg’ bad debt experience, prevailing market conditiansl aging of trade accounts receivable, amonet
factors. If the financial condition of the Comp&gustomers deteriorates, resulting in the custsirirability to pay th
Compan’s receivables as they come due, additional alloesfmr doubtful accounts may be requir

(5) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mitarkCost is determined using the +in, first-out (FIFO) method
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

(6) Long Lived Asset:
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at dospreciation is computed by the straifjihe method over the estima
useful lives of assets: 1) Buildings and improvaetag15 to 30 years?2) Machinery and equipment, 3 to 10 years; ar
Vehicles, 2 to 6 years.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expensacasrdd and expenditures for major renewals andrdegments ai
capitalized.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets subject to amortization condistld collection routes which are made up of gud suppliers of ra
materials in similar geographic areas from whigh @ompany derives collection fees and a dependablee of raw materie
for processing into finished products; 2) perntiitat represent licensing of operating plants tleatehbeen acquired, givi
those plants the ability to operate; 3) mmmpete agreements that represent contractualgameants with former competitt
whose businesses were acquired; and 4) royaltycandulting agreements. Amortization expense Isutated using tr
straight-line method over the estimated usefulsioé the assets ranging from:28-years for collection routes; 20 years
permits; and 4-7 years for n@ompete covenants. Royalty and consulting agretsreme amortized over the term of
agreement

(7) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-dvAssets to Be Disposed of

The Company follows FASB ASC Topic 36Rroperty, Plant, and Equipmefdr impairment of long-lived assets and long-
lived assets to be disposed of. The Company revibe carrying value of lonled assets for impairment when event
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset, or related asset group, mapenoecoverable fro
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. Rectvégaof assets to be held and used is measured bgmparison of tl
carrying amount of an asset or asset group to athnundiscounted future cash flows expected tgelperated by the asse
asset group. If the carrying amount of the assetexs its estimated future cash flows, an impaitrobarge is recognized
the amount by which the carrying amount of the taggeeeds the fair value of the asset. Duringfoleth quarter of fisci
2008, due to lower commodity markets and the Idsedain large raw material suppliers, the Comppesformed testing
all its long-lived assets for impairment based otuife undiscounted cash flows and concluded thdbitglived assets we
not impaired. In fiscal 2009 no triggering eventurred requiring that the Company perform testih@ll of it's longdived
assets for impairmer

(8) Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or mdrequently if events or changes in circumstanceticate that the as:
might be impaired. FASB ASC Topic 35htangibles-Goodwill and Othe(*ASC 350”) requires a twatep process f
testing impairment. First, the fair value of eaelporting unit is compared to its carrying valuedetermine whether .
indication of impairment exists. If impairmentimglicated, then the fair value of the reportingtingoodwill is determined |
allocating the unis fair value of its assets and liabilities (inchgliany unrecognized intangible assets) as if thertimg uni
had been acquired in a business combination. froaiat of impairment for goodwill is measured aséReess of its carryit
value over its implied fair value.

In fiscal 2008, the fair value of the Compasyeporting units containing goodwill did not exdebe related carrying valu:
consequently, the Company recorded an impairmemtppfoximately $15.9 million for the year ended utay 3, 2009. |
Fiscal 2009, the fair values of the Companyeporting units containing goodwill exceeded tredated carryin
value. Goodwill was approximately $79.1 millionda®61.1 million at January 2, 2010 and Januan0B92respectively. S
Note 6 for further information on the Compi's goodwill.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

(9) Environmental Expenditure

Environmental expenditures incurred to mitigatepmevent environmental impacts that have yet to oerd that otherwis
may result from future operations are capitalizEapenditures that relate to an existing conditensed by past operatic
and that do not contribute to current or futureerayes are expensed or charged against establishemrenente
reserves. Reserves are established when envirdahiepacts have been identified which are probableequire mitigatio
and/or remediation and the costs are reasonahiyasde.

(10)Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method. Under the asset and lighmethod, deferre
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for thieiré tax consequences attributable to differerimtsveen the financi
statement carrying amounts of existing assets iafdifies and their respective tax bases. Detktex assets and liabiliti
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglptagaxable income in the years in which thasaporary differences ¢
expected to be recovered or settled. The effeaedarred tax assets and liabilities of a changevinrates is recognized
income in the period that includes the enactmetd.da

FASB ASC Topic 740Income Taxe§'ASC 740") requires the Company to periodically assess whétligmore likely tha
not that it will generate sufficient taxable incoteerealize its deferred income tax assets. Iningakhis determination, tl
Company considers all available positive and nggatividence and makes certain assumptions. Thep&@uwynconsider
among other things, its deferred tax liabilitilse toverall business environment, its historicahgeys and losses, curr
industry trends and its outlook for future yeafdthough the Company is unable to carryback anjtsohet operating losst
based upon recent favorable operating results atnulef projections, certain net operating losseshmacarried forward al
utilized and other deferred tax assets will beizedl

(11)Earnings per Shai

On January 4, 2009, the Company adopted the pomgsif FASB ASC Topic 26(arnings Per Shar¢'ASC 260”), which
addresses determinations as to whether instrunggatged in sharbased payment transactions are participating disss
prior to vesting and, therefore, need to be indubtethe earnings allocation in computing earnipgs share under the two-
class method. Non-vested and restricted sharedawgmranted to the Company’s employees and emoployee directo
contain nonforfeitable dividend rights and, therefore, aresidared participating securities in accordance W#C 260. Th
Company has prepared the current period earningssipare computations and retrospectively revisesl @ompanys
comparative prior period computations to includdasic and diluted earnings per share nested and restricted share aw
considered participating securities. The adoptibthe new guidance in ASC 260 increased the nurob&ommon shart
included in basic and diluted earnings per sharehbd no impact on reported earnings per share.

Basic income per common share is computed by digidiet income by the weighted average number ohoamshares
including non-vested and restricted shares outsigrdlring the period. Diluted income per commbare is computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average nundf@mmon shares outstanding during the perioceamed by dilutive
common equivalent shares determined using theungasock methoc
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Netome per Common Share (in thousands)

Janui
2, Januar December 29,
31
2010 2009 2007
Pe- Pe- Pe-
Income Shares Share Income SharesShare Income  Shares Share
Basic:
Net income $41,79( 82,142 $0.51 $54,56.81,685 $0.67  $45,53. 81,091 $0.5¢
Diluted:
Effect of dilutive
securities
Add: Option shares in the money &
dilutive effect of — 778 - - 969 - - 1,473 -
restricted stocl
Less: Pro-forma treasu - (445) - - (408 - - (648, -
shares
Diluted:
Net income $41,79( 82,475 $0.51 $54,56.82,246 $0.6¢  $45,53. 81,916 $0.5¢

For fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, 32,084,000 and 5,187 outstanding stock options
excluded from diluted income per common share aeffect was antidilutive.

(12)Stock Based Compensation

FASB ASC Topic 718Compensation-Stock Compensati¢fASC 718") requires all entities to recognize compens:
expense in an amount equal to the fair value ofstiere-based payments (e.g., stock options andiested and restrict
stock) granted to employees or by incurring lidigifi to an employee or other supplier (a) in amebatsed, at least in part,
the price of the entity’s shares or other equistrinments, or (b) that require or may require settint by issuing the entity’
equity shares or other equity instruments.

Total stockbased compensation recognized under ASC 718 istétements of operations for the years ended Ja2ua01C
January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 was apprtelyr®l.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.4 millionespectively, which
included in selling, general and administrativetspand the related income tax benefit recognized approximately $0
million, $0.3 million and $0.4 million, respectiyel See Note 12 for further information on the Camps stockbase:
compensation plans.

ASC 718 requires the benefits of tax deductionexoess of recognized compensation cost are repagedfinancing ca
flow. For the year ended January 2, 2010 the Compecognized less than $0.1 million of such tapemses, which we
recorded as a decrease in financing cash flows.tHeoyear ended January 3, 2009 and December(®9, 2he Compar
recognized $2.3 million and $1.2 million, respeelwin such tax deductions, which were recordedragicrease in financii
cash flows and a reduction in operating cash flc

(13)Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial st&tets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedcamting principle
requires management to make estimates and assushiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosu
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datthefconsolidated financial statements and thertep@mounts of revenues
expenses during the reporting period. Actual testduld differ from those estimats
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

If it is at least reasonably possible that theneste of the effect on the financial statements obrdition, situation, or set
circumstances that exist at the date of the firnsiatements will change in the near term duerte or more futui
confirming events and the effect of the change Wdeéd material to the financial statements, the Gomipwill disclose th
nature of the uncertainty and include an indicatlmat it is at least reasonably possible that angban the estimate will occ
in the near term. If the estimate involves cerfags contingencies covered by FASB ASC Topic 450ntingencies the
disclosure will also include an estimate of thebadale loss or range of loss or state that an etgicannot be mad

(14)Financial Instrument

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalentguats receivable, accounts payable and accrysehsgs approximat
fair value due to the short maturity of these imstents. Based on rates the Company believes itdwmay for debt of th
same remaining maturity the Compasyutstanding term loan described in Note 9 hasiravhlue of approximately $3(
million and $33.2 million compared to a carrying@amt of $32.5 million and $37.5 million at Janu&ry2010 and January
2009, respectively. The fair value was determingthg a level three input under the fair value dniely. The carryir
amount for the Company’other debt is not deemed to be significantlyedéht than the amount recorded and all «
financial instruments have been recorded at fdirevas disclosed in Note 1

(15)Derivative Instrument

The Company makes limited use of derivative insgnta to manage cash flow risks related to intezgptnse, natural ¢
usage, diesel fuel usage and inventory. Intesstswaps are entered into with the intent of miagagverall borrowing cos
by reducing the potential impact of increases terist rates on floating-rate lotgrm debt. Natural gas swaps and collar
entered into with the intent of managing the ouetakt of natural gas usage by reducing the patkmntipact of seasor
weather demands on natural gas that increasesahaas prices. Heating oil swaps are entered with the intent ¢
managing the overall cost of diesel fuel usagedolcing the potential impact of seasonal weatherathels on diesel fuel tf
increases diesel fuel prices. Inventory swapseatered into with the intent of managing seasonilh concentrations
MBM, BFT and YG inventories by reducing the potahtmpact of decreasing prices. The Company doésise derivativ
instruments for trading purposes. At January 2102Ghe Company had natural gas swaps and twoestteate swa|
outstanding that qualified and were designatedhémlge accounting as well as heating oil swaps avehtory swaps that ¢
not qualify and were not designated for hedge auiiog.

Under FASB ASC Topic 819)erivatives and Hedgin§fASC 815"), entities are required to report all derivative iinstent:
in the statement of financial position at fair \@lurhe accounting for changes in the fair value.,(igains or losses) o
derivative instrument depends on whether it has liesignated and qualifies as part of a hedgirgiogiship and, if so, «
the reason for holding the instrument. If certadmditions are met, entities may elect to desigaaderivative instrument a:
hedge of exposures to changes in fair value, daslsfor foreign currencies. If the hedged expossire cash flow exposu
the effective portion of the gain or loss on theggive instrument is reported initially as a camnent of other comprehens
income (outside of earnings) and is subsequentiassified into earnings when the forecasted tretiwa affects earning
Any amounts excluded from the assessment of heffgetieeness as well as the ineffective portiontloé gain or loss
reported in earnings immediately. If the derivatimstrument is not designated as a hedge, the @aioss is recognized
earnings in the period of chanc

(16)Comprehensive Income

The Company follows the provisions FASB ASC TopR02Comprehensive IncomgASC 2207). ASC 220 establish
standards for reporting and presentation of congrelre income and its components. In accordante A$C 220, th
Company has presented the components of compreheinsiome in its consolidated statements of stolodre’ equity an
comprehensive income(los:
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(17)Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on sales when prodre shipped and the customer takes ownershimssuines risk
loss. Certain customers may be required to prgp@ay to shipment in order to maintain payment potiobn against certe
foreign and domestic sales. These amounts aredet@s unearned revenue and recognized whendbegts have shipp
and the customer takes ownership and assumesfrisk® The Company has formula arrangements eétitain supplie
whereby the charge or credit for raw materialsad to published finished product commodity prieé®r deducting a fixe
processing fee incorporated into the formula anceé®rded as a cost of sale by line of busineds®e Company recogniz
revenue related to grease trap servicing in thetimihre trap service occul

(18)Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifieadhform to the current year presentat

(19)Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events freranith of the most recent fiscal year through the tlee consolidate
financial statements were issu

NOTEACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS
2.

On December 31, 2009, the Company acquired caeaitering, grease collection and trap servicingnass assets from Sanin
USA Inc. for approximately $19 million. The purdgawas accounted for as an asset purchase putsuhet terms of the as:
purchase agreement between the Company and Sati®AxIinc. and affiliated companies (the “Sanimaxngaction”). The
assets acquired in the Sanimax Transaction willeimee the Company’s national footprint and bettgwes the Company
customers within the rendering segment.

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company begarudiat) the operations of the Sanimax Transaction the Company
consolidated financial statements. The Companyl giproximately $19 million in cash for assets astumed liabilitie
consisting of property, plant and equipment of $4illion, intangible assets of $4.8 million, goodivaf $9.6 million and accrue
liabilities of $0.1 million on the closing date.h& goodwill from the Sanimax Transaction was assigio the rendering segm
and is expected to be deductible for tax purporddlze identifiable intangibles have a weightedrage life of eight years.

On February 23, 2009, the Company acquired sulisligrdll of the assets of Boca Industries, Incgraase trap services busir
headquartered in Smyrna, Georgia (the “Boca Traiwsdy for approximately $12.5 million. The purchase veasounted for ¢
an asset purchase pursuant to the terms of thé mssshase agreement between the Company and Beeepbrt, Inc. ar
Donald E. Lenci. The assets acquired in the Bo@ndaction will increase the Compasycapabilities to grow revenues .
continue the Company'’s strategy of broadeningeissaurant services segment.

Effective February 23, 2009, the Company beganudioh the operations of the Boca Transaction irte Companyg
consolidated financial statements. The Compangt approximately $12.5 million in cash for assetasisting of property, pla
and equipment of $3.3 million, intangible asset$®f million, goodwill of $5.8 million and othef 0.1 million on the closir
date. The goodwill from the Boca Transaction wesigned to the restaurant services segment anghésted to be deductible
tax purposes and the identifiable intangibles raweighted average life of nine years.

The Company notes these acquisitions are not cersidrelated businesses, therefore are not reqtoreé treated as a sin

business combination. Pro forma results of opemathave not been presented because the effeatbfazquisition individual
is not deemed material to revenues and net incdrtieecCompany for any fiscal period presented.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

On August 25, 2008, Darling completed the acquisitof substantially all of the assets of API Remy@k used cooking ¢
collection business (the “API Transaction’API| Recycling is a division of American Proteinacl The purchase was accoul
for as an asset purchase pursuant to the termiseofdset purchase agreement between the Companknasdcan Protein
Inc. The assets acquired in the API Transactiolh imérease the Comparg’capabilities to grow revenues and continue
Company’s strategy of broadening its restaurantices segment.

Effective August 25, 2008, the Company began irolydhe operations of the API Transaction into @@mpanys consolidate
financial statements. Pro forma results of opergtihave not been presented because the effea¢ @fcquisition is not deerr
material to revenues and net income of the Companyiscal 2008. The Company paid cash of $15.8ioni and recorded
receivable of approximately $1.5 million for a metrchase price for the APl Transaction of approtétya$14.4 million, whic
consists of property, plant and equipment of $3ilian, intangible assets of $5.5 million, goodwilf $5.2 million and other
$0.3 million. The receivable was recorded as aiggdn of goodwill due to certain raw material vimles during the 91 da
following the closing date not being achieved per &sset purchase agreement. The $1.5 millionvedae is recorded as a Ic
term other asset on the balance sheet at Janua®p(®. In addition, the Company could be requitedpay addition:
consideration, which the Company does not expebetmaterial, if certain average market pricesaatéeved over the next thi
anniversaries of the closing of the API Transact&ss, on a pro rata basis, the ldagn receivable of $1.5 million. During 1
third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company recordmdtitional consideration of $2.5 million recorded goodwill les
approximately $0.5 million representing a reductanthe long term receivable. The additional cdesition was paid in t
fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.

The $7.7 million of goodwill from the API Transamti was assigned to the restaurant services segmenis expected to
deductible for tax purposes. ldentifiable intategbin the API Transaction include $5.5 millionroutes with a weighted averz
useful life of nine years.

On September 11, 2009, the Company sold its LRéxk, Arkansas grease/trap plant to a third pasty dash and oth
consideration of approximately $1.6 million. Effee September 11, 2009, the consolidated finarstatiements do not inclu
the operations of the Little Rock plant. The distlre of the Little Rock plant as discontinued atiens and the pro forr
presentation of the Little Rock plant have not bade because the Company has determined thaistbedal revenues and 1
income are not material to the Company for fis@02and 2008.

NOTEINVENTORIES

3.

A summary of inventories follows (in thousands):

January 2 January 3
2010 2009
Finished produc $ 16,21 $ 19,38(
Supplies and other 2,84¢ 2,80z

$ 19,05 $ 22,18:
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NOTEPROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN"
4.

A summary of property, plant and equipment folldimsthousands):

January 2 January 3

2010 2009
Land $  18,38¢ $ 17,82¢
Buildings and improvemen 52,05¢ 48,62
Machinery and equipme 244,96 217,45(
Vehicles 56,22! 54,65¢
Construction in process 3,91¢ 16,04

375,54 354,597
Accumulated depreciation (223,56 (211,30¢)

$ 151,98 $ 143,29:

NOTEINTANGIBLE ASSETS
5.

The gross carrying amount of intangible assetsestiltp amortization include (in thousands):

January 2, January 3,
2010 2009
Intangible Assets
Routes $  68,02¢ $ 60,00¢
Permits 20,50( 20,50(
Non-compete agreemer 2,491 2,36¢
Royalty and consulting agreements 38¢ 38¢
91,401 83,26:
Accumulated Amortizatior
Routes (44,73 (42,03))
Permits (3,725 (2,700
Non-compete agreemer (2,329 (2,240
Royalty and consulting agreeme (324) (304)
(51,109 (47,287
Intangible assets, le accumulated amortizatic $  40,29¢ $ 35,98

Gross intangible routes and noompete agreements increased in fiscal 2009 byoajpately $8.1 million consisting

approximately $4.8 million from the Sanimax Trartgat and $3.3 million from the Boca Transactiondiscussed in No
2. Amortization expense for the three years erdediary 2, 2010, January 3, 2009 and Decembel0P9, vas approximate
$3.8 million, $5.2 million and $4.9 million, resgeely. Amortization expense for the next five fidg/ears is estimated to
$4.3 million, $4.1 million, $4.0 million, $3.8 midn and $3.8 million.
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NOTE GOODWILL

6.
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill (in thads):
Restaurar
Rendering Services Total

Balance at January 3, 20
Goodwill $ 55,93( $ 21,117 $ 77,04
Accumulated impairment losses (13,86 (2,050 (15,919
42,06¢ 19,06° 61,13:
Goodwill acquired during ye: 9,621 8,32t 17,95
Impairment losses — — —

Balance at January 2, 20
Goodwill 65,557 29,44; 94,99¢
Accumulated impairment loss (13,86 (2,050 (15,919

$ 51,69: $ 27,39: $  79,08¢

Certain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependent on onfew suppliers. It is reasonably possible treatain o
those suppliers could cease their operations oosgh@ competitos’ services which could have a significant impacttioes:
facilities.

Based on the Comparsyannual impairment testing at the end of the fogrtarter of fiscal 2008 it was determined thatdyait
was impaired due to lower commodity markets andldlss of certain large raw material suppliers ia thurth quarter of fisc

2008, which resulted in the Company recording apainment charge of approximately $15.9 million whse future discountt
net cash flows.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmenvdlves the determination of the fair value of Bempanys reportin
units. In step one, the Company determined basethe discounted cash flows that one of the Comigargporting unitg
carrying value exceeded its fair value in fiscaD20 In step two the Company is required to compluteimplied fair value of tt
reporting units goodwill and compare it against the actual cagyamount of goodwill for that reporting unit. $hiva:
determined in the same manner that goodwill recghin a business combination is determined. Thé#te fair value of tf
reporting unit was allocated to all of the indivddwassets and liabilities of the reporting unitliing any intangible assets, a
the reporting unit had been acquired in a busicessbination and the fair value of the reportingt uwtétermined in the first st
was the price paid to acquire the reporting unit.

In fiscal 2009, the fair values of the Companysaring units containing goodwill exceeded the tedacarrying value.

NOTE ACCRUED EXPENSES

7.
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in trangs):
January 2, January 3,
2010 2009
Compensation and benef $ 17,15¢ $ 18,83¢
Utilities and sewag 3,781 5,29:
Accrued income, ad valorem, and franchise ti 3,23¢ 1,12(
Reserve for self insurance, litigation, environna¢nt
and tax matters (Note 1 5,08 5,51
Medical claims liability 4,23( 4,98
Other accrued expense 14,03: 14,034

$ 47,52 $ 49,78(
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NOTELEASES
8.

The Company leases six plants and storage locatiore® office locations and a portion of its tyamsation equipment under operating
leases. Leases are noncancellable and expirgiatisaimes through the year 2028. Minimum rentahmitments under noncancella
leases as of January 2, 2010, are as follows ¢insidnds)

Period Endin Operating Lease
Fiscal
2010 $10,52C
2011 9,093
2012 6,229
2013 4,295
2014 2,437
Thereaftel 10,987
Total $43,561

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Janua2@10), January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 wdsn$iflion, $8.6 millior
and $7.8 million, respectively.

NOTEDEBT
9.

Credit Agreemen

The Company has a $175 million credit agreemerg (redit Agreement”effective April 7, 2006. The Credit Agreem
provides for a total of $175.0 million in financirigcilities, consisting of a $50.0 million term todacility and a $125.0 millic
revolver facility, which includes a $35.0 millioatter of credit sulfacility. As of January 2, 2010, the Company hasdwed al
$50.0 million under the term loan facility, whichopides for quarterly scheduled amortization paytseri $1.25 million over
six-year term ending April 7, 2012; at that point, tleenaining balance of $22.5 million will be payalefull. The revolving
credit facility has a seveyear term ending April 7, 2013. The proceeds ef tévolving credit facility may be used for: (ije
payment of fees and expenses payable in connedtitih the Credit Agreement, acquisitions and theayepent o
indebtedness; (i) financing the working capitakds of the Company; and (iii) other general cafgopurposes.

The Credit Agreement allows for borrowings at panwm rates based on the following loan types. Aligx base rate loans un
the Credit Agreement will bear interest at a raegnnum based on the greater of (a) the prime (@t¢he federal funds effecti
rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) plusdf/2% and (c) the adjusted London Inter-Bank ORate (“LIBOR”) for a ont
month interest period plus 1% plus, in each casea@yin determined by reference to a pricing grid adjusted according to
Companys adjusted leverage ratio. Eurodollar loans vatubinterest at a rate per annum based on theapi@itable LIBOR rai
multiplied by the statutory reserve rate plus agmadetermined by reference to a pricing grid adgusted according to t
Companys adjusted leverage ratio. At January 2, 2010 wtide Credit Agreement, the interest rate for tB&.% million of thi
term loan that was outstanding was based on LIB@R @ margin of 2.5% per annum for a total of 2®42per annum. /
January 2, 2010 there were no outstanding borraswvimgler the Company’s revolving facility.
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On October 8, 2008, the Company entered into anndment (the “2008 Amendmentiyith its lenders under its Cre
Agreement. The 2008 Amendment increases the Coyfpdexibility to make investments in third partiézursuant to the 20
Amendment, the Company can make investments id fdrties provided that (i) no default under thedir Agreement exists
would result at the time such investment is comeditb be made, (ii) certain specified defaults dbexist or would result at t
time such investment is actually made, and (iii¢@giving pro forma effect to such investment, linerage ratio (as determir
in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreetnisnless than 2.00 to 1.00 for the most receut fiscal quarter period th
ended. In addition, the 2008 Amendment incredsesamount of intercompany investments permittedregrtbe Company a
any of its subsidiaries that are not parties toGhedit Agreement from $2.0 million to $10.0 mitio

On September 30, 2009, the Company, entered intansandment (the “2009 Amendmentijth its lenders under the Cre
Agreement. The 2009 Amendment (i) extends the ritatdate of the revolving facility from April 7,@&.1 to April 7, 2013, (i
revises the pricing schedule with respect to letfecredit fees and interest rates payable by tbm@any and amends cert
definitions in connection therewith, (iii) permithe issuance of new unsecured indebtedness anddanzm adds cert:
definitions in connection therewith, and (iv) amsrabrtain provisions with respect to the defaullielgder concept in the Cre
Agreement. Pursuant to the 2009 Amendment, thep@osncan issue new unsecured indebtedness prothdedi) no defau
under the Credit Agreement exists or would resuoltnfthe incurrence of such new unsecured indebssdifi€) the amount of su
new unsecured indebtedness does not exceed $1k@nmail any time outstanding, and (iii) after gigipro forma effect to su
incurrence of new unsecured indebtedness, the Qoymipain compliance with the fixed charge coveragio and the levera
ratio (as determined in accordance with the terhteeoCredit Agreement).

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictiogenants that are customary for similar credit rageanents and requires
maintenance of certain minimum financial ratioheTCredit Agreement also requires the Company tkencartain mandato
prepayments of outstanding indebtedness using éheash proceeds received from certain dispositadr@operty, casualty
condemnation, any sale or issuance of equity istergn a public offering or in a private placememypermitted addition
indebtedness incurred by the Company, and excsssfloav under certain circumstances.

The Credit Agreement consisted of the followingdats at January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009,atdsglg (in thousands):

January 2 January 3
2010 2009
Credit Agreement

Term Loan $  32,50( $  37,50(

Revolving Credit Facility
Maximum availability $ 125,00( $ 125,00(
Borrowings outstandin - -
Letters of credit issued 15,85 16,42+
Availability $ 109,14t $ 108,57¢

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are gntaed by Darling National LLC, a Delaware limitebility company that i
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Darling (“Darling Natial’), and are secured by substantially all of the prgpeftthe Compan
including a pledge of all equity interests in DagliNational. As of January 2, 2010, the Company imacompliance with all tt
financial covenants and believes it was in comkawith all of the other covenants contained in@nedit Agreement.
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Debt consists of the following (in thousands):

January 2, January 3,
2010 2009

Credit Agreement
Revolving Credit Facilit $ - $ -
Term Loar 32,50( 37,50(
Other Notes 48 -
32,54¢ 37,50(
Less Current Maturitie 5,00¢ 5,00(
$ 27,53¢ $ 32,50(

Maturities of long-term debt at January 2, 201@ofel(in thousands):

Contractual

Debt Paymen

2010 $ 5,00¢
2011 5,00¢
2012 22,51(
2013 10
2014 10
$ 32,54¢

As of January 2, 2010, current maturities of détm0 million will be due during fiscal 2010, whidnclude scheduled term Ic
principal payments of $1.25 million due each quarte

NOTE OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
i

Other noncurrent liabilities consist of the followgi (in thousands

January 2, January 3,
2010 2009
Accrued pension liability (Note 1: $ 19,06( $ 36,261
Reserve  for  self insurance, litigati
environmental
and tax matters (Note 1 14,61( 14,41¢
Other 2,47 3,59¢
$ 36,14: $ 54,27

NOTE INCOME TAXES
1

The FASB issued guidance under ASC 740, which pitess accounting for and disclosure of uncertainp@sitions (“UTP”). ASC 74(
requires application of a more likely than not gireld to the recognition and deeognition of UTP. ASC 740 permits recognitiol
the amount of tax benefit that has a greater tfiapescent likelihood of being realized upon setdatm A change in judgment relate«
the expected ultimate resolution of UTP is recogdiin earnings in the quarter of change. Effeciheeember 31, 2006 the Comp
adopted these provisions of ASC 740 resulting feduction in the Company’existing reserves for uncertain state and fedecalme
tax positions of approximately $0.1 million. Thisduction was recorded as a cumulative effect &ujest to retained earnings. At
adoption date of December 31, 2006, the CompanysBatimillion of gross unrecognized tax benefifsthe Company recognized st
tax benefits, the net impact on the Comparsffective tax rate would be $0.6 million, whicictludes the effect of the reversal of
$0.1 million deferred tax asset. At January 2,@8fd January 3, 2009, the Company had $0.1 milih$0.5 million, respectively
gross unrecognized tax benefits; if recognized,nieimpact on the Comparsyeffective tax rate would be less than $0.1 nmillénc
$0.4 million, respectively, which includes the eff®f the reversal of $0.1 million in deferred tagset. The Company recogn
accrued interest and penalties, as appropriatteceto unrecognized tax benefits as a compondantofme tax expense.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of theange in the unrecognized tax benefit balance ddeffal, state ai
foreign taxes (in thousands).

January 2 January 3

2010 2009
Balance beginning of ye: $ 468 3 542
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 17 35
Settlement: (47 (8
Lapses in statutes of limitations (303) (105)
Balance end of ye: $ 132 $ 46E

The Companys major taxing jurisdictions include the U.S. (feleand state). The Company is no longer subjedetlera
examinations on years prior to fiscal 2005. Thmber of years open for state tax audits varieseun@ing on the tax jurisdictic
but is generally from three to five years. Curlgnone state examination is in progress. The Guomgpdoes not anticipate tl
any state or federal audits will have a significempact on the Company’results of operations or financial position.abfdition
the Company does not reasonably expect any significhanges to the estimated amount of liabilitgoamted with th
Company’s unrecognized tax positions in fiscal 2010

Income tax expense/(benefit) attributable to incdram continuing operations before income taxessigis of the following (in

thousands):
December
January 2 January 3 29,
2010 2009 2007
Current:
Federal $ 11,74: $ 29,19: $ 22,41¢
State 2,70z 5,152 3,301
Deferred:
Federal and State 10,64¢ 1,00¢ 3,78(
$ 25,08¢ $ 35,35« $ 29,49¢

Income tax expense for the years ended Januar@1), January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, difféx@n the amoul
computed by applying the statutory U.S. federabime tax rate to income from continuing operatioafote income taxes a:
result of the following (in thousands):
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December
January 2 January 3 29,
2010 2009 2007
Computecexpecte” tax
expense $ 23,40¢ $ 31,471 $ 26,26
State income taxe 2,491 3,43¢ 2,821
Section 199 deductic (744) (1,257) (832)
Non-deductible employee
compensatiol 201 992 50C
Tax credits (442) (128) (49)
Reversal of reserve for
taxes (212 (19 (51
Other, ne 38€ 85¢ 843
$ 25,08¢ $ 35,35¢ $ 29,49¢

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tageds and deferred tax liabilities
January 2, 2010 and January 3, 2009 are preseeled fin thousands):

January 2 January 3
2010 2009
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 2,19¢ $ 2,52¢
Loss contingency reserv 7,33( 7,87
Employee benefit 3,07( 2,48¢
Pension liability 14,08¢ 17,39¢
Intangible assets amortization, including taxe
goodwill 552 1,68¢
Other 4,29( 3,471
Total gross deferred tax ass 31,52¢ 35,44
Less valuation allowance (175) (220)
Net deferred tax assets 31,35: 35,22:
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets amortization, including taxe
goodwill - -
Property, plant and equipment deprecia (21,789 (15,459
Other (8,6872) (4,229)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (30,470 (19,68¢)
$ 881 $ 15,53:

At January 2, 2010, the Company had net operatisg tarryforwards for federal income tax purpodeapproximately $5.
million expiring through 2020. The availability tfe net operating loss carryforwards to reduceréutaxable income is subjec
various limitations. As a result of the chang@wnership which occurred pursuant to the May 2@@2ypitalization, utilization
the net operating loss carryforwards is limitedapiproximately $0.7 million per year for the remamilife of the net operatil
losses.

The net change in the total valuation allowance avdgcrease of less than $0.1 million for the yeated January 2, 2010 dut

the expiration of net operating loss carryforwarditie Company has assessed that it is more likely hot that it will geners
sufficient taxable income in future periods to isaits deferred income tax assets.
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NOTE STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
1.

On May 11, 2005, the shareholders approved the PG4 The 2004 Plan replaced both the 1994 Erepléyexible Stock Opt
Plan and the Nofmployee Directors Stock Option Plan and thus beoadthe array of equity alternatives available h
Company. Under the 2004 Plan, the Company is alibte grant stock options, stock appreciation sghonvested and restric
stock (including performance stock), restricteccktanits (including performance units), other stbelsed awards, noemploye
director awards, dividend equivalents and caaked awards. There are up to 6,074,969 commaoesshaailable under the 2
Plan which may be granted to any participant in plan year as defined in the 2004 Plan. Some adettshares are subje
outstanding awards as detailed in the tables belbwthe extent these outstanding awards are fedar expire without exerc
the shares will be returned to and available foureigrants under the 2004 Plan. The 2004 Blpotpose is to attract, retain
motivate employees, directors and third party serpiroviders of the Company and to encourage temave a financial interes
the Company. The 2004 Plan is administered byCthipensation Committee (the “Committeef)the Board of Directors. ~
Committee has the authority to select plan pamicip, grant awards, and determine the terms anditmors of such awards
defined in the 2004 Plan. The Compangtock options granted under the 2004 Plan gdpemminate 10 years after dat
grant. At January 2, 2010, the number of equitgrals available for issuance under the 2004 Plan2ygi6,738.

The following is a summary of stoddased compensation granted during the years erade@ty 2, 2010, January 3, 2009
December 29, 2007.

Nongualified Stock Options On May 8, 2007, the Company granted 8,000 ndifgpeghstock options in the aggregate to two non-
employee directors following their initial electido the board by the stockholders. The exercigee dor the May 8, 2007 sto
options was $8.03 per share (fair market valuerattgdate). On February 27, 2008, the Companytgda0,000 nonqualifie
stock options in the aggregate to the momployee directors. The exercise price for Felyr@dr, 2008 stock options was $13
per share (fair market value at grant date). Ory Ma 2008 following a new direct@’initial election to the board by 1
stockholders, the Company granted 4,000 nonquailgiteck options to the most recent remployee director. The exercise p

for the May 6, 2008 stock options was $16.20 peref{fair market value at grant date). On March 2@09, the Compal
granted 24,000 nonqualified stock options in thgragate to the noamployee directors. The exercise price for Mar@h200¢
stock options was $2.94 per share (fair marketesalugrant date). All of the na@mployee director stock options vest 25 pel

six months after the grant date and 25 percentaoh ef the first three anniversary dates thereafter

Incentive Stock OptionsFor fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007 the Company didsswme any incentive stock options.

A summary of stock option activity as of Januarg@]10 and changes during the year ended is presbatew.

Weighted-avg. Weighted-avg.
exercise price remaining
Number of share  per shar¢  contractual life

Options outstanding at January 3, 2| 796,20t 3.74

Grantec 24,00C 2.94

Exercisec (10,000; 1.12

Forfeited - N/A

Expired — N/A
Options outstanding at January 2, 2| 810,20t 3.75 4.9 years
Options exercisable at January 2, 2! 778,20¢ 3.60 4.8 years
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The fair value of each stock option grant underGbenpan’s stock option plan was estimated on the dateanitgrsing the Blac
Scholes optio-pricing model with the following weighted averagesamptions and results for fiscal 2009, 2008 ariy z

Weighted Averag: 2009 2008 2007
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 2.31% 3.24% 4.57%
Expected tern 5.80 year: 5.80 year: 5.75 year:
Expected volatility 58.4% 42.0% 52.1%
Fair value of options grante $1.76 $6.23 $4.30

The expected lives for options granted during fi2€®9, 2008 and 2007 were computed using the #isgbimethod as prescrib
by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.

At January 2, 2010, $2.3 million of total futureudy-based compensation expense (determined ubm@lackScholes optio
pricing model) related to outstanding neested options and stock awards is expected t@dmgnized over a weighted aver
period of 1.7 years.

For the year ended January 2, 2010 the amountsif ezceived from the exercise of options and thetee tax benefits we
insignificant. For the year ended January 3, 2808 December 29, 2007, the amount of cash recdieed the exercise
options was approximately $0.3 million and $0.5lianil, respectively and the related tax benefitsenagoproximately $2.3 millic
and $1.2 million, respectively. The total intrinsialue of options exercised for the years endedaly 2, 2010, January 3, 2(
and December 29, 2007 was approximately $0.1 mijllg6.4 million and $2.5 million, respectively. &ffair value of shar
vested for the years ended January 2, 2010, JaBy@§09 and December 29, 2007 was approximatelf B@lion, $0.6 millior
and $0.6 million, respectively. At January 2, 20ft¢e aggregate intrinsic value of options outsitagdvas approximately $2
million and the aggregate intrinsic value of opiaxercisable was approximately $3.8 million.

Non-Vested Stock Awards On March 3, 2008, the Comparmyboard of directors granted 67,411 shares of stoder th
Companys long term incentive awards. At the grant dat83%® shares vested immediately and the remainogk stwards ve
over the next three anniversary dates of the graegual installments. On March 10, 2009, the Canyfs board of directo
granted 410,076 shares of stock, 366,326 shares weter the Comparg’long term incentive awards and 43,750 shares
granted as a one-time issuance to other employseqzan of the Compang’long term incentive award program. At the Mat6t
2009 grant date 102,518 shares vested immediatelyhe remaining stock awards vest over the negetanniversary dates of
grants in equal installments.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested stock awasdsf January 2, 2010, and changes during theeyebad is as follows:

Weighted Averag

Non-Vested Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Stock awards outstanding January 3, 2 50,55¢ $ 13.9C
Shares grante 410,07¢ 2.94
Shares veste (129,379 4.49
Shares forfeitel - -
Stock awards outstanding January 2, 2 341,26: $ 4.0z
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Restricted Stock Awards.On March 9, 2006, the Company's Board of Directgproved a NoEmployee Director Restrict
Stock Award Plan (as subsequently amended, thee€ir Restricted Stock Plan™) pursuant to and toetance with the 201
Plan in order to attract and retain highly quatifipersons to serve as nemployee directors and to more closely align
directors' interests with the interests of the ldotders of the Company by providing a portion ledit compensation in the fo
of Company common stock.

Under the Director Restricted Stock Plan, $20,00€estricted Company common stock (the "RestriGeatk") will be awarde
to each noremployee director on the fourth business day #fteiCompany releases its earnings for its priorpletad fiscal ye:
(the "Date of Award"). The amount of restrictedcst to be issued will be calculated using the dggprice of the Company’
common stock on the third business day after theg2my releases its earnings. The Restricted Stiltke subject to a right «
repurchase at $0.01 per share upon terminatioheoholder as a member of the Company's board eétdirs for cause and v
not be transferable. These restrictions will lapéth respect to 100% of the Restricted Stock ugmndarliest to occur of (i) t
years after the Date of Award, (ii) a Change of min(as defined in the 2004 Plan), and (iii) temation of the noremploye:
director's service with the Company, other than'éause"” (as defined in the Director Restrictecclst®lan). On March 10, 20(
the Company issued 40,818 shares of restricted gtothe aggregate to its namployee directors under the Director Restri
Stock Plan. On March 3, 2008 and March 11, 20688, @ompany issued 7,190 and 1,509 shares of testr&tock in th
aggregate to its noemployee directors under the Director RestrictextiSPlan. On March 20, 2007, the Company issued32
shares of restricted stock in the aggregate toatsemployee directors under the Director Restli@tck Plan.

A summary of the Company’s directon®stricted stock awards as of January 2, 2010,caadges during the year ended i
follows:

Weighted Averag:

Restricted Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Stock awards outstanding January 3, 2 38,71« $7.23
Restricted shares grant 40,81¢ 2.94
Restricted shares where the restriction laj - N/A
Restricted shares forfeitt - N/A
Stock awards outstanding January 2, 2 79,53: $5.08

Long-Term Incentive Opportunity Awards The Committee has adopted a Long-Term IncenBlan (the “LTIP")for the
Companys key employees, as a subplan under the termeddf4 Plan. The principal purpose of the LTIRoigncourage tt
Company’s executives to enhance the value of thepgaay and, hence, the price of the Company’s stockthe stockholders’
return. In addition, the LTIP is designed to ceeattention incentives for the individual and tade an opportunity fi
increased equity ownership by executives. The Citmenawarded dollar value performance based o#stristock and sto
option opportunities under the LTIP for fiscal 2Q@%certain of the Comparg/officers, including the Chief Executive Officard
the Executive Vice Presidents of Finance and Adstriaiion, Operations, Commodities, Legal, and SatekServices (the200¢
Restricted Stock and Option Awards™ he restricted stock and stock options underlylmg 2009 Restricted Stock and Op
Awards are issued only if a predetermined finanolgective is met by the Company. The Company timetfinancial objectiv
for fiscal 2009. Accordingly, in accordance witietterms of the 2009 Restricted Stock and Optiorard, it is anticipated tt
the restricted stock representing 75% of the aveaud! stock options representing 25% of the awartbeilgranted and issuec
the executives on the fourth business day afteilCbimpany releases its annual financial resultdigmal 2009. The amount
restricted stock to be issued will be calculateisgishe closing price of the Compasycommon stock on the third business
after the Company releases its annual financiallte$or fiscal 2009. The stock options will haae exercise price equal to
fair market value of the Comparsycommon stock on the third business day afterGompany releases its annual finar
results. These awards vest in four equal instaitsjewith the first installment vesting immediatelgon the grant date and
remaining three installments vesting on the nestehanniversary dates of the grafie award is treated as a liability until
grant date when the number of shares and optiohs tesued is known, and then it becomes equéysified. At January 2, 20
and January 3, 2009 the Company recorded a liglofiepproximately $1.8 million and $1.1 million d¢ime balance sheet for
long-term incentive opportunities.
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NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

1

The Company has retirement and pension plans ecaystibstantially all of its employees. Most retient benefits are provid
by the Company under separate fipalt noncontributory and contributory defined benafid defined contribution plans for
salaried and hourly employees (excluding those remldy unionsponsored plans) who meet service and age requite
Defined benefits are based principally on lengtBea/ice and earnings patterns during the fiveg/pegceding retirement.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling National LIE@nsion Retirement Plan was merged into the Ratimernational Inc
Hourly EmployeesRetirement Plan, which plan was then amended astdtesl. Employees from both plans are entitlethéa
accrued benefit as of December 31, 2007 under grigr plan design, plus benefit accruals afterudayn 1, 2008 using the n
benefit of $20 for each year of service with no capservice years with no effect on accumulatedefiesn Previously, the
hourly employees had been accruing $20-$30 perofesarvice, depending on location of employment.

Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Inteimaal Inc. Salaried EmployeeRetirement Plan, a defined benefit plan,
amended. Effective January 1, 2008, all of the gamy’s eligible salaried employees participate in th&pincluding all forme
Darling National salaried employees who did notéhav defined benefit plan prior to January 1, 208B.eligible salarie
employees are entitled to their accrued benefafddecember 31, 2007, which accrued benefit isranumt equal to 1.8% tim
years of service (up to 25 years) times final agerpay plus 0.5% for each additional service yegohd 25 years, with a to
service year cap of 40 years with no effect on amdated benefits. Effective January 1, 2008, fenviee years earned go
forward, the benefit accrual will be 0.25% timeswggeof service times final average pay.

Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling NatiobbC Retirement Savings Plan was amended andtegst®, among oth
things, update the plan for the Economic Growth 8ax Relief Reconciliation Act and change the narhthe plan to the Darlir
International Inc. Hourly 401(k) Savings Plan. dgfive January 1, 2008, all of the Compankburly employees are eligible
participate in this plan, which allows for electideferrals, an employer match equal to 100% offitts¢ $10 per pay peric
deferred by a participant, with a maximum of $520 pear, and an employer contribution equal to $5@0year. Previous|
certain of the Compang’hourly employees were only given the opportutitynake deferrals. The $520 employer contribt
will be a new contribution for all participating tidy employees. This plan accepted the transfemsskts and liabilities of t
hourly employees that had account balances in #rérg International Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan wheotisted prior to January
2008. The Compang’matching portion to the Darling International.lhtourly 401(k) Savings plan for fiscal 2009 and&@va:
approximately $0.7 million and $0.6 million, resgieely.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Internatiolrec. 401(k) Savings Plan, a defined contributjplan, was amended &
restated and became the Darling International Balaried 401(k) Savings Plan and now includes &tlibde salarie
employees. This plan received the assets anditiediof participating salaried employees undez arling National LL(
Retirement Savings Plan. Effective January 1, 2@B8 Darling International Inc. Salaried 401(k)vidgs Plan includes
employer contribution based on age (ranging from¥2-of compensation per year), and will continuealow for employe
deferrals. Previously, only the Darling Nationaifoyees received an employer match, which waslaéquiZd0% of the first $1
per pay period deferred by a participant, with aximam of $520 per year. The Compasiyhatching portion to the Darli
International Inc. Salaried 401(k) Savings Plan fiscal 2009 and 2008 was approximately $1.5 milliand $1.4 millior
respectively. The Company’s match in fiscal 2007the previous Darling National plan was approxeha$0.2 million.
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FASB ASC Topic 715Compensation — Retirement BenefftSC 715”) requires that the Company recognizedhierfunded o
under-funded status of the Company’s defined bepeft-retirement plans as an asset or liabilitthen Companys balance she
with changes in the funded status recognized thr@agnprehensive income in the year in which theguoc In addition, ASC 71
requires that companies using a measurement dade titan the fiscal year end change to a fiscat gad measurement d
effective for years ending after December 15, 200Be Company adopted the measurement date provisi008 the impact
which was not material.

The following table sets forth the plans’ fundedtss and amounts recognized in the Companghsolidated balance sheets b
on the measurement date (January 2, 2010 and Jaw2009) (in thousands):

respectively
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January 2 January 3
2010 2009
Change in projected benefit obligatic
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of pel $ 96,53¢ $ 90,74:
Service cos 984 1,32¢
Interest cos 5,76 6,77:
Actuarial loss 3,76¢ 2,52¢
Benefits paic (3,919 (4,990
Other 15 157
Projected benefit obligation at effigh@riod 103,15¢ 96,53¢
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 60,27¢ 81,57¢
Actual return on plan asse 12,81: (22,859)
Employer contributior 14,92t 6,54¢
Benefits paid (3,919 (4,990
Fair value of plan assets at endeniopl 84,09¢ 60,27¢
Funded statu (29,060) (36,267)
Pos-measurement date contributic — —
Net amount recognized $ 19,06() $ (36,269
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist c
Non-current liability $ (19,060 $ (36,267
Net amount recogniz $ (19,060 $ (36,269
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss consist
Net actuarial los $ 35,86¢ $ 44,27
Prior service cost 37E 503
Net amount recognized $ 36,24! $ 44,78(

(@) Amounts do not include deferred taxes of $13.7 iamilland $17.0 million at January 2, 2010 and Janiugr 2009
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January 2 January 3
2010 2009
Projected benefit obligation $ $ 96,539
103,159
Accumulated benefit obligatic 96,082 90,143
Fair value of plan asse 84,099 60,276
Net pension cost includes the following componéimtshousands):
January January Decembe
2, 3, 29,
2010 2009 2007
Service cos $ 984 $ 1,067 $ 2,32¢
Interest cos 5,767 5,44 5,011
Expected return on plan ass (4,81)) (6,607) (5,63¢€)
Net amortization and deferral 4,321 472 1,26¢
Net pension cost $ 6261 $ 37 $ 297-

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelieristome (loss) for the year ended (in thousands):

200¢ 200¢
Actuarial gains recognize:

Reclassification adjustmer $ 2,55¢ 213
Actuarial (loss)/gain recognized duri the perioc 2,592 (20,579
Measurement date adoption adjustn - 52

Prior service (cost) credit recogniz¢
Reclassification adjustmer 88 75
Prior service cost arising during the per 9 (96)
Measurement date adoption adjustment — 19
$ 5,22¢ $ (20,319

The estimated amount that will be amortized facoumulated other comprehensive loss into net gierfpgension cost in fisc

2010 is as follows (in thousands):

Net actuarial los
Prior service cos

Weighted average assumptions used to determindibeblégations were:

201(
3,131
111

3,242

January 2, January 3, December 29,
2010 2009 2007
Discount rate 5.90% 6.10% 6.00%
Rate of compensation incree 4.08% 4.08% 4.10%
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Weighted average assumptions used to determingeniedic benefit cost for the employee benefit pemplans were:

January 2 January 3 Decembe!

2010 2009 29,
2007
Discount rate 6.10% 6.00% 5.75%
Rate of increase in future compensation le 4.08% 4.10% 4.08%
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 8.10% 8.10% 8.25%

Consideration was made to the long-term time horifow the plansbenefit obligations as well as the related assetscmix il
determining the expected long-term rate of retutistorical returns are also considered, over thregterm time horizon, i
determining the expected return. Considering therall asset mix of approximately 60% equity an@w4fixed income, sever
years in the last ten years (except for 2008) hpginong double digit returns as well as severaky®f single digit losses, 1
Company believes it is reasonable to expect a teng-rate of return of 8.10% for the plans’ invesiits as a whole.

Plan Assets

The Company’s pension plan weightaderage asset allocations at January 2, 2010 anthda3, 2009, by asset category, al
follows:

Plan Assets ¢

January 2 January 3
Asset Categor 2010 2009
Equity Securitie: 61.1% 55.6%
Debt Securitie: 38.9% 44.2%
Other - % 0.2%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

The investment objectives have been establishednjunction with a comprehensive review of the entrand projected financ
requirements. The primary investment objectives dr) to have the ability to pay all benefit axgpense obligations when due
to maximize investment returns within reasonablé prudent levels of risk in order to minimize cdlotitions; and 3) to mainte
flexibility in determining the future level of caittutions.

Investment results are the most critical elemenadhieving funding objectives, while reliance omtibutions is a seconde
element.

The investment guidelines are based upon an ineggtimorizon of greater than ten years; therefargerim fluctuations al
viewed with this perspective. The strategic asal&gcation is based on this longrm perspective. However, because
participants’ average age is somewhat older thartypical average plan age, consideration is gteeretaining some shotérr
liquidity. Analysis of the cash flow projectionsf dhe plans indicates that benefit payments willntomie to excee
contributions. The results of a thorough adisdtiity study completed during 2008 reinforcede tlappropriateness of 1
Company'’s target asset allocation ranges desclibezin.

Based upon the plans’ time horizon, risk tolerangesformance expectations, asset class constraimtsasseliability study
results, target asset allocation ranges are asifsll

Fixed Income 35%- 45%
Domestic Equitie: 45%- 55%
International Equitie 7%- 13%
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The fixed income asset allocation may be investedorporate and government bonds denominated in ddl&ars, private ar
publicly traded mortgages, private placement dabt, cash equivalents. The average maturity oafiset class will not exce
ten years. The portfolio is expected to be weledsified.

The domestic equity allocation is invested in stotiaded on one of the U.S. stock exchanges. Hesuconvertible into sut
stocks, convertible bonds and preferred stock, alsy be purchased. The majority of the domestidtieg are invested in larg
mid, and small cap index accounts that are wekmdified. These index accounts utilize the Stan@aRbor’s (“S&P”) 500, S&F
400 and S&P 600, respectively. By definition, dntalp investments carry greater risk, but alsoeqgected to create gree
returns over time. The plans target approximafeB% of the total asset mix to small cap. Ameridé@pository Receip
(“ADR’s”) may not account for more than 3% of theld#ings. Small company stocks may not exceed 15%he plans’
assets. Small company definitions fluctuate witlarket levels, but generally will be considered camips with marki
capitalizations less than $1.5 billion. The pditfavill be diversified in terms of individual conapy securities and industries.
individual equity or individual fixed income instnent comprises more than 1.5% of the defined bempddins’ total asse
(excluding U.S. government issues).

The international equity allocation is investeccompanies whose stock is traded outside the U@&oacompanies that cond
the major portion of their business outside of th&. The portfolio may invest in ADR' The emerging market portion of
international equity investment is held below 20%4e do greater volatility in the asset class. Thetfplio is expected to |
diversified in terms of companies, industries aodrtries.

All investment objectives are expected to be addewver a market cycle anticipated to be a peribdive to seve
years. Reallocations are performed at a minimutwigie a year to retain target asset allocatiomgean

The following table presents fair value measuremdat the Company’s defined benefit plarmssets as of January 2, 2
categorized using the fair value hierarchy unde€/20 (in thousands):

Quoted Prices i Significant Othe Significant
Active Markets
Fair Value for Observable Unobservable
January 2 Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
(In thousands of dollar: 2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fixed Maturities:
Lon¢-term bonds $ 29,87¢ % — 3 29,87¢ % —
U.S. Government bon 2,19: — 2,19¢ —
Equity Securities
Common stock 50,527 — 50,521 —
Other equity interests 1,50( — 1,50( —
$ 84,09¢ $ —  $ 84,09¢ $ =

The defined benefit plans’ assets are 100% conprisepurchased units of pooled separate accoumSA"). The net asse
values of the PSA’s are not publialjroted in an active market. The net assets vdleaah PSA is based on the market valt
the underlying investments.

Contributions
The Company's funding policy for employee beneéihgion plans is to contribute annually not less ttiee minimum amou

required nor more than the maximum amount thatbeadeducted for federal income tax purposes. @aitbns are intended
provide not only for benefits attributed to servioedate but also for those expected to be eamétkifuture.
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Based on current actuarial estimates, the Compapgcts to make payments of approximately $1.0 amllto meet fundir
requirements for its pension plans in fiscal 2010.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectéeé toaid (in thousands):

Year Endinc Pension Benefit
2010 $ 4,340
2011 4,470
2012 4,590
2013 4,730
2014 5,210
Years 2015~ 2019 31,040

The Company participates in several meltiployer pension plans which provide defined bésédi certain employees coverec
labor contracts. These plans are not administeyetie Company and contributions are determineatoordance with provisio
of negotiated labor contracts. Current informatidth respect to the Company's proportionate shatke over-and unddundec
status of all actuarially computed value of vedtedefits over these pension plans’ net assetstisivailable. The Compary’
portion of contributions to these plans amounte#i2d million, $2.8 million and $2.6 million for ¢hyears ended January 2, 2(
January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respectively

The Company patrticipates in several metltiployer pension plans which provide defined bésédi certain employees coverec
labor contracts. One mukimployer plan in which the Company participatesegastification of a mass withdrawal terminai
for the plan year ended June 30, 2007. In Aprd&¢he Company made a lump sum settlement payroahis multiemploye
plan for approximately $1.4 million, which includadelease for any future liability. In June 200% Company received a not
of a mass withdrawal termination and a notice ofiahwithdrawal liability from another multemployer plan in which
participates. The Company had anticipated thiseand as a result had accrued approximately $8ldmas of January 3, 20!
based on the most recent information that was flelend estimable for this plan. The plan hasmizaotice of redeterminati
liability in December 2009 and as a result, the @any’s accrued liability at January 2, 2010 has noteased from the origin
amount as this remains the Companpest estimate of the liability based on the mesent information that is probable i
estimable for the plan. Another of the underfundedti-employer plans in which the Company participatesdigen notificatio
of “Critical Status” under the federal Pension Bodibn Act (the “PPA”");however, as of January 2, 2010, the Company h
received any further information regarding thistiCal Status plan. While the Company has no abtlit calculate a possit
current liability for under-funded mulémployer plans that could terminate or could remaniditional funding under the PPA,
amounts could be material.

NOTEDERIVATIVES
1:

The Company’s operations are exposed to markes nislating to commodity prices that affect the Camyis cost of ra
materials, finished product prices and energy caststhe risk of changes in interest rates.

The Company makes limited use of derivative instnta to manage cash flow risks related to intexegénse, natural gas us
and inventory. Interest rate swaps are enterexvitith the intent of managing overall borrowing toby reducing the potent
impact of increases in interest rates on floatimig-tongterm debt. Natural gas swaps and collars are exhieto with the intel
of managing the overall cost of natural gas usageetiucing the potential impact of seasonal weadleenands on natural gas |
increases natural gas prices. Heating oil swapgiatered into with the intent of managing the all@ost of diesel fuel usage
reducing the potential impact of seasonal weatleenahds on diesel fuel that increases diesel fueéqr Inventory swaps ¢
entered into with the intent of managing seasonhifgh concentrations of MBM, BFT and YG inventoribg reducing th
potential impact of decreasing prices. The Compirgs not use derivative instruments for tradingppses. At January 2, 20
the Company had natural gas swaps and two inteatst swaps outstanding that qualified and weregdesed for hed
accounting as well as heating oil swaps and invgregevaps that did not qualify and were not desigddbr hedge accounting.
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In accordance with ASC 815 entities are requirecefrt all derivative instruments in the statemeifinancial position at fa
value. The accounting for changes in the fair @dlie., gains or losses) of a derivative instruntmpends on whether it has b
designated and qualifies as part of a hedgingioglsitip and, if so, on the reason for holding thgtrument. If certain conditio
are met, entities may elect to designate a devigdtistrument as a hedge of exposures to changtsrimalue, cash flows
foreign currencies. If the hedged exposure is sh doow exposure, the effective portion of the gaimloss on the derivati
instrument is reported initially as a component atfier comprehensive income (outside of earnings) ansubsequent
reclassified into earnings when the forecastedstetion affects earnings. Any amounts excludethftbe assessment of he
effectiveness as well as the ineffective portiothef gain or loss are reported in earnings immeljiatif the derivative instrume
is not designated as a hedge, the gain or logzignized in earnings in the period of change.

Cash Flow Hedges

On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @derate swap agreements that are considered loashddges according
ASC 815. Under the terms of these swap agreemeegiining June 30, 2006, the cash flows from then@anys $50.0 milliot
floating-rate term loan facility under the Credigr@ement have been exchanged for fixa@- contracts that bear interest, pay
quarterly. The first swap agreement for $25.0ionlimatures April 7, 2012 and bears interest a2%.4which does not inclu
the borrowing spread per the Credit Agreement, &itiortizing payments that mirror the term loan Ifgci The second swi
agreement for $25.0 million matures April 7, 2012 dears interest at 5.415%, which does not incthdeborrowing spread
the Credit Agreement, with amortizing payments timétror the term loan facility. The Compasyteceive rate on each sy
agreement is based on three-month LIBOR.

On May 15, 2009, the Company entered into natumalsyvap contracts that were considered cash flagdseaccording to AS
815. Under the terms of the natural gas swap aotstrthe Company fixed the expected purchase ¢o40®@000 mmbtis of
natural gas representing a portion of its planfseeted usage for the months of July 2009 througtotiéc 2009 at a fixed rate
$4.5248 per mmbtu. As of January 2, 2010 these fbaw hedges have expired and settled accordirige@ontracts.

On November 13, 2009, the Company entered intoralagias swap contracts that are considered cashhéalges according
ASC 815. Under the terms of the natural gas sveapracts the Company fixed the expected purchasteoé@ 80,000 mmbts’ of
natural gas representing a portion of its planfseeted usage for the months of January 2010 thrMagbh 2010 at a fixed rate
$4.84 per mmbtu.

The Company estimates the amount that will be ssdiad from accumulated other comprehensive loskauary 2, 2010 in

earnings over the next 12 months will be approxélya$1.3 million. No gains or losses have beetassified into earnings a
result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges.
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The following table presents the fair value of tbempanys derivative instruments under ASC 815 as of Jan@a2010 an

January 3, 2009 (in thousands):

Derivatives Designated Balance Sheet
as Hedge Location

Asset Derivatives Fair Valt

January 2, 201 January 3, 200

Natural gas swar. Other current asse

Total derivatives designated as hed

Derivatives no
Designated as
Hedges

Heating oil swap:

Other current asse

Total derivatives not designated as hedges

Total asset derivative

Derivatives Designate Balance Shee
as Hedge Location

$ 22¢ $ =
$ 22¢ $ =
$ 8¢ $ =
$ 8¢ $ =
$ 31 $ =

Liability Derivatives Fair Value

January 2, 201 January 3, 200

Interest rate swag Other noncurrent liabilitie

Total derivatives designated as hed

Derivatives not
Designated as
Hedges

Inventory swap:

Accrued Expense
Total derivates not designated as hec

Total liability derivatives

$ 2,47 $ 3,59!
$ 2,47 $ 3,591
$ < $ =
$ < $ =
$ 2,47¢ $ 3,591

The effect of the Compang’derivative instruments on the consolidated statgraf operations for the fiscal years ended Ja

2, 2010 and January 3, 2009 are as follows (inghods):

Gain or (Loss)
Reclassified From

Gain or (Loss)

Gain or (Loss)
Recognized in Income
On Derivatives

Derivatives Recognized in OCI Accumulated OCI (Ineffective Portion and

Designated as on Derivatives into Income Amount Excluded from

Cash Flow Hedge (Effective Portion) (a (Effective Portion) (b Effectiveness Testing) (i
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Interest rate swag $(2,251) $(3,398; $(1,629) $ (777) $ (27) $ (195)
Natural gas swar. 223 — (409) — 5 —

Total $(2,028) $ (3,398 $ (2,038) $ (777 $ (22 $ (195
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(&) Amount recognized in accumulated OCI (effective tipo) is reported as accumulated other comprehen&dgs ¢
approximately $2.0 million and approximately $3.4llion recorded net of taxes of approximately $0r8llion anc
approximately $1.3 million for the year ended Jayg 2010 and January 3, 2009, respectiv

(b) Gains and (losses) reclassified from accumulated i®XG income (effective portion) for interest regevaps and natural ¢
swaps is included in interest expense and costle§srespectively, in the Compi's consolidated statements of operatic

(c) Gains and (losses) recognized in income on deviest{ineffective portion) for interest rate swapsl aatural gas swaps
included in other, net in the Comp¢s consolidated statements of operatic

At January 2, 2010, the Company had forward puelhgseements in place for purchases of approxigna#gl1l million of natur:
gas and diesel fuel. These forward purchase agmtsmhave no net settlement provisions and the @aynjntends to tal
physical delivery. Accordingly, the forward purchaaggreements are not subject to the requiremengsS@f 815 because th
qualify as normal purchases as defined in the stahd

NOTE FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
1!

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 82Bair Value Measurements and DisclosufeaSC 820") , which defines fair valu
establishes a framework for measuring fair valuel axpands disclosures about fair value measuremiealuding guidanc
related to nonrecurring measurements of nonfindasisets and liabilities.

The following table presents the Companiihancial instruments that are measured at fiteszon a recurring basis as of Jan
2, 2010 and are categorized using the fair valeeahthy under ASC 820. The fair value hierarchy thaee levels based on
reliability of the inputs used to determine the falue.

Fair Value Measurements at January 2, 2010 L

Quoted Prices il Significant Othe Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
(In thousands of dollar: Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Derivative asset $ 312 $ — $ 312 $ —
Derivative liabilities (2,476) — (2,476) —
Total $(2,164) $  — $(2,164) $ —

Derivative assets consist of the Compangatural gas swap and heating oil swap contradtich represents the differer
between the observable market rates of commonlyequatervals for similar assets and liabilitiesaictive markets and the fix
swap rate considering the instruments term, notiamount and credit risk.

Derivative liabilities mostly consist of the Compasinterest rate swap contracts, which represemriggent value of yield curv

observable at commonly quoted intervals for simédasets and liabilities in active markets consiggthe instrumeng term
notional amount, discount rate and credit risk.
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The following table presents the Companyionfinancial assets that are measured at fairevah a nonrecurring basis as
January 2, 2010 and are categorized using the@dhie hierarchy under ASC 820.

Fair Value Measurements at January 2, 2010 L

Quoted Prices i Significant Othe! Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
(In thousands of dollar: Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Identifiable Intangible $ 4,82€ $ — $ — $ 4,826
Goodwill 9,627 — — 9,627
$ 14,453 $ — $ — $14,453

Identifiable intangible assets and goodwill repreégke fair value of amounts recognized as a redittie Sanimax Transaction
discussed in Note 2 Acquisitions and DispositioBfgnificant unobservable inputs were used to dater the fair value of tt
identifiable intangible assets based on the incamgroach valuation model whereby the present wanith anticipated futu
benefits of the identifiable intangible assets waiscounted back to their net present value. Gdbdepresents the differen
between the enterprise value/cash paid less thevdhie of all recognized asset fair values inatgdihe identifiable intangib
asset values.

NOTE CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISF
1t

Concentration of credit risk is limited due to t@@®mpanys diversified customer base and the fact that tbenfiany sell
commodities. No single customer accounted for ntloma 10% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal y2&09, 2008 and 2007.

NOTE CONTINGENCIES
1

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, cleamd loss contingencies arising in the ordinary sewf its business, includi
assertions by certain regulatory and governmergahcies related to permitting requirements andwsstewater and storm we
discharges from the Company’s processing facilities

The Company’'s workers compensation, auto and geniaility policies contain significant deductildeor selfinsurec
retentions. The Company estimates and accruexscted ultimate claim costs related to accideatsirring during each fisc
year and carries this accrual as a reserve ueskticlaims are paid by the Company.

As a result of the matters discussed above, thep@oynhas established loss reserves for insurang@oemental and litigatic
matters. At January 2, 2010 and January 3, 20@9rdserves for insurance, environmental and tiigacontingencies reflect
on the balance sheet in accrued expenses andnatheurrent liabilities for which there are no potehiresurance recoveries we
approximately $15.6 million and $17.3 million, resfively. Management of the Company believes thesserves fc
contingencies are reasonable and sufficient baped present governmental regulations and informatiorrently available -
management; however, there can be no assurancéndlatosts related to these matters will not exteurrent estimates. 1
Company believes that the likelihood is remote Hrat additional liability from these lawsuits arldims that may not be covel
by insurance would have a material effect on tharftial statements.
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Lower Passaic River AreaThe Company has been named as a third partydife in a lawsuit pending in the Superior Cou
New Jersey, Essex County, stylsgw Jersey Department of Environmental Protectiile Commissioner of the New Je
Department of Environmental Protection Agency aral Administrator of the New Jersey Spill Compensafiund, as Plaintiff
vs. Occidental Chemical Corporation, Tierra Solaso Inc., Maxus Energy Corporation, Repsol YPF, SY®F, S.A., YF
Holdings, Inc., and CLH Holdings, as Defendafid®cket No. L-009868-05) (the “Tierra/Maxus Litigat”). In the Tierra/Maxu
Litigation, which was filed on December 13, 200%e plaintiffs seek to recover from the defendartst @nd future cleanup ¢
removal costs, as well as unspecified economic dasjapunitive damages, penalties and a varietytleéroforms of relie
purportedly arising from the alleged discharges the Passaic River of a particular type of dicir other unspecified hazard
substances. The damages being sought by theifitafram the defendants are likely to be substntOn February 4, 2009, b
of the defendants, Tierra Solutions, Inc. (“Tiejrahd Maxus Energy Corporation (“Maxusfijed a third party complaint agail
over 300 entities, including the Company, seekingetover all or a proportionate share of cleamugpramoval costs, damage:
other loss or harm, if any, for which Tierra or Maxmay be held liable in the Tierra/Maxus LitigatioTierra and Maxus alle
that Standard Tallow Company, an entity that then@any acquired in 1996, contributed to the dischar§ the hazardo
substances that are the subject of this case wpieating a former plant site located in NewarkwNkersey. The Company
investigating these allegations, has entered iftind defense agreement with many of the othedtharty defendants and intet
to defend itself vigorously. Additionally, in Demder 2009, the Company, along with numerous othéties, received notic
from the United States Environmental Protection wage(EPA) that the Company (as successdnierest to Standard Tallc
Company) is considered a potentially responsibtéypaith respect to alleged contamination in thedéo Passaic River area wh
is part of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site lochte Newark, New Jersey. In the letter, EPA retgekshat the Company joir
group of other parties in funding a remedial inigegion and feasibility study at the site. As bEtdate of this report, t
Company has not agreed to participate in the fundioup. The Company’ultimate liability for investigatory costs, renia
costs and/or natural resource damages in connesttbrthe lower Passaic River area cannot be déteanat this time; howevt
as of the date of this report, there is nothing kbads the Company to believe that these mattérbave a material effect on t
Company'’s financial position or results of operatio

In July 2007, a judgment was entered in a litigatioatter involving a contract dispute in which Bempany was a party. T
judgment required the Company to convey an unusgecepof property recorded on the books for appnately $500,000 to tl
counterparty for that amount. In December 200jidgment was entered in the matter awarding theteoparty approximate
$2.6 million in attorneysfees and costs. The Company filed appeals of jpoiigments. The Company settled this matter di
the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Pursuant to tkens of the settlement, the Company transferredptoperty to the counterpa
for a purchase price of $500,000, paid the couatéympproximately $2.2 million towards attornefes and costs and agree
dismiss its pending appeals with prejudice. Initholt the parties exchanged mutual releases. Admapany recorded a charge
$2.2 million for the attorneydees and costs in the fourth quarter of 2007, wisdhcluded in selling, general and administre
expenses.

In June 2006, the Company was awarded damagespobamately $7.4 million as a result of a serviagewpder’s failure tc
provide steam under a service agreement to onteeo€ompanys plants. At the time the damages were awarddigctoility of
such damages was uncertain; however on OctobePdd5, the Company entered into an agreement toitsefights to suc
damages to a third party for $2.2 million in ca3the agreement was made subject to certain conditichich were satisfied
March 1, 2007. On March 8, 2007, the Company weck$2.2 million and transferred its damage awarthé third party. Tt
Company recorded a gain with the receipt of th@ $allion in proceeds in the first quarter of 2007.
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NOTE BUSINESS SEGMENT!
1

The Company sells its products domestically anérirationally and operates within two industry segtse Rendering &
Restaurant Services. The measure of segment flosfH) includes all revenues, operating expersedyding certain amortizal
of intangibles), and selling, general and admiatste expenses incurred at all operating locatems excludes general corpc
expenses.

Included in corporate activities are general caaporexpenses and the amortization of intangibleses of corporate activi
include cash, unallocated prepaid expenses, ddftareassets, prepaid pension, and miscellanebes assets.

Rendering
Rendering consists of the collection and processingnimal byproducts, including hides, from butcher shops, grpctores

food service industry and meat and poultry proasssmnverting these principally into useable aifsl proteins utilized by tl
agricultural, leather and oleo-chemical industrigbese finished products are MBM and BFT.

Restaurant Services

Restaurant Services consists of the collectionseflicooking oils from food service establishmentsr@cycling them into simil
products such as higinergy animal feed ingredients and industrial oilkis finished product is YG. Restaurant Serviaks
provides grease trap servicing. Included in restauservices is the National Service Center (“NSThe NSC schedul
services such as fat and bone and used cookimglkttion as well as trap cleaning for contraatadtomers using the Compaay’
resources or third party providers.

Business Segment Net Reven(ieghousands):

Year Endec
January 2 January ¢ December 29
2010 200¢ 2007
Rendering
Trade $ 458,57 $ 585,10¢ $ 464,46¢
Intersegment 16,21¢ 50,83: 42,09¢
474,78¢ 635,94( 506,56!
Restaurant Service
Trade 139,23 222,38t 180,84!
Intersegmen 13,12¢ 10,11¢ 5,311
152,35¢ 232,50: 186,15¢
Eliminations (29,347) (60,950() (47,406
Total $ 597,80¢ $ 807,49. $ 645,31

Included in corporate activities are general comporexpenses and the amortization of intangibléstee to Fresh Sta
Reporting.”
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Business Segment Profit/(Lopgin thousands):

Year Endec
December
January 2, January 3, 29,
2010 2009 2007
Renderinc $ 94,44¢ $ 101,43¢ $ 85,65«
Restaurant service 15,251 29,89¢ 34,95
Corporate activitie (64,809) (73,759 (70,029
Interest expens (3,10%) (3,01 (5,04%)
Net income $ 41,79( $ 54,56 $ 45,53:

Certain assets are not attributable to a singleabipg segment but instead relate to multiple oji@gasegments operating out
individual locations. These assets are utilizedbogh the Rendering and Restaurant Services busisegments and
identified in the category Combined Rendering/Rarstat Services. Depreciation of Combined RendéRagtaurant Servic
assets is allocated based upon an estimate ofetivergage of corresponding activity attributed achesegment. Additional
although intangible assets are allocated to opeyategments, the amortization related to the adojti “Fresh Start Reporting”
in 1993 is not considered in the measure of opggategment profit/(loss) and is included in Corpe#sctivities.

As discussed in Note 17, the Company received paxef $2.2 million during the first quarter ofdéd 2007 as a result o
service provider’s failure to provide steam undereavice agreement to one of the Comparlants. The Company recor:
approximately $1.2 million of the proceeds as auotidn of cost of sales in the Compamyrendering segment &
approximately $1.0 million as a reduction of sejlend general and administrative costs in the catpcsegment.

Business Segment Asséiis thousands):

January 2, January 3,
2010 2009
Rendering $ 171,00! $ 158,19(
Restaurant Service 65,18¢ 47,38¢
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Serv 100,17: 96,317
Corporate Activities 89,80¢ 92,48:
Total $ 426,17: $ 394,37!
Business Segment Property, Plant and Equipifietihousands):
Decembel
January 2 January 3 29,
2010 2009 2007

Depreciation and amortizatio
Renderinc $ 16,64¢ $ 14,27( $  13,50¢
Restaurant Service 5,28¢ 4,31( 3,881
Corporate Activities 3,29/ 5,85: 5,82¢
Total $ 25,22t $ 24,43 $ 2321

Capital expenditure:

Rendering $ 5071 $ 11,72! $ 2,88(
Restaurant Service 1,211 61C 53¢
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Serv 13,38¢ 15,77¢ 10,60¢
Corporate Activities 3,97 2,89 1,62¢
Total (a) $ 23,63t $ 31,00¢ $  15,55:

(a) Excludes the capital assets acquired as part ofatiygiisition of assets related to the Sanimax Betitn and Boc
Transaction in fiscal 2009 of approximately $8.0liom and the APl Transaction in fiscal 2008 of appmately $3..
million.
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The Company has no material foreign operationsekports a portion of its products to customergarious foreign countries.

Geographic Area Net Trade Reven(ieshousands):

December

January 2 January 3, 29,

2010 2009 2007
Domestic $ 526,97 $ 675,25 $ 473,69
Foreign 70,83: 132,23! 171,61¢
Total $ 597,80t $ 807,49: $ 645,31

The Company attributes revenues from external ocusts to individual foreign countries based on thestichation of th
Company’s shipments. For fiscal 2009, 2008 and72@0 individual foreign country comprised morertt&#4o of the Company’
consolidated revenue.

NOTE QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED AND IN THOUSAND S EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS):

1
Year Ended January 2, 20

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 133,00( $ 155,29¢ $ 159,93¢ $ 149,57.
Operating incom 8,76: 20,27¢ 25,39¢ 16,50¢
Income from operation before income taxe 7,86¢ 19,27 24,81¢ 14,91¢
Net income 4,81( 11,69¢ 16,07: 9,20¢
Basic earnings per she 0.0¢ 0.14 0.2C 0.11
Diluted earnings per sha 0.0¢ 0.14 0.1¢ 0.11

Year Ended January 3, 20
Fourth
First Second Third Quarter

Quarter Quarter Quarter (a)
Net sales $ 201,95¢ $ 220,85¢ $ 236,22 $ 148,45:
Operating income/(los: 35,161 39,73t 37,31 (19,53¢)
Income/(loss) from operatior before income
taxes 34,48¢ 39,09: 36,69t (20,36))
Net income/(loss 21,46 24,07¢ 22,99/ (13,979)
Basic earnings per she 0.2¢ 0.3C 0.2¢ (0.17)
Diluted earnings per sha 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ (0.17)

(a) Included in operating loss in the fourth quarteffistal 2008 is a charge for goodwill impairmentagfproximatel
$15.9 million and an estimated accrued liabilityagiproximately $3.2 million related to a mudtinployer pensic
plan where the Company is seeking a mass withdréevalination. In addition, the fourth quarter agchl 200!
includes an additional week of operations thatrdidthave a material impact on resu
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NOTENEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT!

2(

In December 2007, the FASB issued revised guidamcker ASC Topic 805Business CombinationSASC 805”) . The nev
provisions of ASC 805 applies to all transactionsl ather events in which one entity obtains contneér one or more otk
businesses. ASC 805 requires an acquirer, uptaliyiobtaining control of another entity, to reguze the assets, liabilities ¢
any noneontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair vala® of the acquisition date. Contingent considemnats required to t
recognized and measured at fair value on the daaequisition rather than at a later date whenatm®unt of that considerati
may be determinable beyond a reasonable doubs famivalue approach replaces the alkieation process required under
precodification SFAS 141 whereby the cost of an adtjois was allocated to the individual assets acgpliand liabilitie
assumed based on their estimated fair value. ABCr8quires acquirers to expense acquisition mklatests as incurred ratl
than allocating these costs to assets acquirediaitities assumed, as was done under thecpdification SFAS 141. The n
provisions of ASC 805 were adopted by the Compamyanuary 4, 2009. The effect of this standardeddp on acquisitic
activity and its relative size to the Company. iDgrfiscal 2009 the Company did have acquisitiotivég as discussed in Note
Acquisitions and Dispositions. The adoption of A8@5 did not have a material impact on the deteation or reporting of t
Company'’s financial results for the period endenbday 2, 2010.

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance und€& A&oic 810,Consolidation(*“ASC 810”). These new provisions of Af
810 establishes new standards that will goverratfewunting for and reporting of (1) noncontrollimjerests in partially owne
consolidated subsidiaries and (2) the loss of ocbotrsubsidiaries. ASC 810 was adopted by the gamg on January 4, 2009
a prospective basis. The adoption of these newigoms of ASC 810 did not have an impact to thasodidated financi
statements of the Company.

In March 2008, the FASB issued guidance under A8@icI 815,Derivatives and Hedging These new provisions of ASC ¢
are intended to improve transparency in finan@abrting by requiring enhanced disclosures of aityea derivative instrumer
and hedging activities and their effects on thatgmst financial position, financial performance, andtcdlows. These ne
provisions apply to all derivative instruments viitthe scope of ASC 815 as well as related hedgedsi bifurcated derivative
and nonderivative instruments that are designatedqaalify as hedging instruments. The fair vadfieerivative instruments a
their gains and losses will need to be presentédhinlar format in order to present a more comppétture of the effects of usi
derivative instruments. The Company adopted timese provisions of ASC 815 effective January 4, 2008e adoption of th
new guidance did not have a material effect toctivesolidated financial statements of the Company.

In April 2008, the FASB issued guidance under ASEpIit 350,Intangibles-Goodwill and Other The new provisions of AS
350 amend the factors that should be considere@eloping renewal or extension assumptions useltiermine the useful i
of a recognized intangible asset. ASC 350 was tedopn January 4, 2009. The adoption of ASC 380ndit have a mater
effect to the consolidated financial statementhefCompany.

In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance und& A&pic 715,Compensation — Retirement Benefiitrovide guidance «
an employers disclosures about plan assets of a defined heueision or other postretirement plan on investnpeticies an
strategies, major categories of plan assets, inantk valuation techniques used to measure thevédire of plan assets &
significant concentrations of risk within plan asséhe disclosures about plan assets requiredSy A15 are effective for fisc
years ending after December 15, 2009, with eaajsglication permitted. Upon initial applicatiohgtprovisions of ASC 715 ¢
not required for earlier periods that are presefatedomparative purposes. The adoption of these provisions of ASC 715 ¢
not have a material effect to the consolidatedrfoia statement of the Company.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance under AS(pIT 805,Business CombinationsThis new guidance amends and clar
ASC 805 to address application on initial recogmitand measurement, subsequent measurement anohtiegand disclosure
assets and liabilities arising from contingencies ibusiness combination. The Compamgdoption of this new guidance did
have a material impact on the determination or mémgpof the Company’s financial results for theipd ended January 2, 2010.

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance under ASEpiT 825, Financial Instruments(*ASC 825"). ASC 825 require
disclosures about fair value of financial instrutisefor interim reporting periods as well as in aanfinancial statements. A
825 is effective for interim reporting periods emgliafter June 15, 2009. The Compangtoption of ASC 825 did not hav
material impact on the consolidated financial stegnts of the Company.

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC Topic 88ybsequent Even{sASC 855”) effective for interim or annual periods enc
after June 15, 2009. The objective of ASC 85%iggtablish general standards of accounting fordiscosures of events tl
occur after the balance sheet date but before diahatatements are issued or are available tesiged. ASC 855 also requi
entities to disclose the date through which subsetjevents were evaluated as well as the ratiofwalevhy that date wi
selected. The adoption of ASC 855 did not haveaternal effect to the consolidated financial stagats of the Company.

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, Topib, IBenerally Accepted Accounting PoliCi¢ASC 105”). ASC 10¢
established the ASC as the source of authoritéti® generally accepted accounting principles (“WGBAP”) recognized by tr
FASB to be applied by nhongovernmental entitiehpreparation of financial statements in confoyroftU.S. GAAP. ASC dot
not change current U.S. GAAP, but is intended topdify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAR firoviding all th
authoritative literature related to a particulapitoin one place. ASC is effective for interim aadnual periods ending af
September 15, 2009. The adoption of ASC 105 hasg#d how the Company references various elemémisSoGAAP whe
preparing the Companyfinancial statement disclosures, but did not leavémpact on the consolidated financial statemehtse
Company.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17 whiatlifies SFAS No. 167Amendments to FASB Interpretatid6(R’
issued in June 2009. ASU 200%-changes how a company determines when an émdityis insufficiently capitalized or is r
controlled through voting (or similar rights) shdube consolidated. ASU 20a%- requires additional disclosures abo
companys involvement with variable interest entities amy aignificant changes in risk exposure due to thablvement. Th
Company is required to adopt ASU 200B-on January 3, 2010 and is currently evaluatimgy itnpact of adopting this n
standard.
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SCHEDULE I

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(In thousands)

Additions Charged tc

Balance at Costs and Balance at
Description Beginning of Expenses Other Deductions (a) End of Period
Period

Reserve for bad debi

Year ended January 2, 2010 $ 2,313 $  48¢ $ - $ 653 $ 2,14¢

Year ended January 3, 2009 $ 1,46€ $ 1,50€ $ = $ 659 $ 2,312

Year ended December 29,2C $ 1,63¢ $ 407 $ - $ 580 $ 1,46€
Deferred tax valuation allowanc

Year ended January 2, 2010 $ 220 $ - $ - $ 45 $ 17F

Year ended January 3, 20 $ 4,793 $ - $ = $ 4,573 $ 22C

Year ended December 29, 2C $ 9,416 $ — $ - $ 4,623 $ 4,793

(a) Deductions consist of wri-offs of uncollectible accounts receivable and réidns of the deferred tax valuation allowan
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PART Il

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON A CCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

9.

None.

ITEM CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
9A.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu.

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), the Gamy’s management, including the Chief Executive Offed Chief Financi
Officer, conducted an evaluation, as of the endhefperiod covered by this report, of the effeaie®s of the design and operation of
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures. éfmed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢k) under the Exchange Act, disclo:
controls and procedures are controls and otheregges of the Company that are designed to enkaténformation required to be disclo:
by the Company in the reports it files or submitgler the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suaedaand reported, within the til
periods specified in the SE€tules and forms. Disclosure controls and proeedinclude, without limitation, controls and prdoees designe
to ensure that information required to be discldsgdhe Company in the reports it files or subroitsler the Exchange Act is accumulated
communicated to the Compasyhanagement, including the Chief Executive Offeed Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate t@altimely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on management’s evaluation, the Chief Exee@ificer and Chief Financial Officer concludedtithe Company disclosur
controls and procedures were effective as of tlieoéthe period covered by this report.

Internal Control over Financial Reportin.

(&) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control ofAgmancial Reporting. Management of the Company is responsibl
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrobotver financial reporting as defined in Rulesadth(f) and 15dt5(f) promulgated und
the Exchange Act. Those rules define internal rmbratver financial reporting as a process desigioegrovide reasonable assurance rega
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugsom accordance with generally acce
accounting principles and includes those policies$ grocedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inomisle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions and dispositions of
assets of the Compar

 Provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, ahnat receipts and expenditures of the Company a&mlgbmade only i
accordance with authorizations of management ardtdirs of the Company; ai

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventioiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of th
Compan'’s assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohbver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdutes may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehélss Company’s internal control over financiaporting as of January ,2

2010. In making this assessment, the Company’s geameant used the criteria established in Internait®@bintegrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theg@livay Commission (COSO).
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Based on their assessment, management has conthaleéde Companyg’internal control over financial reporting waseetive at th
reasonable assurance level as of January 2, 2010.

KPMG LLP, the registered public accounting firm ttfeudited the Company’financial statements, has issued an audit regm
management’s assessment of the Company’s intesnédot over financial reporting, which report isinded herein.

(b) Attestation Report of the Registered Public AcdognEirm. The attestation report called for by Item 308tbRegulation K
is incorporated herein by reference to Report dependent Registered Public Accounting Firm onrirgieControl Over Financial Reportit
included in Part Il, Item 8, “Financial Statemeatsl Supplementary Data” of this report.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(d), ©@empanys
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, also conducted an eatibn of the Companyg'internal contrc
over financial reporting to determine whether ahgr@ge occurred during the last fiscal quarter efghriod covered by this report that
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the Compang’ internal control over financial reporting. Based tha
evaluation, there has been no change in the Companternal control over financial reporting duritfie last fiscal quarter of the per
covered by this report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, tG@mpany$ internal control over financ
reporting.

ITEM OTHER INFORMATION
9B.

None.
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PART IlI

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE
ITEM 10.

The information required by this Item witsspect to Items 401, 405 and 407 of Regulatidh @} appear in the sections entitl
“Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers and i@ctors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repay Compliance” and Corporat
Governance-Committees of the Board-Audit Committeeluded in the Company’definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 201GnAa
Meeting of Stockholders, which information is inporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted the Darling Internatiomal Code of Business Conduct (“Code of BusinessdGcti), which is applicabl
to all of the Companyg employees, including its senior financial offisethe Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial ©#r, Controllel
Treasurer and General Counsel. The Company hagraoted any waivers to the Code of Business Cdrtidutate. A copy of the Company
Code of Business Conduct has been posted on thestor” portion of our web site, at www.darlingora . Shareholders may request a
copy of our Code of Business Conduct from:

Brad Phillips

Darling International Inc.

251 O’Connor Ridge Blvd, Suite 300
Irving, Texas 75038

Phone: 972-717-0300

Fax: 972-717-1588

Email: bphillips@darlingii.com

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
ITEM 11.

The information required by this Item will appear the sections entitled “Executive CompensatiorGbmpensation Committ
Report” and “Corporate Governance-Compensation Citieeninterlocks and Insider Participation” inclada the Company definitive Prox
Statement relating to the 2010 Annual Meeting otBholders, which information is incorporated herey reference.

ITEM SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AN D MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
12. STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item with respecttem 201(d) of Regulation S-K appears in Itewf Fhis report.

The information required by this Item with respéatitem 403 of Regulation S-K will appear in thectien entitled ‘Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managgmiacluded in the Compang’definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 201thAa
Meeting of Stockholders, which information is ingorated herein by reference.

ITEM CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AN D DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
13.

The information required by this Item will appearthe sections entitledTfansactions with Related Persons, Promoters amthi€
Control Persons” and “Corporate Goverance-Indepgnd@ectors” included in the Comparsytlefinitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which informatienincorporated herein by reference.

ITEM PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
14.

The information required by this Item wéppear in the section entitled “Independent Auditancluded in the Company’
definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2010 AahMeeting of Stockholders, which informationngdrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

15.
Pag
(2) Documents filed as part of this repc
(1) The following consolidated financial statementsiactuded in Item 8

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg on Consolidated Financi Statement 51
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg on Internal Control Ove Financial 52
Reporting
Consolidated Balance She

January 2, 2010 and January 3, - 53
Consolidated Statements of Operat-

Three years ended January 2, 2 54
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity

and Comprehensive Income(Lc-

Three years ended January 2, 2 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl«-

Three years ended January 2, 2 57
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 58

(2)The following financial statement schedule is inlgd in Item 8

Schedule I- Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Three years ended January 2, 2 91

All other schedules are omitted since the requiméatmation is not present or is not present in ants sufficient to
require submission of the schedule, or becausimtbenation required is included in the consolidhfmancial
statements and notes thereto.
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Exhibits.

Exhibit No.

Document

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6 *

10.7

10.8

10.9

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of thmr@any, as amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the @amg’s Registration
Statement on Form-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein byrefce)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Compaled(&is Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current ReparEorm 8-K
filed December 12, 2008 and incorporated hereirefgrence)

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (filed akikix 4.1 to the Company’s Registration StatemenEorm S-1 filed
May 27, 1994 and incorporated herein by referer

Certificate of Designation, Preference anchRi@f Series A Preferred Stock (filed as Exhib2 tb the Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein byrefice)

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of Mak;2002, among Darling International Inc., eatthe banks or other
lending institutions which is a signatory theret@may successor or assignee thereof, and Creditriaie New York
Branch, individually as a bank and as agent (fdled\nnex C to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Stageirfiled on
April 29, 2002, and incorporated herein by refeggr

First Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemdated as of April 1, 2002, among Darling Inteioraal Inc., each of
the banks party to the Recapitalization Agreemamd, Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, individually @ bank and
as agent (filed as Annex D to the Company’s DefiaiProxy Statement filed on April 29, 2002, anddrporated
herein by reference

Second Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemengddas of April 29, 2002, among Darling Internatioina., eact
of the banks party to the Recapitalization Agreetn@md Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, individyadls a bank
and as agent (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the CompaRggistration Statement on Form S-1 filed on May2002, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Dece®®et 993, between Darling International Inc., #melsignatory
holders identified therein (filed as Exhibit 1088the Company’s Registration Statement on Forinfiled on May 27
1994, and incorporated herein by referen

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of My 2002, between Darling International Inc., #melholders
identified therein (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to them@pany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filedvay 23, 2002,
and incorporated herein by referenc

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhib.7 to the Compal's Registration Statement on For-1 filed
on May 27, 1994, and incorporatherein by reference

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2006, amDuagling International Inc., various lending instians party
thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (filed aghiixh0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Fori Bled
April 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by refergn

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated @stober 8, 2008, by and among Darling Inteoral Inc., as
borrower, various lending institutions party therahd JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as ExhiBifL1o the
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed October 10, 2008 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as @t&aber 30, 2009, by and among Darling Internatibma, as

borrower, various lending institutions party therahd JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as ExhiBifL1o the
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed October 2, 2009 and incorporated hereindfgrence)
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13 *

10.14 *

10.15*

10.16*

10.17 *

10.18 *

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24 *

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreenaated as of April 7, 2006, among Darling Internadibinc. and the
securities purchasers party thereto (filed as Bxhih2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8l&d April 13,
2006 and incorporated herein by referen

Leases, dated July 1, 1996, between the Companthar@ity and County of San Francisco (filed purdua
temporary hardship exemption under cover of Form

Lease, dated November 24, 2003, between Darlirgriational Inc. and the Port of Tacoma (filed akiBix 10.3 to
the Compan’'s Annual Report on Form -K filed March 29, 2004, and incorporated hereirrdéfgrence)

1994 Employee Flexible Stock Option Plan (filedexhibit 2 to the Compar's Revised Definitive Proxy Stateme
filed on April 20, 2001, and incorporated hereinrbference)

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (filed as bithl0.13 to the Compa’s Registration Statement on Fo
S-1/A filed on June 5, 2002, and incorporated hebgimeference)

Darling International Inc. 2004 Omnibus IncentivarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé's Current Report o
Form &K filed May 11, 2005, and incorporated herein bigrence).

Amendment to Darling International In€02 Omnibus Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 1@the Company’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed January 22, 2007 and incorporated hereimdigrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensati@ommittee Long-Term Incentive Program Policy Staet{filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed June 22, 2005, and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensati@ommittee Executive Compensation Program PolicyeBtant adopted
January 15, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Camys Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2009 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committeaehded and Restated Executive Compensation Prdgotiny
Statement adopted January 8, 2010 (filed as Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8lédfJanuary
14, 2010 and incorporated herein by referer

Integration Success Incentive Award Rfded as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Beépn Form 8-K filed
March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein by refergl

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plareffies Exhibit 10.2 to the CompagyCurrent Report on For
8-K filed March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein éference)

Amendment No. 1 to Non-Employee Dired®astricted Stock Award Plan, effective as of Japd#r, 2009 (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report onrfr&-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated Imebgi
reference)

Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedf&3ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thentpan’'s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed October 10, 2006 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiJasuary 1, 2009, between Darling Internatidnal and

Randall C. Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the @amy’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 2009, and
incorporated herein by referenc
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10.25*

10.26 *

10.27 *

10.28 *

10.29 *

10.30*

14

21

23

31.1

31.2

32

Form of Senior Executive TerminatBanefits Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to then@@any’s Current Report on
Form &K filed November 29, 2007 and incorporated hergimdference)

Form of Addendum to Senior Executhegmination Benefits Agreement (filed as Exhibit26 the Company’s
Current Report on Forrr-K filed December 12, 2008 and incorporated herginetierence)

Amended and Restated Senior Execlterenination Benefits Agreement dated, as of Janlisy 2009, between
Darling International Inc. and John O. Muse (filesiExhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8K filed
January 21, 2009 and incorporated herein by retede

First Addendum to Amended and Restated Senior Execliermination Benefits Agreement dated as ofddelger 8
2009 by and between Darling International Inc. dokdn O. Muse (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Compar@urrent
Report on Form-K filed December 14, 2009 and incorporated herginetference)

Separation and Consulting Agreemaiteéd October 26, 2009, between Darling Internatibra and Mark A. Myers
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Ben Form 8-K filed October 29, 2009 and incogied herein
by reference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Darlingeknational Inc. and its directors and executiffieers (filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current ReporEorm 8-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporaiedein by
reference)

Darling International Inc. Code of Business Quot applicable to all employees, including semxecutive officers
(filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Current Remor Form 8-K filed February 25, 2008, and incogted herein
by reference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhibitl2tb the Compar’'s Registration Statement on Fori-4 filed on
February 2, 2006, and incorporated herein by rafsse

Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(aRale 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac384, of Randall C.
Stuewe, the Chief Executive Officer of the Compéiigd herewith).

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(alRale 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac384, of John O. Muse,
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company (filedrbwith).

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer ande@Hrinancial Officer furnished pursuant to Sect8f6 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (fileeréwith).

The Exhibits are available upon request from the Cmpany.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant thaly caused this report to be sig
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthaized.

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Randall C. Stuew

Randall C. Stuew
Chairman of the Board ar

Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 3, 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/ s /[Randall C. Stuew Chairman of the Board and March 3, 2010
Randall C. Stuew Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

/ s /John O. Must Executive Vice President - March 3, 2010

John O. Must Finance and Administratic
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

[ s /0. Thomas Albrect Director March 3, 2010

O. Thomas Albrect

C. Dean Carlso Director March 3, 2010

~

/s

C, Dean Carlso

[ s [Marlyn Jorgense Director March 3, 2010

Marlyn Jorgense

/ s /ICharles Macalus Director March 3, 2010

Charles Macalus

[ s /John D. Marct Director March 3, 2010

John D. Marct

s /Michael Urbut Director March 3, 2010




Michael Urbut
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4.2

10.1

10.z

10.c

10.4

10.t

10.€*

10.7

10.¢

10.¢

10.1(C

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compas amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Com[ s Registratior
Statement on Form-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein byrefice)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (fie&xhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current ReporfForm 8-K filed
December 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by ne¢ede

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (filed as Eihill to the Company’s Registration Statement omFS-1 filed May 27,
1994 and incorporated herein by referen

Certificate of Designation, Preference and RigfitSeries A Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit ta2he Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein byirefice)

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of March2DB2, among Darling International Inc., each &f blanks or other lending
institutions which is a signatory thereto or angaassor or assignee thereof, and Credit Lyonnaig Yk Branch,
individually as a bank and as agent (filed as AnBer the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statementditen April 29, 2002,
and incorporated herein by referenc

First Amendment to Recapitalization Agreement, dae of April 1, 2002, among Darling Internatiofrat., each of the ban
party to the Recapitalization Agreement, and Creginnais New York Branch, individually as a bamdas agent (filed as
Annex D to the Compar s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 29, Z)@nd incorporated herein by referen:

Second Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemengddas of April 29, 2002, among Darling Internatioina., each of th
banks party to the Recapitalization Agreement, @retlit Lyonnais New York Branch, individually apank and as agent
(filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registratitatement on Form S-1 filed on May 23, 2002, iandrporated herein by
reference)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of DeegrdB, 1993, between Darling International Incd #re signatory holders
identified therein (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to them@pany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filedvay 27, 1994, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2002, between Darling International Inc., and thklérs identified therei
(filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Registrattatement on Form S-1 filed on May 23, 2002, iandrporated herein by
reference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as EgHi10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statemenfom S-1 filed on May
27, 1994, and incorporated herein by referer

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2006, aghbBarling International Inc., various lending ingtions party thereto and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.th&® Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed ihnp8, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as twh@c 8, 2008, by and among Darling International,las borrowe!
various lending institutions party thereto and JiPjdo Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed October 10, 2008 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as @t&aber 30, 2009, by and among Darling Internatitma, as borrowe
various lending institutions party thereto and JRj&m Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to @Gwmpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed October 2, 2009 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dagexd April 7, 2006, among Darling International land the securitie
purchasers party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.theeCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Ag8, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc
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10.11

10.1z

10.1%

10.1#

10.1%

10.1¢€*

10.1#*

10.1¢&*

10.1¢*

10.2(*

10.2F

10.2z

10.2%

10.2#

10.2%*

10.2¢*

Leases, dated July 1, 1996, between the Compahtha City and County of San Francisco (filed parg to temporary
hardship exemption under cover of Form ¢

Lease, dated November 24, 2003, between Dantitegriational Inc. and the Port of Tacoma (filedakibit 10.3 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K filed March 29, 2004, and incorporated hereirréfgrence)

1994 Employee Flexible Stock Option Plan (filesl Exhibit 2 to the Company’s Revised DefinitivexBr Statement filed on
April 20, 2001, and incorporated herein by refeggyr

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (filed as iBkh.0.13 to the Company’s Registration StatenenEorm S-1/A
filed on June 5, 2002, and incorporated hereinefigrence)

Darling International Inc. 2004 Omnibus IncentiiarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compés Current Report on Forn-K
filed May 11, 2005, and incorporated herein by nerfiee).

Amendment to Darling International Inc. 2004 Ommibacentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Camy' s Current Repol
on Form K filed January 22, 2007 and incorporated hereindégrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committem¢-Term Incentive Program Policy Statement (filed &hikit 10.1 to
the Compan’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 22, 2005, and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committee&utive Compensation Program Policy Statementtadojanuary 1°
2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Cutrieeport on Form 8-K filed January 21, 2009 anaiporated herein by
reference)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Commetémended and Restated Executive Compensationamogolicy
Statement adopted January 8, 2010 (filed as Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Forik led January 14, 201
and incorporated herein by referenc

Integration Success Incentive Award Plan (filedEakibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed March 15,
2006 and incorporated herein by referen

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plan ¢fitss Exhibit 10.2 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein bgrefice)

Amendment No. 1 to N-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plan, effe as of January 15, 2009 (filed as Exh
10.4 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedfa&3ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thentpany's Current
Report on Form -K filed October 10, 2006 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dedexf January 1, 2009, between Darling Internatitmc. and Randall
C. Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companyisrént Report on Form B-filed January 21, 2009, and incorporated he
by reference)

Form of Senior Executive Termination Benefitsrdgment (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sr€nt Report on Form 8-
K filed November 29, 2007 and incorporated hergimdference)

Form of Addendum to Senior Executive Terminatiom&fés Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the C@my's Current
Report on Form -K filed December 12, 2008 and incorporated herginetference)
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10.2°*

10.2¢&*

10.2¢*

10.3¢*

1«

31.

31..

3.

Amended and Restated Senior Executive Terminddienefits Agreement dated, as of January 15, 20&t9%een Darling
International Inc. and John O. Muse(filed as Extilifi.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form fdd January 21, 2009
and incorporated herein by referenc

First Addendum to Amended and Restated Senior Execliermination Benefits Agreement dated as ofddelger 8, 2009 b
and between Darling International Inc. and JohiM@se (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Cutfeeport on Form 8-K
filed December 14, 2009 and incorporated hereirelgrence)

Separation and Consulting Agreement dated Octabe2009, between Darling International Inc. &tk A. Myers (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed October 29, 2009 and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Daglimternational Inc. and its directors and exeautfficers (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsgimeference)
Darling International Inc. Code of Business Condamplicable to all employees, including senior exiee officers (filed a:

Exhibit 14 to the Compal's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsimeference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit12tb the Compar's Registration Statement on Fori-4 filed on February 2
2006, and incorporated herein by referen

Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith

Certification pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ofiddl C. Stuewe, th
Chief Executive Officer of the Company (filed herthy.

Certification pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ¢inJ®. Muse, the Chie
Financial Officer of the Company (filed herewit

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer ande&trinancial Officer furnished pursuant to Sectf¥6 of the Sarban-
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (filegkéwith).

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
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EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Darling International Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements on Form S-4 (No. 333-13)148d Form &
(Nos. 333-125875, 33-99868 and 23866) of Darling International Inc. of our repodated March 3, 2010, w
respect to the consolidated balance sheets ofrigaltiternational Inc. as of January 2, 2010 andidgn3, 2009, ar
the related consolidated statements of operatginskholdersequity and comprehensive income (loss) and casVve
for each of the years in the thrgear period ended January 2, 2010, and the refim@acial statement schedule, and
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting as of January 2, 2010, which reports appe#ne January

2010 annual report on Form 10-K of Darling Interoial Inc.

(signed) KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 3, 2010






EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Randall C. Stuewe, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Darling International Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this rep

. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifg prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on
such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in ghgistrant's internal control over financial repagtthat occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiiernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the
equivalent functions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summagize report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or notterél, that involves management or other employdes have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial rejrogt

Date: March 3, 201

/s/ Randall C. Stuew

Randall C. Stuew
Chief Executive Office










EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, John O. Muse, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Darling International Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéiav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reéjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtéis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsdanternal control over financial reporting tlwacurred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) angalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetaummmittee of the registrant's board of direct@rspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or notteraal, that involves management or other employdas have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial rejoagt
Date: March 3, 201

/s/ John O. Mus

John O. Must
Chief Financial Office!










EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Irag International Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KkOfor the period ending January 2, 201!
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinnhe date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigfahdall C. Stuewe, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and John O. Muse, Chief ki@ Officer of the Company, each hereby certjffpgrsuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-OxlepA2902 (the “Act”), that:

1. The Report fully congdiwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contdhin the Report fairly presents, in all materedpects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

This certification is being furnished sglér purposes of compliance with the Act.

/s/ Randall C. Stuew /s/ John O. Mus
Randall C. Stuew John O. Must
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

Date: March 3, 201 Date: March 3, 201







